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Welcome to the YARTS Joint Powers Authority Meeting
AGENDA
At least 72 hours prior to each regular YARTS JPA meeting, a complete agenda packet is available for review
on the YARTS website at www.yarts.com or at the Merced County Association of Governments (MCAG)
office, 369 W. 18th Street, Merced, CA 95340. All public records relating to an open session item and copies
of staff reports or other written documentation relating to items of business referred to on the agenda are
on file at MCAG. Persons with questions concerning agenda items may call MCAG to make an inquiry
regarding the nature of items described on the agenda.
PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public wishing to address agenda items or comment on any item not on the agenda may
do so during agenda item 2 – Public Comment. Persons may also address any item on the agenda during
consideration of that item. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person. To be recognized to
speak from your smartphone, tablet or computer, please use the ‘raise your hand’ feature on Zoom. If you
are participating by phone only, please press *9 to alert the moderator of your desire to speak. Please state
your name and city or community of residence for the record. For items not on the agenda, no action will
be taken. If it requires action, the item will be referred to staff and/or placed on the next agenda.
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES
Representatives or individuals with disabilities should contact YARTS at (209) 723-3111 at least three (3)
days in advance of the meeting to request auxiliary aids or other accommodations necessary to participate
in the public meeting.
INTERPRETING SERVICES
Interpreting services are not provided at YARTS public meetings unless requested at least three (3) business
days in advance. Please call YARTS at (209) 723-3111 during regular business hours to request interpreting
services.
Servicios de intérprete no son ofrecidos en las juntas públicas de YARTS al menos de que se soliciten tres (3)
días de negoción en anticipación. Para solicitar estos servicios por favor contacte a MCAG al (209) 723-3111
durante horas de oficina.
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ITEM

STAFF

1.

Roll Call

2.

Public comment

Pg. #

Xavier Garcia

Public comment is available in advance of, or during, the
meeting. See instructions for public comment on page 2 of
the agenda packet.
3.

National Park Service report

4.

Information items:

Jim Donovan or
Kathleen Morse

These items are included for informational purposes. No
presentation will be made by staff unless Board members
have questions.
+

a.

Service Update, Ridership History and Customer Service
Reports for December 2020 – February 2021

Pg. 7

+

b.

YARTS Quarterly Marketing and Media Update

Pg. 27

+

c.

Pg. 32

+

d.

YARTS/Mariposa County Annual Agreement for Services
– Fiscal Year 2021-22
YARTS/Fresno Council of Governments Agreement –
May 2021 – September 2022 Amendment No. 4 and
associated Budget for Highway 41 services

+

e.

YARTS/Department of the Interior/National Park Service
Cooperative Agreement Modification No. 001 – Fiscal
Year 2021-22

Pg. 73

+

f.

Pg. 79

+

g.

YARTS Financial Report/Budget Update for July 2020 –
February 2021
Ferguson Rock Shed Update

+ Attachment

Pg. 48

Pg. 83
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ITEM
5.

STAFF

Pg. #

Consent calendar:
All consent calendar items listed below may be acted upon
with "one vote" unless specifically removed for separate
consideration by a member of the Board, a member of staff,
or a member of the public.

+

a.

+

b.

+

c.

+

d.

6.

Minutes of the January 11, 2021 YARTS Joint Powers
Authority regular meeting
Minutes of the February 2, 2021 YARTS Joint Powers
Authority Workshop: YARTS Capital and Financial Needs
of the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Accept the YARTS Financial Statements and
Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ending June
30, 2020
Authorize the allocation request for the Low Carbon
Transit Operations Program for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and
adopt Resolution No. 2021/04-12-01

Pg. 89
Pg. 96

Pg. 101

Pg. 133

Action items:
Action items will be considered separately by the Board.
Public comment will be available during each item.

+

a.

+

b.

+

c.

+

d.

+

e.
f.
7.

Authorize the Caltrans 5311(f) Program funding, adopt
Resolution No. 2021/04-12-02 and hold a public hearing
Approve the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget Amendment
No. 1
Authorize the Agreement for Services between the
Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System and the
Merced County Association of Governments for Fiscal
Year 2021-22
Review and adopt the YARTS Operating and Capital
Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-22 and hold a public hearing
Nominate and elect a Chair and Vice Chair of the YARTS
Joint Powers Authority for Fiscal Year 2021-22
Approve the Meeting Schedules for Fiscal Year 2021-22

Christine Chavez

Pg. 145

Nav Bagri

Pg. 150

Stacie Guzman

Pg. 155

Nav Bagri and
Christine Chavez
Stacie Guzman

Pg. 166

Christine Chavez

Pg. 177

Pg. 173

Discussion items:
These items will be presented separately in order to allow
Board members to ask questions or to provide staff direction.

+

a.

YARTS/Amtrak Thruway Bus Agreement Contract
Extension No. 2 – Fiscal Year 2021-22

Kate Molthen

Pg. 180

b.

YARTS/VIA Adventures, Inc. Contract Extension No. 2

Pg. 183

c.

YARTS Strategic Plan – Preliminary Recommendation of
White Paper

Christine Chavez
Christine Chavez and
LSC Transportation
Consultants, Inc.

+ Attachment

Pg. 186
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ITEM 4a
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ITEM 4a
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Kate Molthen, Assistant Transit Manager

RE:

Information: Service Update, Ridership History and Customer Service Reports for December
2020 – February 2021

SUMMARY
Staff provides ridership history and customer service reports to the Authority Advisory Committee and Joint
Powers Authority at the quarterly meetings.
REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
BACKGROUND
The Highway 140 winter service began on October 1 and is expected to run through May 16, 2021.
On December 7, 2020 Yosemite National Park’s hours of operation were modified to 8am – 5pm in response
to California’s Stay-At-Home order. On December 8, 2020 Run 140-15 was modified to travel only as far as
El Portal as Yosemite’s hours were adjusted, and the run could not enter or exit the park after hours.
January 19, 2021, Yosemite National Park closed due to high winds and associated damage. All runs traveled
only as far as El Portal. On January 22, 2021 YARTS employed minimum schedule II (6 runs) of the Emergency
Operations Plan in response to the continued closure of the park. On January 30, 2021, a rockslide event
between Midpines and El Portal occurred, causing the cancellation of Run 140-14 and Run 140-15 to only
travel as far as Midpines. February 1, 2021 Yosemite reopened and YARTS resumed regular service. On
February 8, 2021 Yosemite reinstated the day-use reservation program in response to increased visitors to
view the Horsetail Falls annual event. On March 1, 2021 Yosemite ended the day-use reservation program
and YARTS has remained at regular service.
COVID-19 safety measures, including limiting capacity to 30, encouraging passengers to travel via
reservation but allowing for limited walk-on service, social distancing and requiring masks to be worn for
the duration of travel, will remain in effect through the summer of 2021. Yosemite National Park’s Valley
shuttles will not be operating during the summer 2021 season.
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PAST ACTION TAKEN
May 22, 2020: The YARTS JPA Board approved the social distancing strategy of limiting buses to half
capacity with a maximum of 22 passengers per bus.
June 8, 2020: The YARTS JPA Board approved the implementation of the social distancing strategy that
limits passengers to half capacity (22 + 2 wheelchair passengers) plus up to 8 walk-ons per run with the
ability to adjust ridership as needed.
NEXT STEPS
YARTS Staff will continue to monitor ridership and statewide impacts of COVID-19.
FISCAL IMPACT
Ridership and Customer Service impact the YARTS services in regard to sustaining passenger ridership and
service levels and standards resulting in farebox recovery. Farebox recovery impacts the annual budget
revenues, and a shortfall in projected revenues could result in a deficit for the fiscal year in which that
shortfall occurs.
COVID-19 has significantly impacted throughway service agreements with both the Amtrak and
Greyhound services. Amtrak and Greyhound services are facing significant funding reductions. YARTS’
throughway service agreement with Amtrak resumed on September 1, 2020, with reservations available
as of October 1, 2020.
YARTS has received a Phase 1 funding allocation from the CARES Act in the amount of $326,779 as well as
a Phase 2 funding allocation in the amount of $664,933. When received, these funds will help address the
operating expenses related to the response to the pandemic, including loss of fare revenue, increased
sanitation costs and operating costs for providing essential transit service on the year-round HWY 140
corridor. These funds are less than the total revenue loss derived from sources vulnerable to COVID-19
reductions. Meaning, it will help but it is not adequate to recover both the lost revenue and increased
costs associated with continuing service during the pandemic.
REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
ATTACHMENTS
YARTS Ridership History (2015 – 2021)
Customer Service Reports for December 2020 – February 2021
Ridership Detail (December 2020 – February 2021)
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YARTS Ridership
FY 14/15
Merced - Hwy 140
Mono - Hwy 120 E.
Sonora - Hwy 120 W.
Fresno - Hwy 41
NPS/DNC
Amtrak

Jul-14

Aug-14

Sep-14

Oct-14

Nov-14

Dec-14

Jan-15

Feb-15

Mar-15

Apr-15

May-15

Jun-15

Total FY 14/15

7,209
2,267
1,585
0
1,177
1,256

7,223
2,160
1,125
0
1,125
1,225

5,342
313
395
0
1,087
953

3,457
0
0
0
884
718

3,195
0
0
0
902
681

3,952
0
0
0
959
1,112

2,966
0
0
0
1,053
755

2,785
0
0
0
827
871

3,837
0
0
0
1,125
1,214

4,257
0
0
0
1,200
943

5,201
0
407
285
1,008
1,191

6,178
323
1,228
1,706
1,194
1,016

55,602
5,063
4,740
1,991
12,541
11,935

Grand Total

13,494

12,858

8,090

5,059

4,778

6,023

4,774

4,483

6,176

6,400

8,092

11,645

91,872

FY 15/16

Jul-15

Aug-15

Sep-15

Oct-15

Nov-15

Dec-15

Jan-16

Feb-16

Mar-16

Apr-16

May-16

Jun-16

Total FY 15/16

6,727
2,234
1,992
2,134
1,072
1,068

6,381
1,823
1,267
1,672
1,082
1,257

5,075
341
578
1,442
889
1,062

3,803
0
0
987
863
831

3,559
0
0
1,451
904
597

6,673
0
0
2,482
672
1,035

4,420
0
0
2,162
688
672

3,547
0
0
1,499
878
708

4,623
0
0
1,792
997
854

4,309
0
0
1,663
761
773

6,827
63
647
2,200
962
1,251

7,759
513
2,528
3,530
1,015
903

63,703
4,974
7,012
23,014
10,783
11,011

Grand Total

15,227

13,482

9,387

6,484

6,511

10,862

7,942

6,632

8,266

7,506

11,950

16,248

120,497

FY 16/17

Jul-16

Aug-16

Sep-16

Oct-16

Nov-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

Feb-17

Mar-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

Total FY 16/17

8,578
2,899
3,386
3,388
927
987

7,524
2,634
2,271
2,891
913
1,062

6,328
631
930
2,371
612
900

4,243
0
0
0
442
778

3,735
0
0
0
536
629

5,291
0
0
0
539
1,011

5,045
0
0
0
487
565

3,611
0
0
0
626
563

4,515
0
0
0
826
717

4,971
0
0
0
584
850

7,652
0
1,378
1,789
698
1,130

8,269
0
5,219
3,542
508
744

69,762
6,164
13,184
13,981
7,698
9,936

Grand Total

20,165

17,295

11,772

5,463

4,900

6,841

6,097

4,800

6,058

6,405

12,647

18,282

120,725

FY 17/18

Jul-17

Aug-17

Sep-17

Oct-17

Nov-17

Dec-17

Jan-18

Feb-18

Mar-18

Apr-18

May-18

Jun-18

Total FY 17/18

9,177
2,155
5,415
5,559
691
679

9,576
3,746
2,808
3,610
525
1,368

7,330
602
1,367
410
212
1,054

4,717
0
0
0
556
606

4,140
0
0
0
338
421

4,368
0
0
0
359
977

4,156
0
0
0
447
566

3,797
0
0
0
571
622

5,734
0
0
0
683
628

4,752
0
0
0
498
594

5,849
21
933
1,231
512
1,365

6,980
610
3,685
2,790
764
1,322

70,576
7,134
14,208
13,600
6,156
10,202

Grand Total

23,676

21,633

10,975

5,879

4,899

5,704

5,169

4,990

7,045

5,844

9,911

16,151

121,876

FY 18/19

Jul-18

Aug-18

Sep-18

Oct-18

Nov-18

Dec-18

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Total FY 18/19

2,845
2,483
3,610
2,899
386
713

2,364
1,821
895
518
332
330

5,346
570
1,531
813
442
721

3,437
0
0
0
408
637

2,731
0
0
0
269
514

3,988
0
0
0
290
758

2,774
0
0
0
122
454

3,596
0
0
0
255
280

3,802
0
0
0
257
467

3,848
0
0
0
322
687

5,823
0
969
983
322
823

6,909
0
3,276
2,024
431
650

47,463
4,874
10,281
7,237
3,836
7,034

Grand Total

12,936

6,260

9,423

4,482

3,514

5,036

3,350

4,131

4,526

4,857

8,920

13,290

80,725

FY 19/20

Jul-19

Aug-19

Sep-19

Oct-19

Nov-19

Dec-19

Jan-20

Feb-20

Mar-20

Apr-20

May-20

Jun-20

Total FY 19/20

9,009
2,082
4,593
2,510
491
933

7,572
2,296
5,652
2,247
308
723

5,191
1,244
1,645
872
238
759

2,989
257
0
0
271
503

3,359
0
0
0
220
406

5,433
0
0
0
215
651

3,924
0
0
0
298
449

2,838
0
0
0
317
427

1,743
0
0
0
228
197

214
0
0
0
7
2

246
0
0
0
6
0

1,893
230
497
522
59
7

44,411
6,109
12,387
6,151
2,658
5,057

Merced - Hwy 140
Mono - Hwy 120 E.
Sonora - Hwy 120 W.
Fresno - Hwy 41
NPS/DNC
Amtrak

Merced - Hwy 140
Mono - Hwy 120 E.
Sonora - Hwy 120 W.
Fresno - Hwy 41
NPS/DNC
Amtrak

Merced - Hwy 140
Mono - Hwy 120 E.
Sonora - Hwy 120 W.
Fresno - Hwy 41
NPS/DNC
Amtrak

Merced - Hwy 140
Mono - Hwy 120 E.
Sonora - Hwy 120 W.
Fresno - Hwy 41
NPS/DNC
Amtrak

Merced - Hwy 140
Mono - Hwy 120 E.
Sonora - Hwy 120 W.
Fresno - Hwy 41
NPS/Aramark
Amtrak

Grand Total

19,618

18,798

9,949

4,020

3,985

6,299

4,671

3,582

2,168

223

252

3,208

76,773

FY 20/21

Jul-20

Aug-20

Sep-20

Oct-20

Nov-20

Dec-20

Jan-21

Feb-21

Mar-21

Apr-21

May-21

Jun-21

Total FY 20/21

5,563
1,704
3,321
2,512
55
0

5,361
1,598
2,612
2,460
86
0

1,952
377
355
401
56
0

2,156
86
0
0
68
24

1,037
0
0
0
50
29

708
0
0
0
38
23

404
0
0
0
44
14

2,073
0
0
0
69
20

13,155

12,117

3,141

2,334

1,116

769

462

2,162

Merced - Hwy 140
Mono - Hwy 120 E.
Sonora - Hwy 120 W.
Fresno - Hwy 41
NPS/Aramark
Amtrak

Grand Total

19,254
3,765
6,288
5,373
466
110

0

0

0

0

35,256

Notable Events Affecting Ridership
2020/2021: August 21-26, 2020 - Moccasin Fire - Hwy 120 suspended (7 days); September 7-11, 2020 - Creek Fire - Hwy 41 suspended (5 days); September 11, 2020 - Hwy 41 Summer service scheduled end date; September 18-24, 2020 - Yosemite National Park closure due to poor air
quality - Hwy 395 suspended, Hwy 120 operates to Rush Creek, Hwy 140 operates to El Portal (7 days); September 30, 2020 - Hwys 120 and 140 Summer service ends; October 1, 2020 - Hwy 140 Winter service begins; October 15, 2020 - Hwy 395 Summer service ends; December 7, 2020 Yosemite National Park's hours of operation modified to 8am to 5pm in response to California Regional Stay-At-Home order; December 8, 2020 - Hwy 140 Run 140-15 modified to travel only as far as El Portal (52 days); January 19, 2021 - Yosemite National Park closed due to high winds
and associated damage and all runs travel only as far as El Portal (3 days); January 22, 2021 - YARTS reverts to Minimum Schedule II (6 runs) of the Emergency Operations Plan in response to continued closure of Yosemite National Park (10 days); January 30, 2021 - Rockslide event
between Midpines and El Portal; Run 140-14 canceled and Run 140-15 traveled as far as Midpines (2 days); February 1, 2021 - Yosemite National Park reopens and YARTS resumes regular service; February 8, 2021 - Yosemite National Park reinstates day-use reservation program (21 days);
March 1, 2021 - Yosemite National Park ends day-use reservation program
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2019/2020: July 1, 2019 - Tioga Pass opens and Hwy 395 Summer service begins; September 15, 2019 - Hwy 41 Summer service ends; September 28-30, 2019 - Tioga Road closed due to severe weather - Hwy 395 suspended (3 days); September 30, 2019 - Hwys 120 and 140 Summer
service ends (Hwy 395 Summer service origingal end date); October 1, 2019 - Hwy 140 Winter service begins; October 6-14, 2019 - Briceburg Fire - Hwy 140 suspended (8 days); October 31, 2019 - Hwy 395 Summer service ends; March 18, 2020 - Yosemite National Park closure due to
COVID-19; March 25-June 10, 2020 - Hwy 140 operates on modified schedule to El Portal due to COVID-19 travel restrictions and closures; June 11, 2020 - Yosemite National Park reopens and Hwy 140 Summer service begins; June 15, 2020 - Tioga Pass opens; June 22, 2020 - Hwys 41, 120
and 395 Summer service begins
2018/2019: July 12-August 25, 2018 - Ferguson Fire - Yosemite National Park closed (27 days); September 14, 2018 - Hwy 41 Summer service ends; September 30, 2018 - Hwys 120, 140 and 395 Summer service ends; October 1, 2018 - Hwy 140 Winter service begins; December 22, 2018January 25, 2019 - Government Shutdown (33 days); May 27-June 1, 2019 - All Hwys closed due to severe storm (4 days)
2017/2018: July 16-August 24, 2017 - Detwiler Fire - Hwy 140 closed at Catheys Valley (21 days); May 12, 2018 - Hwy 140 Winter service ends; May 14, 2018 - Hwys 41, 120 and 140 Summer service begins; May 26, 2018 - Hwy 395 Summer service begins

DECEMBER
2020
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ACCIDENTS/INCIDENTS
There were zero (0) YARTS accidents/incidents for the month of December 1-31, 2020.
ROAD CALLS
There were four (4) road calls during the month of December 1-31, 2020.
12/5/20
replaced.

Run 140-3

Delayed 1.5 hours en route due to mechanical issue east of Planada. Bus

12/5/20
Run 140-4
Delayed 1.75 hours en route due to mechanical issue with bus used on
140-3 east of Planada. Bus replaced. 1st Mechanical.
12-13-20
Run 140-10
nd
2 Mechanical.

Did not run due to mechanical issue at start of the run inside the park.

12-17-20
replaced.

Delayed 1.25 hours due to mechanical issue at Catheys Valley. Bus

Run 140-11

SERVICE DELAYS
There were four (4) notable service delays during the month of December 1-31, 2020. Total on time
service for all corridors was 100% based on YARTS contract criteria.
Hwy 140
12/5/20
replaced.

Run 140-3

Delayed 1.5 hours en route due to mechanical issue east of Planada. Bus

12/5/20
Run 140-4
Delayed 1.75 hours en route due to mechanical issue with bus used on
140-3 east of Planada. Bus replaced. 1st Mechanical.
12-13-20
Run 140-10 Did not run due to mechanical issue at start of the run inside the park.
Because of the day use restrictions put in place by the park in concordance with the state “stay-at-home”
orders, a bus replacement was not able to be sent since that bus would arrive after the park closure or
5pm. There were no reservations and no passengers in the park. 2nd Mechanical.
12-17-20
replaced.

Run 140-11

Delayed 1.25 hours due to mechanical issue at Catheys Valley. Bus

MAMMOTH Hwy 120/395
DNR
SONORA Hwy 120 West
DNR (Did not run).
FRESNO Hwy 41
DNR.
MISSED RUNS
There were zero (0) missed runs during the month of December 1-31, 2020 based on YARTS contract
criteria.
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HWY 140
None.
MAMMOTH Hwy 120/395
DNR
SONORA Hwy 120 West
DNR
FRESNO Hwy 41
DNR
EXTRA RUNS
There were no extra runs during the month of December 1-31, 2020.
MAINTENANCE
YARTS owned and VIA YARTS Buses are kept maintained regularly. Currently buses are rotated
among runs to evenly distribute miles across the fleet. There are twenty (20) accessible YARTS and
VIA buses available to meet ADA requirements. Maintenance reports are submitted to YARTS Transit
Manager for all service and repairs.
YARTS Call Summary
The frequency of YARTS calls to the customer service line continued to decrease in December 2020
from the previous month, but increased from last year. There were 55 calls compared to 39 calls this
time last year. The VIA Contractor is responsible for answering these calls Monday – Friday, except
holidays, from 8am to 5pm PST. Most inquiries were concerning YARTS schedules and park
information. (2) messages were also left on the YARTS voice mail.
The summary of calls by type, not including messages, is as follows:
Hwy 140
Hwy 395/Mammoth
Hwy 120/Sonora
Hwy 41/Fresno
Yosemite Park
Customer Complaints
Miscellaneous (Non-schedule general/other)
Total

38
1
0
2
3
0
11
55

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS AND FOLLOW UP ACTIONS
There was one (1) notable customer concern that arose during the month of December 1-31, 2020
received by email or phone call. All operational issues are addressed and rectified so that they can be
avoided in the future.
12/7/20
Run 140-15
Customer came into the VIA contractor office personally on 12-820. He was upset when he tried to board at Amtrak the previous day, and the driver told him Run 14015 was not going all the way into the park due to the park restricting entry to day use. The gentleman
spoke only Spanish, while the driver spoke English. They had difficulty understanding one another, and
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the customer interpreted the driver’s smile as the driver laughing at him. The customer was also
concerned that he was not receiving accurate information from the driver.
Follow up showed that the language barrier made it difficult for the driver to explain to the rider what
was going on. The office was closed so access to the contractor’s Spanish speaking staff was not
available. The YARTS web site was not accessible on the bus. This driver is always smiling and was in
no way laughing at or belittling the customer. He was doing his best to communicate politely with
limited ability. When the customer came to the VIA contractor office, a Spanish speaking staff member
spoke to the customer and explained that the driver was correct in that Run 140-15 was not going into
the park until further notice. Staff showed the customer the information on the YARTS web site and
explained the driver’s disposition as well.
The customer understood and was satisfied with the explanation and said he would catch earlier runs in
the future until the park reopened.
COVID-19 Update/Cleaning/Sanitization
Extra cleaning and sanitization measures, as well as added protocols for passengers and drivers, continue
to be implemented on all YARTS runs/buses, with seats blocked behind the driver, ongoing sanitization
between runs in the park, and cleaning and fogging following runs at the end of the day. Sanitizer is still
available on buses, and masks continue to be required for both passengers and drivers. Informational
notices remain posted on all YARTS buses with tips for social distancing, proper hygiene and symptom
awareness.
Operators continue to sanitize buses between routes, and cleaning/detail staff continue to fully clean,
disinfect and fog buses daily after runs are completed. Antimicrobial filters have been installed in all
YARTS-owned and VIA-owned buses used for YARTS and are being replaced regularly as per
manufactures guidelines.
Masks, gloves, sanitizer and CDC information are available to the contractor drivers and staff.
Additionally, contractor offices, driver break areas and lobbies are fogged regularly as part of the
building sanitization process at both the Merced and Fresno establishments. YARTS staff and
contractor continue with efforts to comply with health protocols and safety updates in order to maximize
passenger and team care.
Overall, operators remain in good health and are functioning safely. The contractor continues to run
YARTS service with no interruptions or service reductions to date due to driver health issues. All routes
on all corridors are being covered using the regular VIA-YARTS driver team. Drivers have been
directed to follow CDC guidelines if they feel sick or have symptoms and to regularly practice social
distancing in the park during off duty time. VIA is exceedingly thankful for a healthy work force that
continues to keep YARTS running.
The contractor continues to submit reports and information to YARTS staff as requested to include
ridership, service hours, and cleaning/sanitization costs and records.
YARTS Reservation System
Reservations continue to be encouraged for potential YARTS riders. Reservations were manageable and
no capacity issues occurred during December 2020.
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Weather/Construction/Traffic/Road Closure Delays
There were no significant traffic delays during the month of December 1-31, 2020.
Park Closures and Service Suspensions/Reductions
Effective Sunday, December 6, 2020, in support of California Regional Stay Home order, Yosemite restricted
park visitation to day use activities only, with the park being open to the public from 8 am to 5 pm. Lodging and
campgrounds are temporarily closed, some services and facilities are limited, and shuttles are not operating.

All entrance stations have barrier gates that are being closed and locked.
On the regular schedule, Run 140-15 normally goes all the way into the park, arriving around 8:30pm
and exiting the gates around 9-9:15pm on the return back to the contractor yard. Since the run would be
entering the park after 5pm when there would not be access through the gate, Run 140-15 is only going
as far as El Portal until the park reopens. The park plans to reopen after the order is lifted, at which time
Run 140-15 will resume normal operations.
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ACCIDENTS/INCIDENTS
There were zero (0) YARTS accidents/incidents for the month of January 1-31, 2021.
ROAD CALLS
There was one (1)) road call during the month of January 1-31, 2021.
1/13/21
Run 140-1
Bus replaced.

Delayed 1.25 hours en route due to mechanical issue in Catheys Valley.

SERVICE DELAYS
There was one (1) notable service delay during the month of January 1-31, 2021. Total on time service
for all corridors was 100% based on YARTS contract criteria.
Hwy 140
1/13/21
Run 140-1
Bus replaced.

Delayed 1.25 hours en route due to mechanical issue in Catheys Valley.

MAMMOTH Hwy 120/395
DNR (Did not run).
SONORA Hwy 120 West
DNR
FRESNO Hwy 41
DNR.
MISSED RUNS
There were zero (0) missed runs during the month of January 1-31, 2021 based on YARTS contract
criteria.
HWY 140
None.
MAMMOTH Hwy 120/395
DNR
SONORA Hwy 120 West
DNR
FRESNO Hwy 41
DNR
EXTRA RUNS
There were no extra runs during the month of January 1-31, 2021.
MAINTENANCE
YARTS owned and VIA YARTS Buses are kept maintained regularly. Currently buses are rotated
among runs to evenly distribute miles across the fleet. There are nineteen (19) accessible YARTS and
VIA buses available to meet ADA requirements. Maintenance reports are submitted to YARTS Transit
Manager for all service and repairs.
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YARTS Call Summary
The frequency of YARTS calls to the customer service line increased slightly in January 2021 from the
previous month and from last year. There were 78 calls compared to 57 calls this time last year. The
VIA Contractor is responsible for answering these calls Monday – Friday, except holidays, from 8am to
5pm PST. Most inquiries were concerning YARTS schedules. Three (3) messages were also left on the
YARTS voice mail.
The summary of calls by type, not including messages, is as follows:
Hwy 140
Hwy 395/Mammoth
Hwy 120/Sonora
Hwy 41/Fresno
Yosemite Park
Customer Complaints
Miscellaneous (Non-schedule general/other)
Total

43
2
1
3
2
0
27
78

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS AND FOLLOW UP ACTIONS
There were two (2) notable customer concerns that arose during the month of January 1-31, 2021
received by email, phone call or in person. All operational issues are addressed and rectified so that they
can be avoided in the future.
1/20/21
Run 140-15 A regular rider said that the driver of Run 140-15 was not pulling all the
way into the Bug Resort stop, but was instead pulling over off the road with the exit door facing Hwy
140. Rider also said this driver sometimes forgets the card reader, making it difficult for passengers
who do not carry cash to make payments.
Manager followed up with the driver and advised that this was a safety issue to disembark passengers
along Hwy 140 where riders have to alight on the same side as oncoming traffic, especially in the dark.
Drivers have specific instructions for pulling into every stop and should follow those procedures exactly,
unless unable to do so for safety or access reasons. Driver was also reminded to take square device
every time and to contact Dispatch if the device was inoperable or there were other issues so that
attempts could be made to fix the device before the run departure.
This driver will be monitored periodically to ensure they are following procedures. Passenger was
encouraged to report subsequent violations, if any, as soon as they occur so proper follow up can be
performed.
1/22/21
Customer came into the VIA contractor office personally on 1/22/21. The gentleman
spoke only Spanish, so spoke with a Spanish-speaking VIA staff member. The passenger is a regular
rider who works in Yosemite and who was trying to get at least to El Portal using YARTS. The rider
was unaware that the schedule had changed and that the reduced schedule was in effect. The contractor
advised him that YARTS was running minimum schedules due to the park closure in response to
adverse weather conditions. VIA Staff suggested the rider get on the alert system for future reference or
check the YARTS web site before traveling. The rider did not have text message capability, so could
not receive the alerts, and also did not use the internet, so could not access the web site for schedule
changes and updates. Rider was advised that schedules change on a moment’s notice when there are
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circumstances beyond YARTS’ control that hinder running the schedule as usual. Suggested he enable
text or get a friend who might be able to receive alerts or check the web site for him and advise him of
changes. Rider was given the updated emergency schedule for the next day. Rider said he would take
YARTS the following day.
COVID-19 Update/Cleaning/Sanitization
Extra cleaning and sanitization measures, as well as added protocols for passengers and drivers, continue
to be implemented on all YARTS runs/buses, with seats blocked behind the driver, ongoing sanitization
between runs in the park, and cleaning, disinfecting, and fogging following runs at the end of the day.
Sanitizer is still available on buses, and masks continue to be required for both passengers and drivers.
Informational notices remain posted on all YARTS buses with tips for social distancing, proper hygiene
and symptom awareness.
Operators continue to sanitize buses between routes, and cleaning/detail staff continue to fully clean,
disinfect and fog buses daily after runs are completed. Antimicrobial filters have been installed in all
YARTS-owned and VIA-owned buses used for YARTS and are being replaced regularly as per
manufactures guidelines.
Masks, gloves, sanitizer and CDC information are available to the contractor drivers and staff.
Additionally, contractor offices, driver break areas and lobbies are fogged regularly as part of the
building sanitization process at both the Merced and Fresno establishments. YARTS staff and
contractor continue with efforts to comply with health protocols and safety updates in order to maximize
passenger and team care.
Contractor team continues to remain in good health and function fully and safely, running YARTS
service without service reductions or interruptions to date. All routes on all corridors are being covered
using the regular VIA-YARTS driver team. Drivers have been directed to follow CDC guidelines if
they feel sick or have symptoms and to regularly practice social distancing in the park during off duty
time. VIA is quite grateful for a healthy work force that continues to keep YARTS on the road.
The contractor continues to submit reports and information to YARTS staff as requested to include
ridership, service hours, and cleaning/sanitization costs and records.
YARTS Reservation System
Reservations continue to be encouraged for potential YARTS riders. Reservations were manageable and
no capacity issues occurred during January 2021. The Park announced that it would re-implement the
reservation system for vehicles entering the park in order to control crowding and attendance at the
Horsetail Fall event. This reservation system would be in effect beginning February 8th and would last
until the end of February. This is seeming to cause an increase in YARTS reservations, especially
during the weekends/holiday in February.
Weather/Construction/Traffic/ Delays/Park Closures and Service Suspensions/Reductions
Effective Sunday, December 6, 2020, in support of California Regional Stay Home order, Yosemite restricted
park visitation to day use activities only, with the park being open to the public from 8 am to 5 pm. These conditions
continued through January 31, 2021, with lodging and campgrounds temporarily closed, as well as limitations for other
services. Park shuttles continued to be inoperable. All entrance stations had barrier gates that were being

closed and locked after hours. All runs, with the exception of Run 140-15, ran normal winter service
into the park. Because Run 140-15 would enter the park after the established hours of closure, this run
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went only as far as El Portal. The park plans to reopen after the order is lifted, at which time Run 140-15
will resume normal operations.
On January 19, 2021, the Park closed to all visitors due to adverse weather, high winds and storm
concerns. YARTS ran runs as far as El Portal, with the exception of Run 8, which was cancelled due to
the driver needed to stand down due to windy conditions in the Mariposa area. The park subsequently
announced that they would remain closed until further notice due to power outages, and downed trees
and power lines, among other unsafe conditions. YARTS continued operating all runs as far as El Portal
through January 21, 2021.
On January 22, 2021, YARTS began running the Emergency Minimum Schedule II, which included
operating Runs 140-1, -13, and -15 inbound to El Portal, and Runs -2, -4, and -14 outbound from El
Portal and Midpines. This schedule ran from January 22nd through January 29th.
On January 30, 2021, Runs 140-4, and -13 ran normally. Then, a rockslide occurred between Midpines
and El Portal, which prohibited Run 140-15 from going past Midpines. Additionally, the driver
scheduled to do Run 140-14, was stuck in El Portal, unable to exit via Hwy 140 to Merced, or through
the park. Run 140-14 was cancelled and did not run on this day. An alert was sent to advise potential
riders of the cancellation. Though Hwy 41 was open temporarily as an emergency exit for all traffic, it
was dark, and the highway was R2 with chains required. Contractor contacted Yosemite Dispatch who
shared more information on the road conditions and the safety hazards.
The contractor, in collaboration with YARTS Staff, reviewed the report and decided it would be best to
lodge the driver overnight in El Portal at Yosemite View Lodge and wait until the following day when
the driver could travel more safely in daylight on whatever road was open. On the following day,
January 31st, Hwy 140 continued to be closed, with runs going only as far as Midpines on a minimum
schedule. The park was escorting traffic out of the park via Highway 41. However, when VIA
contacted Yosemite Dispatch to find out if it was safe for the bus to proceed, they were advised that at
this time the bus would not be allowed to exit the park due to conditions believed to be too treacherous
for a bus, even under escort. The driver remained in El Portal until late evening, at which time Hwy 140
reopened, and the driver was able to return to Merced via the normal route.
While the Park was closed, on January 25, 2021, the stay-at-home order was lifted for California,
opening the door for giving visitors access to the park when it was safe to do so. The park announced
that Yosemite and limited lodging and services would reopen on Monday, February 1st without entrance
limitations. Full Winter YARTS service was scheduled to resume on February 1, 2021.
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ACCIDENTS/INCIDENTS
There were zero (0) YARTS accidents/incidents for the month of February 1-28, 2021.
ROAD CALLS
There was one (1)) road call during the month of February 1-28, 2021.
2/9/21
Run 140-7
Bus replaced.

Delayed 1.5 hours en route due to mechanical issue near Yaqui Gulch.

SERVICE DELAYS
There were two (2) notable service delays during the month of February 1-28, 2021. Total on time
service for all corridors was 100% based on YARTS contract criteria.
Hwy 140
2/9/21
Run 140-7
Bus replaced.

Delayed 1.5 hours en route due to mechanical issue near Yaqui Gulch.

2/21/21

Delayed 20 minutes due to a stalled train at Union Pacific Tracks.

Run 140-13

MAMMOTH Hwy 120/395
DNR (Did not run).
SONORA Hwy 120 West
DNR
FRESNO Hwy 41
DNR.
MISSED RUNS
There were zero (0) missed runs during the month of February 1-28, 2021 based on YARTS contract
criteria.
HWY 140
None.
MAMMOTH Hwy 120/395
DNR
SONORA Hwy 120 West
DNR
FRESNO Hwy 41
DNR
EXTRA RUNS
There were no extra runs during the month of February 1-28, 2021.
MAINTENANCE
YARTS owned and VIA YARTS Buses are kept maintained regularly. Currently buses are rotated
among runs to evenly distribute miles across the fleet. There are nineteen (19) accessible YARTS and
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VIA buses available to meet ADA requirements. Maintenance reports are submitted to YARTS Transit
Manager for all service and repairs.
YARTS Call Summary
The frequency of YARTS calls to the customer service line increased in February 2021 from the
previous month and from last year. There were 229 calls compared to 20 calls this time last year. The
VIA Contractor is responsible for answering these calls Monday – Friday, except holidays, from 8am to
5pm PST. Most inquiries were concerning YARTS schedules and park info on the Horsetail Falls.
Eight (8) messages were also left on the YARTS voice mail.
The summary of calls by type, not including messages, is as follows:
Hwy 140
Hwy 395/Mammoth
Hwy 120/Sonora
Hwy 41/Fresno
Yosemite Park
Customer Complaints
Miscellaneous (Non-schedule general/other)
Total

157
15
6
15
3
1
32
229

CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS AND FOLLOW UP ACTIONS
There were two (2) notable customer concerns that arose during the month of February 1-28, 2021
received by email, phone call or in person. All operational issues are addressed and rectified so that they
can be avoided in the future.
2/4/21
Run unknown
Rider complained that driver would not make change for a twenty.
Caller was informed that drivers do not make change, so exact change should be brought. This
information is posted on board buses as well as on the YARTS website.
2/14/21
Run 140-10
Amtrak rider missed their connection and had to take a later train
due to an hour delay exiting the park, so was requesting a refund from Amtrak. Amtrak wanted to know
the reason for the delay.
Follow up showed that several runs were delayed exiting the park due to traffic probably stemming from
the Horsetail Falls event occurring in the park.
KUDOS
2/23/21
A voicemail was received by YARTS Staff with compliments for the YARTS service.
Rider said she is thankful for the service and will be taking the bus for the third time this year. She
loves the drivers, loves the buses, and appreciates the transportation from Merced to Yosemite.
COVID-19 Update/Cleaning/Sanitization
Extra cleaning and sanitization measures, as well as added protocols for passengers and drivers, continue
to be in effect on all YARTS runs/buses, with seats blocked behind the driver, ongoing sanitization
between runs in the park, and cleaning, disinfecting, and fogging following runs at the end of the day.
Sanitizer is still available on buses, and masks continue to be required for both passengers and drivers.
Informational notices remain posted on all YARTS buses with tips for social distancing, proper hygiene
and symptom awareness.
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Operators continue to sanitize buses between routes, and cleaning/detail staff continue to fully clean,
disinfect and fog buses daily after runs are completed. Antimicrobial filters have been installed in all
YARTS-owned and VIA-owned buses used for YARTS and are being replaced regularly as per
manufactures guidelines.
Masks, gloves, sanitizer and CDC information are available to the contractor drivers and staff.
Additionally, contractor offices, driver break areas and lobbies are fogged regularly as part of the
building sanitization process at both the Merced and Fresno establishments. YARTS staff and
contractor continue with efforts to comply with health protocols and safety updates in order to maximize
passenger and team care.
Contractor team stays in good health and is continuing to function fully and safely, running YARTS
service without service reductions or interruptions to date. All routes are being covered using the regular
VIA-YARTS driver team. Drivers have been directed to follow CDC guidelines if they feel sick or have
symptoms and to regularly practice social distancing in the park during off duty time. VIA is extremely
grateful for a healthy work force keeping YARTS viable. Drivers, Dispatch staff and other team
members have been encouraged to receive vaccines when they become eligible, and VIA contractor has
offered to cover any costs incurred by it’s employees.
The contractor continues to submit reports and information to YARTS staff as requested to include
ridership, service hours, and cleaning/sanitization costs and records.
YARTS Reservation System
Reservations continue to be encouraged for potential YARTS riders. Reservations increased
significantly in February 2021. Effective February 8-28, 2021, the reservation system was reimplemented for vehicles entering the park in order to control crowding and attendance at the Horsetail
Fall event. The increased YARTS reservations may have been due in part to the unavailability of
reservations slots to enter the park in personal vehicles, especially on weekends and the holiday.
There were capacity issues for 2 of the weekends in February. Because there are 4 runs going into the
park, but only 3 connecting returning runs leaving the park, when the 4 runs are at capacity, the 3
outbound runs have to exceed capacity to accommodate riders brought into the park on YARTS.
Several runs had to transport 40 passengers out. Run 15 was kept available as a sweeper run to ensure
that no passengers were left stranded in the park. Drivers were advised to not exceed 40 passengers and
have no standees, but to advise dispatch if the last run had to leave passengers so that Run 15 could be
advised to pick up any remaining overages.
Weather/Construction/Traffic/ Delays/Park Closures and Service Suspensions/Reductions
The park returned to being open 24 hours on Monday, February 1st without entrance limitations. The
park had been open limited hours to comply with the California statewide stay-at-home order directed in
December 2020. Full Winter YARTS service resumed on February 1, 2021 in conjunction with the
park’s recommencing normal operations.
There were substantial delays of up to 1 hour exiting the park during the month of February due to
traffic from the Horsetail Falls event and increased vehicles in the park.
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Corridor
Merced - Hwy 140

Corridor
Merced - Hwy 140

Corridor
Merced - Hwy 140

Dec-20

Dec-19

% Decrease
(compare to last
year)

769

6299

(87.79%)

336

Number
of Runs

Ridership

Number
of Runs

Jan-21

Jan-20

% Decrease
(compare to last
year)

462

4671

(90.11%)

282

Number
of Runs
312

Ridership

Feb-21

Feb-20

% Decrease
(compare to last
year)

2162

3582

(39.64%)

Ridership
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ITEM 4b
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Mary-Michal Rawling, Public Affairs Manager

RE:

Information: YARTS Quarterly Marketing and Media Update

SUMMARY
This report serves to keep the AAC and YARTS JPA Board informed of work done to promote the YARTS
service.
REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
BACKGROUND
The Public Affairs department at MCAG works to support the YARTS service through various media and
promotional opportunities. The attached report is a summary of work done in the third quarter of fiscal
year 2020-21.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
October 11, 2020: YARTS Board received a presentation of first quarter marketing and media summary
report.
January 11, 2021: YARTS Board received a presentation of second quarter marketing and media summary
report.
UPDATES
Work this quarter has been focused on the availability of free passes to Merced and Mariposa County
residents through the LCTOP program, reminders about operational changes in place due to COVID-19, and
the addition of Tuolumne County to the YARTS Joint Powers Authority. In addition, the Public Affairs
department continues to provide public messaging regarding service modifications due to gate/park
closures that were a result of natural events along with other service announcements and reminders.
FISCAL IMPACT
$200,000 in CMAQ funds is budgeted for FY 2020-21 marketing, advertising, and promotional items.
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REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
ATTACHMENT

3rd Quarter FY 2020/21 Media and marketing summary report
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3rd Quarter 2020/21 FY YARTS Media and Marketing Summary Report
PRESS RELEASES, ARTICLES, PUBLIC NOTICES
Month

Publication

Topic

Jan
Jan
March
March

MCAG Year in Review newsletter
YGP – Winter newsletter
Press release
MCAG Newsletter

2020 YARTS service highlights
LCTOP passes available
Tuolumne County joins YARTS
LCTOP passes available

TV, RADIO, SOCIAL MEDIA, OTHER UNPAID MEDIA
Month

Publication

Topic

Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Jan
Feb
Feb
Feb
Feb
Feb
Feb
March
March
March
March
March
March
March
March
March
March
March

Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram
Twitter, Facebook, Instagram

Happy New Year
YNP gate closure times
MCAG Year in Review
Recreate responsibly
Please wear your masks
COVID mitigation/CDC
Rider alert: High winds/roads closed
Park repost: High winds/roads closed
CalOES – Earthquake warning system
Rider alert: roads closed/El Portal term.
Rider alert: emergency schedule
Bernie Sanders meme
Rider alert: emergency schedule
Rider alert: emergency schedule
Rider alert: resume regular schedule
No day pass needed on YARTS
Masks required to ride
LCTOP passes
How to wear masks
Capacity limited, make a reservation
Hello March
Masks required to ride
LCTOP passes
International Women’s Day
Capacity limited, make a reservation
Daylight savings
Monday motivation
Transit operator appreciation
Monday motivation
Thank you wearing masks
No Easter service
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PAID ADVERTISEMENTS
Month

Publication

Topic

Jan
Feb
Feb
Feb/March

National Park Trips
Merced County Times (online)
Merced Sun-Star (online)
Mariposa Gazette (print & online)

Brochures in Yosemite trip planners
LCTOP passes available
LCTOP passes available
LCTOP passes available

OTHER
Mariposa Co Business Assoc. meeting – monthly – verbal announcements on YARTS service/updates
Set up and facilitate YARTS JPA Board meetings via Zoom
Created backgrounds for virtual meetings
Transitioned YARTS agendas to MCAG website/Agenda Center for better public access
RTAP featured YARTS in the January 2021 article “Transportation to Scenic Destinations”
https://www.nationalrtap.org/News/Best-Practices-Spotlight/Current-Transportation-to-ScenicDestinations
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ITEM 4c
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Kate Molthen, Assistant Transit Manager

RE:

Information: YARTS/Mariposa County Annual Agreement for Services – Fiscal Year 2021-22

SUMMARY
YARTS is required to contract with its member agencies for services, when requested. Attached for
your information is the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 agreement between YARTS and Mariposa County for
services and funding.
REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
BACKGROUND
YARTS and Mariposa County enter into an agreement annually to spell out terms of funding provided
to YARTS and updates to the services being provided by YARTS. There are no changes from the FY
2020-21 Agreement for Services between YARTS and Mariposa County. The Executive Director was
authorized, by Resolution 2018/01-22-02, to execute the agreement when the review was completed.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
July 1, 2020: The MCAG Executive Director signed the FY 2020-21 YARTS/Mariposa County Annual
Agreement for Services.
NEXT STEPS
Execute Agreement and send to Mariposa County for full execution.
FISCAL IMPACT
The $190,000 in Member County contribution is budgeted as a revenue for Fiscal Year 2021-22.
REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.

032

ATTACHMENTS
Draft Mariposa County/YARTS Annual Agreement for Services, Fiscal Year 2021 - 2022 (unsigned)
YARTS 2021 - 2022 Work Plan
Highway 140 summer schedules
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AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PUBLIC TRANSIT SERVICES TO AND FROM
MARIPOSA COUNTY
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this __1st___ day of __July_____,
2021, by and between the County of Mariposa, a political subdivision of the State of California,
(“County”), and Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (“Contractor”), pursuant to the
following terms and conditions.
W I T N E S S E T H:

1.

TERM

The term of this Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2021 and terminate on June 30, 2022
unless extended as provided by this Agreement.
2.

SERVICES

Contractor shall provide public transit services to and from Mariposa County as described in
Exhibit A, “Scope of Work,” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
Contractor shall provide all staffing and materials necessary to perform the Scope of Work.
3.

COMPENSATION

Contractor shall be compensated for services performed in an amount not to exceed One
Hundred Ninety-One Thousand Dollars and no/100 ($191,000.00). County shall pay the above
sum quarterly, in advance, with the first payment being due on the 1st day of July, 2021, in the
amount of Forty-Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($47,750) and payments
thereafter being due on the 1st day of October, 2021; 1st of January, 2022; and the 1st day of
April, 2022, each in the amount of Forty-Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars
($47,750).
4.

INSURANCE

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the agreement insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.
A.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:
(1)
Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office (ISO)Form CG
00 01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations,
property damage, bodily injury and personal and advertising injury with limits no less than
$2,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit
1
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shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.
(2)
Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto, (Code 1),
or if Contractor has no owned autos, hired (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9), with limits
no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
(3)
Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $2,000,000 per
accident for bodily injury or disease.
B.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provision:
(1)
Additional Insured Status: The County, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability
arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including
materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General
liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance
(at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not available, through the addition of both
CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 forms if a later edition is used).
(2)
Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this Agreement, the Contractor’s
insurance overage shall be primary insurance as respects the County, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County, its
officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and
shall not contribute with it.
(3)
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that
coverage shall not be canceled, except with notice to the County.
(4)
Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to County a waiver of any right
to subrogation which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against the County by virtue of
the payment of any loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of
whether or not the County has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.
(5)
Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured
retentions must be declared to and approved by the Entity. The Entity may require the Contractor
to purchase coverage with a lower deductible or retention or provide proof of ability to pay
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the
retention.
(6)
Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current
A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A: VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the County.
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(7)
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish the County with original
certificates and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the County before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required
documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide
them. The County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required
insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.
(8)
Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors
maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that
County is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors.
(9)
Special Risks or Circumstances: County reserves the right to modify these
requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer,
coverage, or other special circumstances.
5.

HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall hold harmless, defend at its own expense,
and indemnify Entity its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, against any and all liability,
claims, losses, damages, or expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, arising from all acts
or omissions to act of contractor or its officers, agents, or employees in rendering services under
this contract; excluding, however, such liability, claims, losses, damages, or expenses arising
from Entity’s sole negligence or willful acts.
6.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

It is the expressed intention of the parties that Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee, agent, joint venturer or partner of County. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of employer and employee
between County and Contractor or any employee or agent of Contractor. Both parties
acknowledge that Contractor is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes. Contractor
shall retain the right to perform services for others during the term of this Agreement.
7.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CALPERS)

In the event that Contractor or any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor providing
services under this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the Public
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) to be eligible for enrollment in CalPERS as an
employee of the County, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless County for the
payment of any employee and/or employer contributions for CalPERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any
penalties and interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of
County.
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8.

STATE AND FEDERAL TAXES

As Contractor is not County’s employee, Contractor is responsible for paying all required state
and federal taxes. In particular:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
9.

County will not withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor’s payments;
County will not make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on
behalf of Contractor;
County will not withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor;
County will not make disability insurance contributions on behalf of Contractor;
County will not obtain workers’ compensation insurance on behalf of Contractor.

ASSIGNMENT

It is understood and agreed that this Contract contemplates personal performance by the
Contractor and is based upon a determination of its unique personal competence and experience
and upon its specialized personal knowledge. Assignments of any or all rights, duties or
obligations of the Contractor under this Contract will be permitted only with the express written
consent of the County.
10.

NOTICE

Any and all notices, reports or other communications to be given to County or Contractor shall
be given to the persons representing the respective parties at the following addresses:

CONTRACTOR:
Yosemite Area Regional Transportation
System
369 W. 18th Street
Merced, CA 95340

11.

COUNTY:
Mariposa County Public Works Dept.
4639 Ben Hur Road
Mariposa, CA 95338

COMPLIANCE

Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinance and regulations
applicable to Contractor’s performance under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, laws
related to prevailing wages. Specifically, Contractor shall not engage in unlawful employment
discrimination, including, but not limited to, discrimination based upon a person’s race, religion,
color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, gender,
citizenship or sexual orientation, as prohibited by state or federal law.
12.

PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

Contractor is aware that this Agreement and any documents provided to the County may be
subject to the California Public Records Act and may be disclosed to members of the public upon
Page 4 of 8
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request. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to clearly identify information in those
documents that it considers to be confidential under the California Public Records Act. To the
extent that the County agrees with that designation, such information will be held in confidence
whenever possible. All other information will be considered public.
13.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement and supersedes all prior agreements and representations with respect to the subject
matter hereof. This Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment hereto, executed
by both parties; however, matters concerning the scope of services which do not affect the agreed
price may be modified by mutual written consent of the Contractor and the Public Works
Director. If there are exhibits attached hereto, and a conflict exists between the terms of this
Agreement and any exhibit, the terms of this Agreement shall control.
14.

ENFORCEABILITY AND SEVERABILITY

The invalidity or enforceability of any term or provisions of this Agreement shall not, unless
otherwise specified, affect the validity or enforceability of any other term or provision, which
shall remain in full force and effect.
15.

TERMINATION AND RIGHTS UPON TERMINATION

A.
This Agreement may be terminated upon mutual written consent of the parties, or
as a remedy available at law or in equity. In the event of the termination of this Agreement,
Contractor shall immediately be paid all fees earned as of the effective date of termination.
B.
Either party may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon 180 calendar
days’ written notice to the other party. Upon termination for convenience, Contractor shall be
entitled to compensation for services performed acceptably up to the effective date of
termination, as set forth in Exhibit B.
C.
Should either party default in the performance of this Agreement or materially
breach any of its provisions, the non-breaching party, at its option, may terminate this Agreement
by giving written notification to the other party. The termination date shall be the effective date
of the notice. For the purposes of this subsection, default or material breach of this Agreement
shall include, but not be limited to, any of the following: failure to perform required services in a
timely manner, willful destruction of County property, dishonesty, or theft, and failure to make
payments as required by Section 3 of this Agreement.
16.

NO WAIVER

The failure to exercise any right to enforce any remedy contained in this Agreement shall not
operate as to be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of the exercise of such right or
remedy, or of any other right or remedy herein contained.
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17.

DISPUTES

Should it become necessary for a party to this Agreement to enforce any of the provisions hereof,
the prevailing party in any claim or action shall be entitled to reimbursement for all expenses so
incurred, including reasonable attorney’s fees.
It is agreed by the parties hereto that unless otherwise expressly waived by them, any action
brought to enforce any of the provisions hereof or for declaratory relief hereunder shall be filed
and remain in a court of competent jurisdiction in the County of Mariposa, State of California.
18.

CAPTIONS

The captions of this Agreement are for convenience in reference only and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation,
construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.
19.

NUMBER AND GENDER

In this Agreement, the neutral gender includes the feminine and masculine, the singular includes
the plural, and the word “person” includes corporations, partnerships, firms or associations,
wherever the context so requires.
20.

MANDATORY AND PERMISSIVE

“Shall” is mandatory. “May” is permissive.
21.

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

All representations, covenants and warranties specifically set forth in this Agreement, by or on
behalf of, or for the benefit of any or all of the parties hereto, shall be binding upon and inure to
the benefit of such party, its successors and assigns.
22.

COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed simultaneously and in several counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
23.

OTHER DOCUMENTS

The parties agree that they shall cooperate in good faith to accomplish the object of this
Agreement and, to that end, agree to execute and deliver such other and further instruments and
documents as may be necessary and convenient to the fulfillment of these purposes.
24.

CONTROLLING LAW

The validity, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall be controlled by and
construed under the laws of the State of California.
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25.

AUTHORITY

Each party and each party’s signatory warrant and represent that each has full authority and
capacity to enter into this Agreement in accordance with all requirements of law. The parties
also warrant that any signed amendment or modification to the agreement shall comply with all
requirements of law, including capacity and authority to amend or modify the Agreement.
26.

NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT

This Agreement has been arrived at through negotiation between the parties. Neither party is to
be deemed the party which prepared this Agreement within the meaning of California Civil Code
section 1654. Each party represents and warrants that in executing this Agreement it does so
with full knowledge of the rights and duties it may have with respect to the other party. Each
party also warrants and represents that it has received independent legal advice from its attorney
with respect to the matters set forth in this Agreement and the rights and duties arising out of this
Agreement, or that such party willingly foregoes any such consultation.
27.

NO RELIANCE ON REPRESENTATIONS

Each party warrants and represents that it is not relying and has not relied upon any
representation or statement made by the other party with respect to the facts involved or its rights
or duties. Each party understands and agrees that the facts relevant, or believed to be relevant to
this Agreement, have been independently verified. Each party further understands that it is
responsible for verifying the representations of law or fact provided by the other party.
28.

WARRANTY

County has relied upon the professional ability and training of Contractor as a material
inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor hereby warrants that all work shall be
performed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and standards as well as
the requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, it being understood that acceptance
of Contractor’s work by County shall not operate as a waiver or release.
29.

FUNDING AVAILABILITY

It is mutually agreed that if the County budget of the current fiscal year and/or any subsequent
fiscal years covered under this Agreement does not appropriate sufficient funds for this
Agreement, this Agreement shall be of no further force and effect. In this event, the County shall
have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Contractor or to furnish any other considerations
under this Agreement and Contractor shall not be obligated to perform any provisions of this
Agreement. Contractor’s assumption of risk of possible non-appropriation is part of the
consideration for this Agreement. County budget decisions are subject to the discretion of the
Board of Supervisors.
If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the County budget for purposes of this
Agreement, the County shall have the option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability
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occurring to the County, or offer an Agreement amendment to Contractor to reflect the reduced
amount.IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and
year first written above.
COUNTY OF MARIPOSA

CONTRACTOR

___________________________________
Kevin Cann, Chair
Mariposa County Board of Supervisors

________________________________
Stacie Guzman , Executive Director
Yosemite Area Regional Transportation
System

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

______________________________________
Rene LaRoche
Clerk of the Board

_________________________________
Steven W. Dahlem
County Counsel
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WORK PLAN
YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (YARTS) MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES
Purpose:
The Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) contracts with Merced County
Association of Governments (MCAG) to provide management, planning, and administrative services
to the transit system, including oversight of the day-to-day operations of the transit system.
Discussion:
Entering its 21st year of operation in May of 2021,YARTS provides an alternative to driving in the
Yosemite region for travelers and locals. It operates year-round on the Hwy 140 corridor between
Merced and Yosemite National Park, through Mariposa County and during the summer, June through
September, on the Hwy 120/395 corridors between Yosemite Valley and Mono County destinations
and between Tuolumne County destinations and Yosemite Valley.
As of May 2015, through contract with the Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG), YARTS now also
operates on Hwy 41 between Fresno and Yosemite National Park during the summer (May – Sept.).
Tasks:
610 – Management, Administration and Planning
Provide administration functions to the YARTS Joint Powers Authority (JPA) Board and the YARTS Authority
Advisory Committee (AAC), at the direction of the YARTS Board.
• Prepare the YARTS Work Plan
• Prepare agendas for the YARTS Board and the AAC
• Confer with Board Chair to create the Board agenda
• File notices of Public Hearings as needed
• Staff Board and AAC meetings and facilitate video conferencing as needed
• Record and prepare the minutes from Board and AAC meetings
• Implement and coordinate Board directives
• Maintain the YARTS accounting records
• Prepare financial updates for the Board and the AAC for each regular meeting or at least quarterly
• Contract for and complete an annual audit
• Prepare and administer the approved YARTS budget
• Identify, apply for, and administer grants to fund operating and capital projects
• Administer YARTS contracts and agreements and do billing for same, I.E. Amtrak, NPS, VIA,
Greyhound, Fresno COG
• Monitor service contractor performance
• File required state and federal reports
• Implement on-board rider satisfaction survey annually, typically during the busier visitor season
• Annually review the operating schedules and demand by run. Recommend changes as needed
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•
•
•

•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•

Contract for liability and property insurance coverage
Participate in Social Services Transportations Advisory Committee (SSTAC) meetings in the three
member-county service areas
Maintain working relationships with elected and appointed state and federal officials, Yosemite
National Park management, Park Concessionaire management, Amtrak, environmental
organizations and member-county staff
Maintain contractual agreements with Greyhound Bus Lines and Amtrak to share customers and
jointly promote public transit to Yosemite and the region
Continue to work with the County of Tuolumne, TCTC, on the service on Hwy 120 between
Tuolumne County destinations and Yosemite NP.
Maintain YARTS-owned property, i.e. replacing broken glass at shelters as needed, clean and
remove graffiti and stickers from shelters, review maintenance on YARTS-owned buses with
contractor
Under written agreement with the National Park Service, work with Yosemite NP to establish
temporary “summer peak demand” service in Tuolumne, Mono and Mariposa/Merced Counties.
This project includes working with locals in each project county to determine their priorities and
preferences, writing schedules, preparing and distributing marketing materials, and attending
regular bi-weekly (phone) meetings with park staff to evaluate and direct the effort.
Participate in CalACT legislative meetings (phone) to stay current on legislation that effects rural
public transit and attend CalACT semi-annual meetings for professional growth and improvement
Work with the Board to establish the appropriate number of vehicles in the YARTS-owned fleet
Start the process to establish an Acquisition/Replacement fund within the YARTS budget
Seek funding from the most advantageous source for the purchase of buses to grow the YARTSowned fleet to the level directed by the Board
Create a Capital Acquisition/Replacement fund within the YARTS Budget.

621 – Fresno COG Contract
• Administer the requirements of the agreement between YARTS and the Fresno Council of
Governments (FCOG) for the provision of public transit on Hwy 41 between Fresno and Yosemite
National Park as specified in a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between YARTS and FCOG.
• Coordinate regularly with the FCOG project manager.
• Provide timely billing, as specified in the agreement, to FCOG seeking reimbursement for work
performed on their behalf.
• Prepare a quarterly financial report to FCOG
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625 – Outreach and Marketing
Provide outreach and marketing efforts to promote ridership.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Schedules - Create, distribute and install seasonal schedules and brochures, and other
promotional materials, as needed
Administer all aspects of the YARTS marketing budget from identifying funding sources through
approving the payment of invoices
Ticket vendors – Administer ticket sales through contracted vendors; includes distribution of
tickets, review of sales reports, and collection of revenue
Public Information – Prepare and distribute news releases to media contacts as appropriate
Create and place advertising in appropriate venues
Public Appearances – seek opportunities for and make public speaking and other appearances
where possible to market the transit service
Maintain the YARTS web site and continue the ongoing remodel/update of the site
Refine and market the ticket reservation program
Sustain the social media marketing efforts
Maintain YARTS’ presence on Google Transit
Respond to rider comments and complaints
Maintain a good working relationship with the Gateway Partners organization
Conduct “Fam Tours” for media and local stakeholders annually
Maintain contact with tour operators who use YARTS in their business plans;
Build and/or retain strong relationships with connecting transit providers who serve the Yosemite
region including, but not limited to, Greyhound, Amtrak, Boutique Air, United Airlines, Fresno
Airport, ESTA, Merced Co. “The Bus”, Fresno Area Express, Madera County Transit, and Tuolumne
County Transit.
Under written agreement with the Park Service, conduct marketing efforts toward public use of
the “peak period” expanded transit service during the summer months.

Cost:
$560,629
Funding: YARTS
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Highway 140
Summer 2021 Service
Effective: May 17, 2021 - September 30, 2021

MERCED → YOSEMITE
Merced / Catheys
Valley

Location

Run 140-1

Run 140-3

Merced Airport

5:00 AM

Mariposa/Midpines

Run 140-9

Run 140-11

Run 140-13

Run 140-15

6:55 AM

8:45 AM

10:30 AM

5:25 PM

6:00 AM

7:10 AM

9:00 AM

10:45 AM

5:40 PM

Merced Amtrak

5:40 AM

6:10 AM

7:20 AM

9:10 AM

10:55 AM

5:50 PM

Catheys Valley

6:10 AM

6:40 AM

7:50 AM

REQ

REQ

6:20 PM

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

6:25 AM

6:55 AM

8:05 AM

8:55 AM

9:55 AM

11:40 AM

6:35 PM

6:28 AM

6:58 AM

8:08 AM

8:58 AM

9:58 AM

11:43 AM

6:38 PM

6:31 AM

7:01 AM

8:11 AM

9:01 AM

10:01 AM

11:46 AM

6:41 PM

6:43 AM

7:13 AM

8:23 AM

9:13 AM

10:13 AM

11:58 AM

6:53 PM

Midtown Mariposa

El Portal

Run 140-7

5:30 AM

Merced Transpo

Mariposa Fairgrounds

5:40 AM

Roadside Rest Stop
Mariposa Park & Ride

5:45 AM

AutoCamp
Midpines County Park

5:58 AM

6:45 AM

7:15 AM

9:15 AM

10:15 AM

12:00 PM

Midpines Post Office

6:01 AM

6:49 AM

7:19 AM

9:19 AM

10:19 AM

REQ

REQ

Yosemite Bug Resort

6:54 AM

7:24 AM

8:34 AM

9:24 AM

10:24 AM

12:09 PM

7:04 PM

Cedar Lodge

7:21 AM

7:51 AM

9:01 AM

9:51 AM

10:51 AM

12:36 PM

7:31 PM

NPS Maintenance

6:31 AM

7:26 AM

7:56 AM

REQ

9:56 AM

10:56 AM

REQ

REQ

Barium Mine Road

6:34 AM

7:29 AM

7:59 AM

REQ

9:59 AM

10:59 AM

REQ

REQ

El Portal Post Office

6:37 AM

7:32 AM

8:02 AM

REQ

10:02 AM

11:02 AM

REQ

REQ

7:36 AM

8:06 AM

9:16 AM

10:06 AM

11:06 AM

12:51 PM

7:46 PM

Yosemite View Lodge
Yosemite National
Park

Run 140-5

Curry Village

7:11 AM

8:06 AM

8:36 AM

9:46 AM

10:36 AM

11:36 AM

1:21 PM

8:16 PM

Yosemite Valley Visitor Center

7:16 AM

8:11 AM

8:41 AM

9:51 AM

10:41 AM

11:41 AM

1:26 PM

8:21 PM

Yosemite Valley Lodge/ Laurel
Cottage

7:21 AM

8:16 AM

8:46 AM

9:56 AM

10:46 AM

11:46 AM

1:31 PM

8:26 PM

Yosemite In-Park Valley Shuttles are not operating Summer 2021

PM Times in bold font

Reservations are strongly recommended and are available online at YARTS.com. Walk-on services will be limited.
PLEASE NOTE:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

REQ: stops are for DROP-OFFs ONLY. No pick-ups are allowed without an online reservation.
Driver must be notified at boarding that a passenger wishes to be dropped off at a REQ stop.
No unscheduled stops wil be permitted (for example: Yaqui Gulch Road, Cherry Street).
Run 140-1 does not operate on weekends and holidays
Holidays include: Memorial Day and 4th of July
Run 140-1 is a YARTS Express Run and will only pick up at the locations with a scheduled time.
Scheduled times are estimates. YARTS buses may occassionally run behind schedule due to traffic, road construction, inclement weather and natural disasters.
Delay notifications and other information can be found at YARTS.com; Facebook.com/rideYARTS; Twitter.com/rideYARTS; or text YARTS140 to 877-559-2787
Face coverings required for all passengers.
A $1.00 surcharge will be applied per passenger as a result of COVID-19 safety efforts.
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Highway 140
Summer 2021 Service
Effective: May 17, 2021 - September 30, 2021

YOSEMITE → MERCED

Mariposa/Midpines

El Portal

Yosemite
National Park

Location

Run 140-2

Run 140-4

Run 140-6

Run 140-8

Run 140-10

Run 140-12

Run 140-14

Run 140-16

Run 140-18

Curry Village

8:20 AM

2:15 PM

3:40 PM

4:15 PM

4:35 PM

5:05 PM

6:00 PM

8:35 PM

Yosemite Valley Visitor Center

8:25 AM

2:20 PM

3:45 PM

4:20 PM

4:40 PM

5:10 PM

6:05 PM

8:40 PM

Yosemite Valley Lodge/ Laurel
Cottage

8:30 AM

2:25 PM

3:50 PM

4:25 PM

4:45 PM

5:15 PM

6:10 PM

8:45 PM

Yosemite View Lodge

8:58 AM

2:53 PM

4:18 PM

4:53 PM

5:13 PM

5:43 PM

6:38 PM

9:13 PM

El Portal Post Office

9:02 AM

2:57 PM

4:22 PM

4:57 PM

5:17 PM

5:47 PM

6:42 PM

REQ

Barium Mine Road

9:05 AM

3:00 PM

4:25 PM

5:00 PM

5:20 PM

5:50 PM

6:45 PM

REQ

NPS Maintenance

9:08 AM

3:03 PM

4:28 PM

5:03 PM

5:23 PM

5:53 PM

6:48 PM

REQ

Cedar Lodge

9:13 AM

3:08 PM

4:33 PM

5:08 PM

5:28 PM

5:58 PM

6:53 PM

9:28 PM

Yosemite Bug Resort

5:54 AM

9:40 AM

3:35 PM

5:00 PM

5:35 PM

5:55 PM

6:25 PM

7:20 PM

9:55 PM

Midpines Post Office

5:59 AM

9:45 AM

3:40 PM

5:05 PM

5:40 PM

6:00 PM

6:30 PM

7:25 PM

10:00 PM

Midpines County Park

6:03 AM

9:49 AM

3:44 PM

5:09 PM

5:44 PM

6:04 PM

6:34 PM

7:29 PM

REQ

AutoCamp

6:05 AM

9:51 AM

3:46 PM

5:11 PM

5:46 PM

6:06 PM

6:36 PM

7:31 PM

10:06 PM

Roadside Reststop

6:17 AM

10:03 AM

3:58 PM

5:23 PM

REQ

6:18 PM

6:48 PM

7:43 PM

REQ

Mariposa Park & Ride

6:20 AM

10:06 AM

4:01 PM

5:26 PM

REQ

6:21 PM

6:51 PM

7:46 PM

REQ

Midtown Mariposa

6:23 AM

10:09 AM

4:04 PM

5:29 PM

REQ

6:24 PM

6:54 PM

7:49 PM

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

Merced / Catheys
Valley

Mariposa Fairgrounds
Catheys Valley

6:35 AM

10:24 AM

4:19 PM

5:44 PM

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

Merced Amtrak

REQ

10:54 AM

4:49 PM

6:14 PM

6:49 PM

7:09 PM

8:34 PM

REQ

Merced Transpo

7:13 AM

11:04 AM

4:59 PM

6:24 PM

6:59 PM

7:19 PM

8:44 PM

REQ

Merced Airport

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

REQ

Yosemite In-Park Valley Shuttles are not operating Summer 2021

REQ

PM Times in bold font

Reservations are strongly recommended and are available online at YARTS.com. Walk-on services will be limited.
PLEASE NOTE:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

REQ: stops are for DROP-OFFs ONLY. No pick-ups are allowed without an online reservation.
Driver must be notified at boarding that a passenger wishes to be dropped off at a REQ stop.
No unscheduled stops wil be permitted (for example: Yaqui Gulch Road, Cherry Street).
Run 140-2 does not operate on weekends and holidays
Holidays include: Memorial Day and 4th of July
Run 140-2 is a YARTS Express Run and will only pick up at the locations with a scheduled time.
Scheduled times are estimates. YARTS buses may occassionally run behind schedule due to traffic, road construction, inclement weather and natural disasters.
Delay notifications and other information can be found at YARTS.com; Facebook.com/rideYARTS; Twitter.com/rideYARTS; or text YARTS140 to 877-559-2787
Face coverings required for all passengers.
A $1.00 surcharge will be applied per passenger as a result of COVID-19 safety efforts.
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ITEM 4d
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ITEM 4d
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Kate Molthen, Assistant Transit Manager

RE:

Information: YARTS/Fresno Council of Governments Agreement – May 2021 – September
2022 Amendment No. 4 and associated Budget for Highway 41 services

SUMMARY
YARTS is entering into its sixth year of contracting with the Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG) to
operate public transit service between Fresno and Yosemite National Park along Highway 41.
REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
BACKGROUND
Fresno and YARTS enter into an agreement annually to spell out the services to be provided by each
entity. YARTS operates the service funded by Fresno County and Yosemite National Park Services. The
service transitioned from a year-round service to summer only service in May of 2017. Services were
further reduced due to a steep decline in ridership in 2019. The Executive Director was authorized, by
Resolution 2018/01-22-02, to execute the agreement when the review was completed.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
April 6, 2020: The MCAG Executive Director signed the Fiscal Year 2020-21 FCOG/YARTS Annual
Agreement Amendment No. 3 for services.
NEXT STEPS
The signed contract will be sent to the Fresno Council of Governments for full execution. YARTS Staff
will continue to evaluate the potential to receive funding and support to continue summer operations
on the Highway 41 corridor.
FISCAL IMPACT
The $746,776 in funding per year for service period May 2021- September 2021 and May 2022 September 2022 from Fresno Council of Governments is aligned with the budgeted revenue for the
Highway 41 corridor and member contributions. Fresno Council of Governments has indicated they will
not resume service after summer service 2022.
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REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
ATTACHMENTS
Draft YARTS/FCOG Agreement Fiscal Year 2021-22 Amendment No. 4 (unsigned) including budget
YARTS 2021 - 2022 Work Plan
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050

051

052

053

054

055

056

057

058

059

060

061

062

063

064

065

066

067

EXHIBIT I
YARTS Fresno SR 41
Revenue
Farebox Revenue - Fresno
Amtrak - Fresno
National Park Service Fresno
Greyhound
FTA 5311(f)

YARTS Fresno SR 41
Budget
May-September 2021

Revenue

Budget
May-September 2022

$200,000
$750
$177,137

Farebox Revenue - Fresno
Amtrak - Fresno
National Park Service Fresno
Greyhound
FTA 5311(f)

$200,000
$750
$236,263

CMAQ

$301,389

FCOG Local

$242,263

Total Operating Revenue

$746,776

Total Operating Revenue

$746,776

Expenses/Operations
Professional Service Contracts
Professional Service - Fuel
Professional Service MCAG Admin
Professional Service MCAG Marketing

5% Capital + 5%
Contingency
Total Operating Expense

$62,500
$5,000

Budget
May-September 2021
$565,251
$80,000
$25,000
$20,000
$56,525
$746,776

Expenses/Operations
Professional Service Contracts
Professional Service - Fuel
Professional Service MCAG Admin
Professional Service MCAG Marketing

5% Capital + 5%
Contingency
Total Operating Expense

$62,500
$5,000

Budget
May-September 2022
$565,251
$80,000
$25,000
$20,000
$56,525
$746,776
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WORK PLAN
YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (YARTS) MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES
Purpose:
The Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) contracts with Merced County
Association of Governments (MCAG) to provide management, planning, and administrative services
to the transit system, including oversight of the day-to-day operations of the transit system.
Discussion:
Entering its 21st year of operation in May of 2021,YARTS provides an alternative to driving in the
Yosemite region for travelers and locals. It operates year-round on the Hwy 140 corridor between
Merced and Yosemite National Park, through Mariposa County and during the summer, June through
September, on the Hwy 120/395 corridors between Yosemite Valley and Mono County destinations
and between Tuolumne County destinations and Yosemite Valley.
As of May 2015, through contract with the Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG), YARTS now also
operates on Hwy 41 between Fresno and Yosemite National Park during the summer (May – Sept.).
Tasks:
610 – Management, Administration and Planning
Provide administration functions to the YARTS Joint Powers Authority (JPA) Board and the YARTS Authority
Advisory Committee (AAC), at the direction of the YARTS Board.
• Prepare the YARTS Work Plan
• Prepare agendas for the YARTS Board and the AAC
• Confer with Board Chair to create the Board agenda
• File notices of Public Hearings as needed
• Staff Board and AAC meetings and facilitate video conferencing as needed
• Record and prepare the minutes from Board and AAC meetings
• Implement and coordinate Board directives
• Maintain the YARTS accounting records
• Prepare financial updates for the Board and the AAC for each regular meeting or at least quarterly
• Contract for and complete an annual audit
• Prepare and administer the approved YARTS budget
• Identify, apply for, and administer grants to fund operating and capital projects
• Administer YARTS contracts and agreements and do billing for same, I.E. Amtrak, NPS, VIA,
Greyhound, Fresno COG
• Monitor service contractor performance
• File required state and federal reports
• Implement on-board rider satisfaction survey annually, typically during the busier visitor season
• Annually review the operating schedules and demand by run. Recommend changes as needed
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•
•
•

•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•

Contract for liability and property insurance coverage
Participate in Social Services Transportations Advisory Committee (SSTAC) meetings in the three
member-county service areas
Maintain working relationships with elected and appointed state and federal officials, Yosemite
National Park management, Park Concessionaire management, Amtrak, environmental
organizations and member-county staff
Maintain contractual agreements with Greyhound Bus Lines and Amtrak to share customers and
jointly promote public transit to Yosemite and the region
Continue to work with the County of Tuolumne, TCTC, on the service on Hwy 120 between
Tuolumne County destinations and Yosemite NP.
Maintain YARTS-owned property, i.e. replacing broken glass at shelters as needed, clean and
remove graffiti and stickers from shelters, review maintenance on YARTS-owned buses with
contractor
Under written agreement with the National Park Service, work with Yosemite NP to establish
temporary “summer peak demand” service in Tuolumne, Mono and Mariposa/Merced Counties.
This project includes working with locals in each project county to determine their priorities and
preferences, writing schedules, preparing and distributing marketing materials, and attending
regular bi-weekly (phone) meetings with park staff to evaluate and direct the effort.
Participate in CalACT legislative meetings (phone) to stay current on legislation that effects rural
public transit and attend CalACT semi-annual meetings for professional growth and improvement
Work with the Board to establish the appropriate number of vehicles in the YARTS-owned fleet
Start the process to establish an Acquisition/Replacement fund within the YARTS budget
Seek funding from the most advantageous source for the purchase of buses to grow the YARTSowned fleet to the level directed by the Board
Create a Capital Acquisition/Replacement fund within the YARTS Budget.

621 – Fresno COG Contract
• Administer the requirements of the agreement between YARTS and the Fresno Council of
Governments (FCOG) for the provision of public transit on Hwy 41 between Fresno and Yosemite
National Park as specified in a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between YARTS and FCOG.
• Coordinate regularly with the FCOG project manager.
• Provide timely billing, as specified in the agreement, to FCOG seeking reimbursement for work
performed on their behalf.
• Prepare a quarterly financial report to FCOG
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625 – Outreach and Marketing
Provide outreach and marketing efforts to promote ridership.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Schedules - Create, distribute and install seasonal schedules and brochures, and other
promotional materials, as needed
Administer all aspects of the YARTS marketing budget from identifying funding sources through
approving the payment of invoices
Ticket vendors – Administer ticket sales through contracted vendors; includes distribution of
tickets, review of sales reports, and collection of revenue
Public Information – Prepare and distribute news releases to media contacts as appropriate
Create and place advertising in appropriate venues
Public Appearances – seek opportunities for and make public speaking and other appearances
where possible to market the transit service
Maintain the YARTS web site and continue the ongoing remodel/update of the site
Refine and market the ticket reservation program
Sustain the social media marketing efforts
Maintain YARTS’ presence on Google Transit
Respond to rider comments and complaints
Maintain a good working relationship with the Gateway Partners organization
Conduct “Fam Tours” for media and local stakeholders annually
Maintain contact with tour operators who use YARTS in their business plans;
Build and/or retain strong relationships with connecting transit providers who serve the Yosemite
region including, but not limited to, Greyhound, Amtrak, Boutique Air, United Airlines, Fresno
Airport, ESTA, Merced Co. “The Bus”, Fresno Area Express, Madera County Transit, and Tuolumne
County Transit.
Under written agreement with the Park Service, conduct marketing efforts toward public use of
the “peak period” expanded transit service during the summer months.

Cost:
$560,629
Funding: YARTS
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ITEM 4e

DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Kate Molthen, Assistant Transit Manager

RE:

Information: YARTS/Department of the Interior/National Park Service Cooperative
Agreement Modification No. 001 – Fiscal Year 2021-22

SUMMARY
Due to federal budget cycle appropriations, the Department of the Interior (DOI)/National Park Service
(NPS) can only commit to one year of funding at a time through annual modifications to the five-year
Cooperative Agreement are required annually.
REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
BACKGROUND
Every five years a Cooperative Agreement between YARTS and DOI/NPS is brought to the YARTS Board
for information. Even though the agreement is a five-year document, DOI/NPS can only commit
funding for a single year at a time and is dependent upon the annual appropriation of funding at the
federal level for the Park Service. The attached agreement is the second modification to the
Cooperative Agreement between YARTS and DOI/NPS for Fiscal Years 2020-25. The Executive Director
was authorized, by Resolution 2018/01-22-02, to execute the agreement when the review was
completed.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
June 24, 2019: The Executive Director signed the DOI/NPS Cooperative Agreement.
June 28, 2019: The DOI/NPS fully executed the Cooperative Agreement.
NEXT STEPS
The modification will be executed by the DOI/NPS once signed by the Executive Director.
FISCAL IMPACT
Revenue in the amount of $1,403,788 for Fiscal Year 2021-22 from the Department of the
Interior/National Park Service has been budgeted and is anticipated to be received.

073

REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
ATTACHMENT
Draft DOI/NPS Cooperative Agreement Modification No. 001 (unsigned)
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Cooperative Agreement P20AC00558
Modification 001
P20AC00558
MODIFICATION 001
BETWEEN THE
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
AND
YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM,
A JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
DUNS No.: 30965784
369 W 18th Street
Merced, CA 95340

CFDA: 15.944, Natural Resource Stewardship
PROJECT TITLE: Cooperative Agreement Modification for Sharing Cost of Alternative Transportation
System Serving Yosemite National Park
PREVIOUS FEDERAL FUNDING: $1,403,788
FEDERAL FUNDS OBLIGATED BY THIS ACTION: $1,403,788
TOTAL AMOUNTS FEDERAL FUNDS OBLIGATED: $2,807,576
TOTAL AMOUNT OF AWARD: $2,807,576
PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE: July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022
GENERAL: The Cooperative Agreement is amended to provide added financial assistance to Yosemite
Area Regional Transportation System Authority (YARTS) in the amount of $1,403,788 for the purpose of
providing public transportation service between local cities and communities outside Yosemite National
Park through federal FY21, ending October 31, 2021.

MODIFICATIONS:
1. ARTICLE V – STATEMENT OF WORK, is amended to add Section A with the following subsections:
1. Provide ongoing service on the YARTS Highway 140 route in Federal Fiscal Year 2021 (YARTS
Fiscal Year 2021-22), consistent with the terms of this agreement.
2. Provide enhanced service on the Highway 140 route and other seasonal services on Highway 41,
Highway 120 East and U.S. Route 395, and Highway 120 West in Federal Fiscal Year 2021 (YARTS
Fiscal Year 2021-22), consistent with the terms of this agreement and its amendments.
2. ARTICLE XII, SECTION A – AWARD AND PAYMENT, is amended with the following Subsection 1:
1. In FY21, the NPS will provide supplemental funding to the Recipient in an amount not to exceed
$1,403,788 for the Statement of Work described in Article V and in accordance with the NPS
approved budget. The approved budget detail is incorporated herein, Attachment A. Any award
beyond the present fiscal year is subject to availability of funds. A summary of funding provided
under this agreement is provided as follows:

Page 1 of 3
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Cooperative Agreement P20AC00558
Modification 001
Fiscal Year
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021

Route
Hwy 41, seasonal
Hwy 120 E, US 395 seasonal
Hwy 120 W, seasonal
Hwy 140, primary service
Hwy 140, peak season
Hwy 41, seasonal
Hwy 120 E, US 395 seasonal
Hwy 120 W, seasonal
Hwy 140, primary service
Hwy 140, peak season

Amount
$200,000
$79,360
$348,768
$535,660
$240,000
$200,000
$79,360
$348,768
$535,660
$240,000

4. ARTICLE XIII – ATTACHMENTS, are amended to add at the end of the following:
Attachment A – 2021 NPS Budget for Modification 001
5. All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this modification on the date(s) set forth
below.
YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
(YARTS), A JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
PACIFIC WEST REGIONAL OFFICE

Stacie Guzman
Executive Director

William Nash
Awarding Officer

Date

Date

ATTACHMENT A: 2021 ASSISTANCE PROGRAM BUDGET
Total YARTS Service Budget for Federal FY 2021

$1,403,788

Page 2 of 3
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Cooperative Agreement P20AC00558
Modification 001

Attachment A – Federal FY 2021 Program Budget

NPS Award

Hourly rate = $170
$170 x A x B x C

Recipient Operating Costs

Days in Service (C)

Dates of Service

Hours in Operation
(per bus, per day) (B)

Round-trips Provided (A)

ROUTES

Origin by County

Financial Assistance to be Provided by the NPS for YARTS Service to Yosemite Valley
on Corridors Identified by State and Federal Highways

NPS
Reference ID

HIGHWAY 41, WAWONA ROAD

Fresno
Madera

3

5/10/21 to 9/10/21 (summer only)

8

123

$501,840

200,000

230090B

HIGHWAY 120 EAST (TIOGA
ROAD) AND U.S. 395, BUS #1

Mono

1

6/15/21 to 10/15/21 (summer)

8

122

$165,920

$79,360

230091B

HIGHWAY 120 WEST

Tuolumne

1
2

5/17/21 to 9/30/21
7/01/21 to 8/31/21

8

136
62

$184,960
$168,640

$348,768

230092B

HIGHWAY 140,
EL PORTAL ROAD
HIGHWAY 120 EAST (TIOGA
ROAD) AND U.S. 395, BUS #2
HIGHWAY 140,
EL PORTAL ROAD

Merced
Mariposa

6

7/1/21 to 6/30/22 (year-round)

6

361

$2,209,320
$535,660

230093B

Mono

1

7/01/21 to 8/31/21 (summer)

8

61

$82,960

Merced
Mariposa

2

5/17/21 to 9/30/21 (summer)

6

136

$277,440

$240,000

230094B

RECIPIENT’S OPERATING
COST
TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE

$3,591,080
$1,403,788
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ITEM 4f
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Nav Bagri, Finance Director

RE:

Information: YARTS Financial Report/Budget Update for July 2020 – February 2021

SUMMARY
This report summarizes the overall financial position for the 2020-21 Fiscal Year through February 28,
2021, for Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS). To date, YARTS has received 93% of
the budgeted farebox revenue recovery and 66% of its total revenue.
REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
BACKGROUND
This item is an update on the YARTS 2020-21 Fiscal Year budget to actuals. To date, YARTS has received
93% of the farebox revenue budgeted. The peak season of YARTS is May-September, so the farebox
revenue increase over 50% is a result of the early budget year peak. YARTS is on target to meet the
farebox revenue budgeted for the fiscal year.
Member contributions (revenue) are received throughout the fiscal year, and remaining payments are
expected to be received in the second half of the fiscal year. YARTS is on target to meet the revenue
budgeted for the fiscal year.
Operational expenditures are currently at 76% of budgeted expenditures. Due to the seasonal nature
of YARTS, the contractor operates longer service hours in the first and last quarters of the budget year.
YARTS has had to pay for one failed engine on YARTS owned fleet this fiscal year at a cost of over
$60,000.
Attached for your review is the detailed financial budget update for the period of July 1, 2020 –
February 28, 2021.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
March 2020: YARTS Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget was approved.
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FISCAL IMPACT
The amount reported is within the budgeted expenses and revenue totals for the fiscal year. It is
anticipated the work plan will be implemented by the end of the budget year.
REQUESTED ACTION
For information only.
ATTACHMENT
YARTS Budget vs. Actual from July 1, 2020 – February 28, 2021
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YARTS
Merced Service
Budget vs Actual
July 1, 2020 ‐ February 28 , 2021 Unaudited

Revenue
Income
Federal Funding
5311(f) for Operating
CARES ACT Funds
CMAQ
CA FLAP
National Park Service
National Park Service Special Project
State Funding
Merced County (LTF )
Mariposa County
Mono County
State Transit Assistance
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)
Local Funding
Farebox‐Merced
Greyhound
Other Revenue (YARTS owned buses and Passes)
Interest Income ‐General Ops
Amtrak
Fresno Staffing Service
Total Income Operational
Capital‐ State of Good Repair
Capita from Fresno
Farebox‐LCTOP
Farebox‐for Capital Improvement
Bus and Bus facilities 5539B
Total Income

Expenses
Professional Service‐Contracts
Professional Service‐Fuel
Professional Service‐MCAG Admin
Professional Service‐Betterez
Professional Service‐Auditing
Legal Services
CMAQ
Utilities
Communication
Insurance ‐ General Liability
Membership
Vehicle use
Trans & Travel / Admin
Office Expense / Admin
Rent & Lease‐Equipment
Rent & Lease‐Structure/Transpo Rent & Maint
YARTS‐Maint Mariposa Park & Ride
Working Reserve
CA FLAP Program (Free Ride Service)
COVID‐19
Total Expenses Operational
Capital Improvement
Farebox Purchase
Bus Purchase
Net Income (loss)

Budget
FY 20/21

Actual as of
02/28/2021

Variance

Percent of
Budget Usage

300,000
326,779
200,000
16,500
379,500
824,288

‐
‐
59,666
‐
379,500
824,288

300,000
326,779
140,334
16,500
‐
‐

0%
0%
30%
0%
100%
100%

300,000
190,000
40,000
34,278
28,775

300,000
143,250
40,000
12,283
‐

‐
46,750
‐
21,995
28,775

100%
75%
100%
36%
0%

266,301
‐
1,000
10,000
263,000
25,000
3,205,421
17,421
26,341
15,800
14,200
4,353,000
7,632,183

247,085
193
347
‐
113,058
‐
2,119,670
10,588
‐
‐
13,005
‐
2,143,263

Budget
FY 20/21
2,015,657
427,000
465,506
18,000
8,000
9,423
200,000
8,505
6,000
13,500
1,000
4,725
1,000
7,975
10,000
6,558
15,000
775
16,500
‐
3,235,124
28,400
15,800
4,353,000
(141)

Actual as of
02/28/2021
1,529,906
171,721
207,786
8,466
1,200
9,208
82,216
1,695
3,898
11,818
920
‐
895
1,099
‐
3,230
5,283
‐
‐
59,075
2,098,414
61,847
‐
‐
(16,999)

19,216
(193)
653
10,000
149,942
25,000
204,618
6,833
26,341
15,800
1,196
4,353,000
4,607,787

Variance
485,751
255,279
257,720
6,800
215
117,784
6,810
2,102
1,682
80
4,725
105
6,876
10,000
3,328
9,717
775
16,500
(59,075)
1,127,175
(33,447)
15,800
4,353,000

93%
0%
35%
0%
43%
0%
66%
61%
0%
0%
92%
0%
‐

Percent of
Budget Usage
76%
40%
45%
47%
15%
98%
41%
20%
65%
88%
92%
0%
89%
14%
0%
49%
35%
0%
0%
0%
65%
218%
0%
0%
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April 2021

FERGUSON
ROCK
SHED
UPDATE
083



10-0P923
Talus
Removal
Timeline



Ready to List (RTL) = Achieved November 2020



Construction Allocation = Achieved January 2021



Contract Approval = Achieved March 2021



Begin Construction = Target April 1st 2021



Construction duration = 180 Working Days



Contract awarded for $22.7M to Meyers & Sons/RL
Wadsworth
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10-0P923 Talus Removal
in Construction


April – May 2021:
Trim blasting operations.



May – October 2021:
Talus removal operations.



November 2021:
Install cable net drapery over slide face.



December 2021 – April 2022:
Winter suspension.

Trim blasting is the process of bringing down
material using small explosives to reduce the
risk of material coming down during talus
removal operations.
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Plan to remove 147,000 tons of material.



10-0P921
Rock Shed
Timeline



60% Plans = Achieved January 2021



60% Opinion of Probable Cost = Target May
2021



Construction Funds Programmed = Target Fall
2021



Begin Construction = Target Summer 2022



Construction Duration = 3 – 4 years
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Questions & Answers
Contacts:
Bob Highfill, Public Information Officer
(209) 986-9428

Warren Alford, Chief Public & Legislative Affairs
(209) 948 -3849
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ITEM 5a
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ITEM 5a

Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS)
Joint Powers Authority
MINUTES
DATE
Monday, January 11, 2021
The regular meeting of the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) Joint Powers Authority
(JPA) Board was held on Monday, January 11, 2021 via teleconference/videoconference and was called to
order by Chair Silveira at 1:03 p.m.
MEMBERS PRESENT
Scott Silveira, Merced County Supervisor, Chair
Bob Gardner, Mono County Supervisor, Vice Chair
Stacy Corless, Mono County Supervisor
Daron McDaniel, Merced County Supervisor
Miles Menetrey, Mariposa County Supervisor
Rosemarie Smallcombe, Mariposa County Supervisor
MEMBERS ABSENT
Tom Wheeler, Madera County Supervisor
OTHERS PRESENT
Peggy Arnest, Fresno Council of Governments
Denise Demery, VIA Adventures
Jim Donovan, Yosemite National Park
Jonathan Farrington, YARTS AAC member
Kathleen Haff, Supervisor, Tuolumne County
Gerry LeFrancois, Mono County Local Transportation Commission
Selena McKinney, LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
Candy O’Donel-Browne, YARTS AAC Chair
Gordon Shaw, LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
STAFF PRESENT
Christine Chavez, Transit Manager
Skyler Summers, Assistant Transit Manager
Malee Vang-Unruh, Grant Analyst
Xavier Garcia, Transit Administrative Assistant
Stacie Guzman, Executive Director
Nav Bagri, Finance Director
Robert Haden, Legal Counsel
Adam Perez, Multimedia Specialist
Mary-Michal Rawling, Public Affairs Manager
Mauricio Torres, Assistant Transportation Planner
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1.

Roll Call
Chair Silveira led the introductions and called the meeting to order at 1:03 p.m.

2.

Public Comment
Christine Chavez introduced Skyler Summers as the new Assistant Transit Manager – Maintenance.

12.

Request to review and discuss the role of the AAC
At this time, Item 12 was taken out of order at the request of Director Smallcombe.
Stacie Guzman invited Director Smallcombe to begin the discussion.
Director Smallcombe explained that she requested this item be added to the agenda to encourage the JPA
Board to consider encouraging the AAC to think about their role as it relates to YARTS and how they interact
with the JPA Board and YARTS staff. The contributions of the AAC have seemingly become less visible over
time and some AAC members feel as though they are not active participants in the conversations related to
YARTS. She also mentioned that in past years, the Chair of the AAC would provide a report at the JPA meetings
but that is no longer the case. She requested that the JPA Board encourage the AAC to form a subcommittee
and make a recommendation to the JPA Board as to what their role will be moving forward. She also
emphasized that collaboration amongst partners across the region will be important in recovering from the
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.
At this time, Director Smallcombe invited Candy O’Donel-Browne, Chair of the AAC, to speak.
Candy O’Donel-Browne agreed that a subcommittee of AAC members should be formed to look at the
relationship between the AAC, JPA Board and YARTS staff and provide a basis for discussion between the
parties.
Chair Silveira asked for clarification on what specifically is being asked of the JPA Board.
Director Smallcombe stated that the purpose of the AAC is to advise the JPA Board. She asked if the JPA Board
is still interested in people serving on the AAC and whether the JPA members would be comfortable with AAC
members reaching out to them and YARTS staff with ideas, questions or concerns and then presenting a
recommendation to the JPA Board on how best to maximize the usefulness of the AAC.
Chair Silveira stated that the JPA Board does not govern the AAC actions, so they have the authority to form a
subcommittee to explore this issue if they wish.
Stacie Guzman stated that staff was unaware of the severity of the situation or that some AAC members were
questioning serving. She stated that adding an AAC report to the JPA meetings is something that staff can do
and agreed with Chair Silveira that the AAC has the authority to form their own subcommittee. The
recommendations developed in that subcommittee would be taken to the JPA Board for approval. She
acknowledged that, at the beginning of the pandemic when JPA meetings were being held very frequently,
there could have been more dialogue with the AAC but is unsure how that could have been achieved with all
the demands placed on staff at the time. She also added that staff can help with forming an AAC
subcommittee to further explore this issue.
Director Corless suggested that this issue can be addressed through the strategic plan to reach the goal of
having an active, engaged AAC advising the JPA Board.
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Director McDaniel commented that the AAC has their own rules and processes that should be followed before
the issue is presented to the JPA Board.
Director Gardner agreed with Director Corless that this issue can be addressed through the strategic plan and
suggested that time be devoted to the more pressing issues on the agenda.
At this time, Director Smallcombe invited Jonathan Farrington, YARTS AAC member, to speak.
Jonathan Farrington commented that the AAC would like to make sure that the time they are investing is
useful. Many times, the AAC members are the direct connections to the end users of the YARTS service and to
the businesses that are impacted. He asked that the JPA Board utilize the AAC to research items that are being
considered so they can provide feedback from a feet-on-the-street position.
Chair Silveira summarized that the AAC would like a more defined role and for the work they do to be better
received and asked if staff would be able to facilitate forming a subcommittee to better define the AAC’s role.
Stacie Guzman replied that it is important for the AAC to feel valued and staff can work on forming a
subcommittee. She also mentioned that the distance between the AAC and JPA meetings would likely need to
be extended to accommodate this request.
Director Smallcombe thanked the JPA Board for taking up this item and stated the JPA Board appreciates and
values the input from the AAC and asked that the AAC define their roles and how they will interact with the JPA
Board and YARTS staff.
Chair Silveira requested that the Chair of the AAC communicate to the other AAC members that the JPA
members are available should any questions or concerns arise in the future.
3.

Minutes of the October 12, 2020 YARTS Joint Powers Authority regular meeting
No questions.
Director Smallcombe moved to approve the minutes of the October 12, 2020 YARTS Joint Powers Authority
regular meeting.
Seconded by Director Gardner.
Ayes - Directors Corless, Gardner, McDaniel, Menetrey, Silveira, Smallcombe
Noes - None
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

4.

National Park Service Report
Jim Donovan presented the National Park Service report in Kathleen Morse’s absence. He reported that
Yosemite is experiencing high visitation due to the holidays and good weather. The Park is still only open 8am
to 5pm with no camping or lodging permitted. Normal operations will resume when the Governor’s stay-athome order is lifted. Food services are limited to takeout only and only Degnan’s Kitchen is currently open.
High visitation is expected during the last two weeks of February for Horsetail Falls. The Park has a limited
ability to deal with emergencies and ask that visitors recreate responsibly. Lastly, the limitations on visitation
during Spring of 2020 have affected revenue collection. The Park is expecting a $358,000 shortfall in their
transportation fee accounts for 2021 but will be able to recuperate that by closing some of the operations of
the Mariposa Grove shuttle. This means the YARTS agreement will be fine for the Park’s 2021 fiscal year, but
the longer-term impacts of ongoing closures and reduced visitation is still unknown.
Director Gardner asked for Jim Donovan to relay a request that the Superintendent of the Park visit with the
Mono County community to discuss the opening of Tioga Pass.
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5.

Information /Discussion Only
a.

Service Update, Ridership History and Customer Service Reports for September 2020 – November 2020.

Christine Chavez gave a PowerPoint presentation on service updates and ridership history.
No questions.
b.

YARTS Quarterly Marketing and Media Update

Mary-Michal Rawling gave a PowerPoint presentation on marketing and media updates for the second quarter
of fiscal year 2020 - 2021.
No questions.
6.

Approve YARTS 2020-2023 Title VI Program
Mauricio Torres presented this item and noted that no Title VI complaints were filed during the last fiscal year.
No questions.
Director Corless moved to approve the YARTS Title VI Program 2020-2023 and adopt Resolution No. 2021/0111-01.
Seconded by Director Gardner.
Ayes - Directors Corless, Gardner, McDaniel, Menetrey, Silveira, Smallcombe
Noes - None
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

7.

Summer 2021 Service Schedule Update
Christine Chavez presented this item and gave a PowerPoint presentation with updates on the summer 2021
service schedules.
No questions.

8.

YARTS Financial Report/Budget Update for July 2020 – November 2020
Nav Bagri reported that invoices for the two failed engines totaling about $110,000 had been received after
the date of the staff report. If reserve funds are needed to cover the cost of the engine replacements, a
budget amendment item will be taken to the Board in April for approval.
Director Gardner noted that the variance column on the revenues side of the report on page 90 did not seem
correct and asked staff to review.
Director Smallcombe exited the meeting at this time.
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9.

Funding Update on Federal Transit Administration Discretionary Grant Section 5339(b) Bus and Bus Facilities
Program for the acquisition of six (6) over-the-road electric coach buses
Christine Chavez gave a PowerPoint presentation with a funding update on the 5339(b) Program.
Stacie Guzman emphasized the severity of the challenges that YARTS faces on the capital front and how the
strategic plan will be critical in solving those challenges long term. She also proposed scheduling a JPA Board
budget workshop on February 8, 2021 at 1:00 pm via teleconference/webinar to discuss capital needs.
Chair Silveira noted that page 94 of the agenda packed stated the HVIP Bus Vouchers were $165,000 per bus
but Christine Chavez’s presentation stated they were $150,000 per bus and asked which amount was correct.
He also asked if the HVIP voucher amount would be applied towards the local match portion of the bus costs.
Malee Vang-Unruh explained that the correct amount is $165,000 per bus but she was informed by the HVIP
program that the amount may be reduced due to the popularity of the program.
Christine Chavez added that the HVIP voucher amount would be applied towards YARTS’ local match.
Director Gardner asked if outside private support, such as from the Yosemite Conservancy, has been
considered to help with covering some of the bus costs and offered to assist with approaching the Yosemite
Conservancy for a contribution.
Stacie Guzman replied that staff can explore those opportunities and will present an item to the Board if
formal action is needed.

10.

Invitation of Membership to YARTS JPA – Tuolumne County
No questions.
Director Corless moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021/01-11-02 authorizing the admission of Tuolumne County
to the YARTS Joint Powers Agreement and Bylaws as a full voting member.
Seconded by Director Menetrey.
Ayes - Directors Corless, Gardner, McDaniel, Menetrey, Silveira
Noes - None
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.
At this time, Chair Silveira paused the meeting at 2:23 p.m. to allow for a short break and resumed the meeting
at 2:30 p.m.

11.

Discussion: YARTS Strategic Plan – Current Conditions Update
Christine Chavez introduced Gordon Shaw to lead the discussion.
Gordon Shaw gave a presentation with an overview of the Strategic Plan Working Paper and posed key
strategic questions regarding capital needs, fleet expansion and service changes.
No questions.

13.

Executive Director’s Report
Stacie Guzman reiterated her proposal for a workshop to be held on February 8, 2021 at 1:00 p.m. via
teleconference/webinar and stated that the focus of the workshop will be on the budget and capital needs.

093

14.

Board Member Remarks
Chair Silveira and Director Menetrey welcomed Tuolumne County to the JPA.
Chair Silveira confirmed with Directors Gardner, Corless, McDaniel and Menetrey that they will be able to
attend the workshop on February 8, 2021.

15.

Adjournment
THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS OF THE YARTS JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, THE MEETING WAS
ADJOURNED AT 3:00 p.m.
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ITEM 5b

Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS)
Joint Powers Authority
MINUTES
DATE
Monday, February 8, 2021
The YARTS Capital and Financial Needs of the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) Joint
Powers Authority (JPA) Workshop was held on Monday, February 8, 2021 via
teleconference/videoconference and was called to order by Chair Silveira at 1:06 p.m.
MEMBERS PRESENT
Scott Silveira, Merced County Supervisor, Chair
Bob Gardner, Mono County Supervisor, Vice Chair
Stacy Corless, Mono County Supervisor
Daron McDaniel, Merced County Supervisor
Miles Menetrey, Mariposa County Supervisor
Rosemarie Smallcombe, Mariposa County Supervisor
Rey Leon, Mayor, City of Huron
Michelle Roman, Mayor, City of Kingsburg
Tom Wheeler, Madera County Supervisor
OTHERS PRESENT
Peggy Arnest, Fresno Council of Governments
Tony Boren, Fresno Council of Governments
Denise Demery, VIA Adventures
Jim Donovan, Yosemite National Park
Michael Draper, Mono County Local Transportation Commission
Kathleen Haff, Supervisor, Tuolumne County
Sandy Hogan, Private Citizen, Mono County
Gerry Le Francois, Mono County Local Transportation Commission
Selena McKinney, LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
Phil Moores, Eastern Sierra Transit Authority
Curtis Riggs, VIA Adventures
Gordon Shaw, LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
Tyler Summersett, Tuolumne County Transportation Council
STAFF PRESENT
Christine Chavez, Transit Manager
Kate Molthen, Assistant Transit Manager
Skyler Summers, Assistant Transit Manager
Xavier Garcia, Transit Administrative Assistant
Stacie Guzman, Executive Director
Nav Bagri, Finance Director
Emily Haden, Legal Counsel
Adam Perez, Multimedia Specialist
Mary-Michal Rawling, Public Affairs Manager
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1.

Roll Call
Chair Silveira led the introductions and called the workshop to order at 1:06 p.m.

2.

Public Comment
Phil Moores introduced himself as the Executive Director of the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority and stated he
was available to answer any questions.

3.

National Park Service Update
Jim Donovan presented the National Park Service update in Kathleen Morse’s absence. He reported that wind
and snow events damaged fifteen buildings in Wawona and destroyed a comfort station in Mariposa Grove.
Many roads in Yosemite were closed due to fallen trees, but all roads are now open except for Glacier Point
Road between Wawona and Chinquapin. Tuolumne Meadows received 82 inches of snow and Park staff
anticipate there will be downed trees blended in with the snow when Park staff clear Tioga Road in the spring.
The Park concessionaire continues to face staffing challenges due to the pandemic. As a result, the Yosemite
Valley shuttles will not operate this spring or summer. However, the Park does intend to operate the Mariposa
Grove shuttle between mid-May and November.
At this time, Directors Wheeler, Menetrey and Smallcombe inquired about the status of reopening Highway 41.
After a brief discussion, it was determined that Highway 41 would remain closed past Wawona to all but
administrative staff, contractors and residents until February 11, conditions permitting.

4.

Fresno Council of Governments Update
Stacie Guzman introduced Tony Boren as the Executive Director of the Fresno Council of Governments.
Tony Boren provided a brief history on the Highway 41 service and its funding sources. He explained that the
current funding sources will allow the service to operate this year and possibly next year. He expressed that
the service has not been all it was initially hoped to be, and ridership is not where it needs to be to sustain the
service. For these reasons, the Fresno Council of Governments Board does not have any interest in providing
additional funding to continue operating the service.

5.

Workshop: YARTS Capital and Financial Needs
Christine Chavez invited Gordon Shaw and Selena McKinney from LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc. to lead
the workshop.
Gordon Shaw opened the workshop by discussing the need to purchase buses, the funding needed to purchase
those buses, and whether those buses should be battery electric or diesel.
Director Smallcombe asked what the cost of ownership is for battery electric buses versus diesel buses and
whether a phased in approach should be taken while also considering the goals and objectives of partners such
as the National Park Service.
Stacie Guzman replied that staff has worked to find a balance between what the funding partners want to
achieve and what YARTS wants to achieve. However, the priority has now shifted to preserving as much
service as possible. YARTS may need to reduce service to lower operating costs so it can recover its capital
reserve. If YARTS can do one last round of diesel bus replacements, it can recover those reduced operating
hours more quickly. Purchasing diesel buses would also provide staff time to develop a thorough
electrification plan that addresses issues such as charging infrastructure.
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Director Leon asked to see more data on carbon prevention for diesel versus electric vehicles and the results of
the electric vehicle test that was conducted on Highway 140. He also suggested contacting the Air Resources
Board to determine if they can provide any assistance.
Directors Menetrey and Corless agreed with Stacie Guzman’s recommendation that YARTS take a hybrid
approach to purchasing buses. Acquiring diesel buses one last time will allow time for concerns such as
charging infrastructure and how electric buses will perform on the routes to be addressed.
Director Smallcombe asked if staff has reached out to Chris Lee from the California State Association of
Counties (CSAC) for his ideas on how assistance might be obtained from the state and federal levels.
Stacie Guzman replied that MCAG has a federal legislative advocacy program called OneVoice and staff has
proposed YARTS be included in the legislative package. However, tapping into existing resources is a great idea
and she will put some thought into it.
Christine Chavez added that an additional challenge is that YARTS does not own land where infrastructure can
be installed. The 5339(b) grant is not a zero-emission grant, so it could be worth asking if Caltrans and the
Federal Transit Authority to modify the grant to allow for the purchase of diesel buses instead of electric buses.
This would provide staff the opportunity to come up with an electrification plan to determine where
infrastructure can be placed and which type of electric buses will perform best on the YARTS routes.
Phil Moores commented that the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority is partnering with CALSTART to apply for a
Sustainable Transportation Planning grant through CalTrans and to assist with developing their zero-emissions
transition plan. Some other issues to consider when transitioning to electric buses include the cleanliness of
the electricity and the maintenance of new electric vehicles. He also suggested researching what it would cost
to borrow money through loans, considering purchasing smaller buses and operating shorter runs, and
determining whether rehabilitation of existing buses might be an option.
Director Wheeler agreed with Phil Moore’s comments regarding the how cleanly the electricity is being
produced. He also mentioned that he has tried for years to convince Madera County to join the YARTS JPA as a
full voting member. Now that FCOG has decided not to no longer fund the Highway 41 service, he will push
once again for Madera County to join the YARTS JPA to try to preserve that route.
At this time, Stacie Guzman requested that the Chair transition to discussing service alternatives.
Gordon Shaw presented service alternatives to reduce operating costs and provide local capital funding.
Chair Silveira asked Stacie Guzman to state exactly what is needed from this conversation so he and the other
Directors can comment accordingly.
Stacie Guzman summarized the points that were made in the conversation so far, including pursuing diesel
buses and providing staff the opportunity to draft an electrification plan and the interest from Director
Wheeler in adding Madera County to the YARTS JPA. She also requested for the Board to provide feedback on
the proposed service alternatives and whether staff is generally heading down the right path in trying to deal
with these challenges.
Director Gardner supported delaying the purchase of electric buses as additional funding opportunities, better
pricing of vehicles and improving technology might all be available in the near future. He also supported
considering service reductions to help generate capital and stated that it would be very helpful for Madera
County to join the YARTS JPA.
Director Corless supported the direction staff is going in and suggested operating the Highway 120/395 service
from July 1 instead of June 15.
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Director McDaniel supported staff’s direction and commented that he believes funding for buses and
infrastructure will be made available in the future.
Director Menetrey supported exploring Phil Moore’s idea of utilizing smaller buses to operate shorter runs. He
also appreciated Director Wheeler for offering to speak with Madera County about joining the YARTS JPA.
There is a lot of potential ridership with the new hotels that are being constructed along Highway 41, so it
would be beneficial to keep that route operating. He agreed with reducing non-productive runs as well.
Director Roman stated that the Fresno Airport is a hub for travelers from all over the world who are looking to
visit Yosemite and having the Highway 41 service available to transport those travelers is important. She
suggested looking at ridership data to determine is keeping that route operating is feasible. She also
mentioned that a potential new contractor may already have buses that YARTS needs.
Director Wheeler appreciated everyone’s comments and suggested exploring the possibility of operating a
route from Oakhurst to Yosemite. He also stated it is important to consider the impact on employees when
deciding to reduce service.
Stacie Guzman clarified for Director Roman that the current contractor does provide buses. Additionally,
YARTS will bid out for a new contract that begins November 1, 2022 but that does not necessarily mean YARTS
will have a new contractor.
Curtis Riggs explained that VIA Adventures, Inc. acquired buses for YARTS to operate the Highway 41 service as
YARTS did not have the financial resources to purchase them. There might be an opportunity for YARTS to
purchase those buses from VIA at a substantially reduced price to get YARTS through the near term. There also
might be an opportunity to purchase some of VIA’s property to establish a separate YARTS facility.
Phil Moores commented that hydrogen fueling could also be an option to consider.
Director Leon added that he sits on the California Energy Commission Investment Advisory Committee and
$115 million in funding was recently approved for hydrogen infrastructure.
Director Smallcombe supported staff discussing the option of purchasing buses from Curtis Riggs. She
mentioned that PG&E has some programs available for charging infrastructure inclusive of buses. She also
asked what the plan is for public engagement if service reductions were to occur.
Chair Silveira agreed with reducing service to eliminate underutilized runs. He also agreed that purchasing one
more round of diesel buses makes financial sense and allows time for any issues that often occur with new
technology to be worked out before YARTS purchases electric buses.
15.

Adjournment
THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS OF THE YARTS JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, THE WORKSHOP WAS
ADJOURNED AT 3:09 p.m.
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ITEM 5c
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Nav Bagri, Finance Director

RE:

Action: Accept the YARTS Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s Report for the
year ending June 30, 2020

SUMMARY
The Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, has
been completed and a copy is being provided for your review. The conclusion of the audit includes no
finding of “material weakness” but does include a “noncompliance material finding.”
REQUESTED ACTION
Accept the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s
Report for the year ending June 30, 2020.
BACKGROUND
The annual audit of YARTS is required by The California Department of Transportation for grant application
submittals and the State of California Controller's Office. The objective of the Independent Audit is to
ensure that federal and state funding are being spent appropriately. Governmental audits include financial
statement audits performed under government auditing standards on entities such as states, local
governments, not-for-profit organizations, institutions of higher education, and certain for-profit
organizations. YARTS is also required to conduct a single audit when the agency expends more than
$750,000 of federal funds.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
April 2020: YARTS JPA accepted Audited Financial Statement for the year ending June 30, 2020.
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DISCUSSION
YARTS Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ending June 30, 2020, is
enclosed for your review. The conclusion of this audit includes no finding of “material weakness” relating
to year-end financial close-out. There were no findings in previous year audits.
YARTS has a noncompliance material finding to the financial statement, which is due to not meeting criteria
outlined in Section 99314.6 of the TDA guidelines related to the annual change in total operating cost per
revenue hour exceeding the Consumer Price Index. The guidelines state:
The operator shall receive its entire allocation, and any or all of this allocation may be used for
operating purposes, if the operator’s total operating cost per revenue vehicle hour in the latest year for
which audited data are available does not exceed the sum of the preceding year’s total operating cost
per revenue vehicle hour and an amount equal to the product of the percentage change in the
Consumer Price Index for the same period multiplied by the preceding year’s total operating cost per
revenue vehicle hour.
The percentage increase in cost per service hour from 2018-2019 to 2019-2020 exceeds the CPI for that
period, thus making YARTS out of compliance with Section 99314.6.
The main cause of the increase in cost per service hour was the one-time payment to the contractor due to
the pandemic.

Total Operating Cost
Total Vehicle Service
hours
Operating cost Per
Vehicle hours

2018-19

2019-20

$2,841,163

$2,963,307

18,809

16,659

$151.05

$177.88

Increase in Cost per
service

17.76%

Consumer Price Index

1.56%

REQUESTED ACTION
Accept the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s
Report for the year ending June 30, 2020.
ATTACHMENT
Fiscal Year 2019-20 Audit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners of the
Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Merced, California
Report on the Financial Statements
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Yosemite Area
Regional Transportation System (YARTS), a Joint Powers Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise YARTS’ financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities of YARTS, as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in financial position
and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

7473 N. INGRAM AVE., SUITE 102 ⬧ FRESNO, CA 93711
____________________________________________________________________________________________
P (559) 412-7576 ⬧ F (559) 493-5325 ⬧ WWW.HHCCPAS.COM
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis on pages 3–8 be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Supplementary Information
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
YARTS' financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the financial
statements.
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 24, 2021, on our
consideration of YARTS' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering YARTS'
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC.

Fresno, California
March 24, 2021

2
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
The management of Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) presents the following narrative
overview and analysis of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020. The financial information
presented here should be considered in conjunction with the financial statements presented in the following pages.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
•
•
•

Total assets of YARTS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 are $7,919,114. This is a decrease of $82,742
from the ending balance of the prior fiscal year. The decrease is attributed to the decrease in accounts
receivable and capital assets due to annual depreciation expense.
Passenger fares for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 were $416,192, a decrease of 12% from the prior
fiscal year.
To determine the feasibility of the Fresno service, all revenues and expenditures are kept in separate
accounts, which are incorporated into the totals of the financial statement. The Fresno service revenue
included in the statements is $512,212, $79,776 less than the prior year. The Fresno service expenditures
included in the statement are $512,594, $78,649 less than the prior year.

OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to YARTS' financial statements.
YARTS' financial statements are comprised of four components: Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to Financial Statements.
Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position presents information on YARTS' assets and liabilities with the difference between the
two reported as net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of YARTS is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information on revenues, expenses,
capital contributions, and how YARTS' net position changed during the year. All changes in net position are reported
as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the changes occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues, expenses, and capital contributions are reported in the statements for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods. The increase or decrease in net position may serve as an indicator of the effect of
YARTS' current year operations on its financial position.
The Statement of Cash Flows summarizes YARTS' cash flows into four categories: cash flows from operating activities;
cash flows from noncapital financing activities; cash flows from capital and related financing activities; and cash
flows from investing activities. The Statement of Cash Flows, along with the related notes and information on other
financial statements, can be used to assess YARTS' ability to generate positive future cash flows and operating
income (loss); and the effect of cash and noncash investing, capital, and financing activities on YARTS' financial
position.
Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and
Statement of Cash Flows.
The financial statements provide information on all functions of YARTS as business-type activities. The activities of
YARTS are supported by fare collections from passengers and federal, state, and local financial assistance.
.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 (continued)
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Total assets of YARTS exceeded total liabilities by $7,008,958. A condensed summary of YARTS’ net position at June
30, 2020 and 2019 is shown below:

Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Statements of Net Position
2020
Assets:
Current Assets
Capital Assets (net)

$

3,067,611
4,851,503

2019
2,666,397
5,335,459

15%
-9%

7,919,114

8,001,856

-1%

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities

910,156

772,006

18%

Total Liabilities

910,156

772,006

18%

4,851,503
2,157,455

5,335,459
1,894,391

-9%
14%

7,229,850

-3%
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Total Assets

$

% Change

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

7,008,958

$

Total revenue of YARTS for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, including operating revenue and nonoperating
revenue, was $3,471,338. This was a decrease from the prior fiscal year of $28,933. This decrease was due to the
reduction of the contract revenue and passenger fares.
Total expenses of YARTS for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were $3,692,230. This was an increase of $127,592
from the previous fiscal year. The majority of the increase is attributed to the increase in professional services.
Change in net position for YARTS for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was a decrease of $220,892.
A condensed summary of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019 is shown below:

Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses

2020
588,596
3,692,230

$

$

2019
680,941
3,564,638

% Change
-14%
4%

Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues

(3,103,634)
2,882,742

(2,883,697)
2,819,330

8%
2%

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

(220,892)
7,229,850
7,008,958

(64,367)
7,294,217
7,229,850

243%
-1%
-3%

$

$

4

108

YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 (continued)
Capital Assets
YARTS’ net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2020 was $4,851,503, compared to $5,335,459 in the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019. Investment in capital assets include real property, the Mariposa Park & Ride project and
buses. The decrease in capital assets was the net effect of depreciation expense exceeding new capital asset
additions in the amount of $483,956.

July 1, 2019
Nondepreciable:
Land
Total nondepreciable
Depreciable:
Land improvements
Buildings and equipment
Total depreciable

595,178
595,178

$

-

Dispositions

June 30, 2020

$

$

Total depreciable, net

Total Capital Assets, Net

-

595,178
595,178

325,438
8,574,915
8,900,353

65,944
65,944

-

325,438
8,640,859
8,966,297

(4,160,072)

(549,900)

-

(4,709,972)

4,740,281

(483,956)

-

4,256,325

$ 5,335,459

$ (483,956)
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Less: accumulated depreciation

$

Additions

$

-

$

4,851,503

5
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 (continued)
YARTS Activities
In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, total revenues and nonoperating revenues were $3,471,338, a decrease of
$28,933 from the prior fiscal year. This decrease is mainly attributed to a reduction in charges for services, passenger
fares, contract revenue, and other income.
The following chart shows revenue for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Revenues

6/30/2020

6/30/2019

$2,400,000

$2,200,000

$2,000,000
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 (continued)
In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, total expenditures were $3,692,230, an increase of $127,592 from the prior
fiscal year. This increase is mainly attributed to an increase in professional services.
The following chart shows expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Expenses

6/30/2020

6/30/2019

2,500,000
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 (continued)
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET
The fiscal year 2019 -2020 showed a decrease of 5% in ridership. The majority of this decrease can be attributed to
the COVID-19 pandemic.
The FY2020/21 budget was finalized during a period of unprecedented disruption from the COVID-19 pandemic and
the associated shelter in place order. COVID-19 has not only disrupted transit operations, with ridership and fare
revenue down significantly, it has created extreme limitations on mobility and commerce that will impact Yosemite
Area Regional Transportation System primary revenue streams. While it is clear impacts will be significant, changes
are too recent for there to be clear indications of the magnitude and the extent of the impacts on farebox, local
transportation funds, and fuel taxes.
Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System will be utilizing funding received through Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security (CARES) Act to offset the loss in previous mentioned funding sources. At the request of the Federal
Transit Administration, these funds will be utilized in full before all other transit funding apportionments.
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The contract with the Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG) continues as a summer only service. There is no cost
to YARTS to provide the service. Any changes to the contract will not have an effect on YARTS’ financial stability.
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide member jurisdictions, customers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of YARTS' finances. If you have questions concerning any of the information provided in this report, or need
additional information, direct inquiries to: Finance Director, Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System, 369 W.
18th Street, Merced, CA 95340.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other agencies
Prepaid expenses

$

Total Current Assets

2,669,634
17,582
367,846
12,549
3,067,611

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable
Accumulated depreciation

595,178
8,966,297
(4,709,972)
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Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

4,851,503
4,851,503
7,919,114

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Unearned revenue - State of Good Repair
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

646,261
249,373
14,522
910,156
910,156

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

4,851,503
2,157,455

Total Net Position

$

7,008,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
9
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Operating revenues:
Passenger fares
Charges for services

$

Total operating revenues

416,192
172,404
588,596

Operating expenses:
Contracted services
Depreciation
Insurance
Professional services
Miscellaneous expense
Repairs and maintenance
General administration

1,834,769
549,900
12,867
1,144,687
18,750
11,671
119,586
3,692,230

Operating income (loss)

(3,103,634)
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Total operating expenses

Nonoperating revenues:
Federal and state grants
Contract revenue
Local support
Local support - State Transit Assistance
Interest income
Other income
Total nonoperating revenues

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

$

2,214,647
275,641
231,000
105,394
41,317
14,743
2,882,742
(220,892)
7,229,850
7,008,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from passengers
Other operating cash receipts
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

$

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

(2,540,978)

Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities:
Federal, state and local operating assistance
Local transportation tax received

2,800,066
336,394

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital and related financing activities

3,136,460
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Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash provided (used) by investing acitivities

Net increase in cash and investments

Cash and Investments at Beginning of Year
Cash and Investments at End of Year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

462,330
172,404
(3,175,712)

41,317
(65,944)
(24,627)
570,855
2,098,779

$

2,669,634

$

(3,103,634)

549,900
46,138
4,215
(37,597)

$

(2,540,978)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General Statement: The Counties of Mariposa, Merced, and Mono entered into a joint powers agreement on
September 21, 1999, to establish the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS). YARTS was established
to undertake a demonstration project instituting passenger bus service to serve the geographic jurisdictions of the
three counties and within Yosemite National Park. The project was established to:
1.
2.
3.

Accommodate the increasing demand for visitation to Yosemite National Park through an increasing
number of transportation options for visitors and employees;
Develop transportation alternatives in ways that do not degrade the visitor experience or the natural
resources in the region; and
Undertake coordinated political and administrative efforts necessary to resolve issues, obtain funding from
outside sources and to keep projects and programs on schedule.

YARTS is a public entity separate and distinct from its member entities. YARTS functions as the regional
representative, within the combined territory of the members of the Joint Powers Authority, for transit and
alternative transportation, as well as for supplemental and related matters to carry out the stated functions and
purposes of this agreement.
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Basis of Accounting: YARTS uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for financial statement purposes.
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position; and a Statement of Cash Flows.
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private
business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs and expenses of providing goods or
services to its consumers be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriated for
capital maintenances, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.
Enterprise funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included in the Statement of
Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present increases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the
period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.
Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of
the fund. All other revenues are reported as nonoperating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that
are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expense.
Cash and Investments: YARTS' cash and investments are considered to be cash on hand and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. YARTS maintains cash in a financial
institution and the treasury of Merced County. The County pools funds with those of other entities of the County
and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates market value. Interest earned is
deposited quarterly in the participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the
pool. The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Sections
53601 et. seq., 53635 et. seq., and 53648 et. seq.
Accounts Receivable: The “direct write-off” method for accounts receivable was applied for accounts that have been
established as uncollectible. The “direct write-off” method is not in compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles, but the result is immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole. YARTS did not write-off any
accounts receivable during the fiscal year. There were no accounts that were deemed to be uncollectible at June 30,
2020.
12
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Capital Assets: Capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated cost where costs are not available. Assets acquired
through gifts or contributions are recorded at fair value at the time received. Self-constructed assets are capitalized
at cost plus ancillary charges, including interest. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.
YARTS capitalizes equipment with a cost of at least $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. All
capitalized assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
economic lives used to determine annual rates of depreciation are subject to periodic review and revision to assure
that the costs of the respective assets will be written off over their economic lives.
The estimated useful lives for the various types of assets are as follows:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

15 years
10 - 30 years
5 - 15 years
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Accounts Payable: Certain costs are incurred by YARTS during the current period but are not paid until after the
beginning of the next fiscal period. These costs are reported as payables in the financial statements. YARTS' current
accounts payable balance of $646,261 as of June 30, 2020, is related to certain contract services.
Unearned Revenues: YARTS records unearned revenue for transactions for which revenues have not been earned
and have not yet met the revenue recognition criteria based on the accrual basis of accounting.
Net Position: Net position is reported in three categories as follows:
•
•
•

Net investment in capital assets – This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition of capital assets.
Restricted – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments.
Unrestricted – This amount is all resources that do not meet the definition of “net investment in capital
assets” or “restricted net position.”

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use , it is YARTS' policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as needed.
Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Financial instruments include cash, accounts receivable, due from other
agencies, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, and unearned revenue, none of which are held for trading purposes.
The fair values of all financial instruments do not differ materially from the aggregate carrying values of the financial
instruments recorded in the accompanying Statement of Net Position.
Governmental Accounting Standards Update: During the year ending June 30, 2020, YARTS implemented the
following standards with no financial impact on the financial statements:
GASB Statement No. 95 – Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. The requirements
of this statement are effective as of May 2020.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):
Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows:
GASB Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018. Subsequent to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the requirements
of this statement to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
GASB Statement No. 87 – Leases. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2019. Subsequent to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the requirements of this
statement to reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
GASB Statement No. 89 – Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Subsequent
to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the requirements of this statement to reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2020.
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GASB Statement No. 90 – Majority Equity Interests - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No 61. The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Subsequent
to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the requirements of this statement to reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2019.
GASB Statement No. 91 – Conduit Debt Obligations. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Subsequent to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the
requirements of this statement to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.
GASB Statement No. 92 – Omnibus 2020. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2020. Subsequent to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the requirements of this
statement to June 15, 2021.
GASB Statement No. 93 – Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The requirements of this statement are effective
for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Subsequent to issuance, GASB Statement No. 95 postponed the
certain requirements of this statement to reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.
GASB Statement No. 94 – Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements. The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.
GASB Statement No. 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.
GASB Statement No. 97 – Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
Subsequent Events: In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated events that have occurred
after year-end to determine if these events are required to be disclosed in the financial statements. Management
has determined that no events require disclosure in accordance with accounting standards. These subsequent events
have been evaluated through March 24, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Cost
Cash in Well Fargo Bank
Investment in Merced County Treasury
Total Cash and Investments

FMV

$

1,394,120
1,252,582

$

1,394,120
1,275,514

$

2,646,702

$

2,669,634

YARTS' cash is partially held in a financial banking institution. Cash balances in banks are insured up to $250,000, per
financial institution by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Custodial credit risk is that in the event
of a bank failure, the deposits will not be returned. The uninsured balances in the financial institution are under a
collateralized agreement with Wells Fargo Bank and subject to Title 5, Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4, Article 2
(commencing with Section 53630) of the Government Code of the State of California (the "Local Agency Deposit
Security Law").
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YARTS is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by the California Government Code Sections 53601 et.
seq., 53635 et. seq., and 53648 et. seq. The County is restricted by Government Code Section 53635, pursuant to
Section 53601, to invest in time deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds,
State Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and
repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The investment policy for the Merced County Treasury prohibits
reverse repurchase securities and foreign investments.
Investments in investment pools are considered unclassified as to credit risk because they are not evidenced by
securities that exist in physical or book entry form. Investments in investment pools and other pooled investments
are excluded from the concentration of credit risk disclosure under GASB Statement No. 40.
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rate. As of June 30, 2020, the weighted average maturity of the investments contained in the Merced County
Treasury investment pool was approximately 432 days.
Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of
mutual funds or government investment pools. The County of Merced issues a financial report that includes custodial
risk disclosures for the Cash in County Treasury. The report may be obtained by writing the Merced County Treasurer,
2222 M Street, Merced, California 95340.
YARTS categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation inputs
used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
YARTS' only investments, which are allocated at fair value, are in the County of Merced Treasurer’s Investment Pool.
The County invests in numerous types of investments ranging all levels in the fair value hierarchy. Accordingly, it is
not an investment type that can be categorized in any particular level in the fair value hierarchy.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

July 1, 2019
Nondepreciable:
Land
Total nondepreciable

$

595,178
595,178

Additions
$

-

Dispositions

June 30, 2020

$

$

-

595,178
595,178

325,438
8,574,915
8,900,353

65,944
65,944

-

325,438
8,640,859
8,966,297

Less: accumulated depreciation

(4,160,072)

(549,900)

-

(4,709,972)

Total depreciable, net

4,740,281

(483,956)

-

4,256,325

-

$ 4,851,503
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Depreciable:
Land improvements
Buildings and equipment
Total depreciable

Net Capital Assets

$

5,335,459

$ (483,956)

$

Buildings and equipment include the costs associated with planning and constructing the park and ride facility, buses,
bus stops and staging areas.
The amount recorded for depreciation was $549,900 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

NOTE 4 – CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENTS
National Park Service

YARTS entered into a cooperative agreement with the National Park Service which detailed the National Park
Service’s commitment to, and funding obligations for, the operations of YARTS and the transit system to be planned,
established, managed, and evaluated by YARTS and the National Park Service. The agreement stipulated the National
Park Service would:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Provide monetary support to YARTS as an operational subsidy for the Demonstration Project;
Promote regional transit service;
Consider and incorporate the needs of YARTS in the National Park Service planning process, land use
decisions, circulation changes, and operational changes within the boundaries of Yosemite National Park;
Assist YARTS by providing oversight and comments on the Request for Proposals processes; and
Assist in marketing of the regional transit service.

Merced County Association of Governments
YARTS has had an on-going administrative agreement with Merced County Association of Governments (MCAG), an
affiliated organization, to provide administrative services, including transit service management and marketing,
financial and grant administration and transportation planning services. The most current agreement consists of a
one-year term effective July 1, 2014 and allows for automatic annual extensions through June 30, 2020. Payment of
MCAG’s services is based on a monthly cost reimbursement basis.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 4 – CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENTS (continued)
VIA Adventures
On October 1, 2012, YARTS entered into an operating agreement with VIA Adventures, Inc. to provide transportation
services and equipment for the period October 1, 2012 through October 31, 2017. The agreement has been amended
to terminate on October 31, 2020. YARTS will receive no sublease rental revenues nor pay any contingent rentals for
the transportation equipment. YARTS incurred $2,598,385 in transportation and equipment services provided by VIA
Adventures for the year ended June 30, 2020.
Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG)

DR
AF
T

On November 26, 2014, YARTS entered into a two-year contract to provide public transit service from Fresno to
Yosemite National Park effective May 23, 2015 through June 30, 2018. This agreement has been amended to
terminate on July 30, 2022. YARTS’ services are not provided to FCOG with an income generating purpose. All
amounts billed to FCOG for services rendered are actual allocated costs incurred associated with providing the transit
service from Fresno to Yosemite National Park. Revenues relating to this service are presented as charges for services
and expenses are presented as operating expenses in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position.
City of Merced

On July, 1, 2019, YARTS entered into a five-year contract with the City of Merced whereby YARTS leases office and
counter space at the Merced Transportation Center through June 30, 2024. Monthly lease payments are $200 for
the term of the lease.
Department of Transportation

On July 1, 2019, YARTS entered into a four year contract with the Department of Transportation to received Federal,
State, or Private funding for transportation projects. The agreement expires on September 30, 2023.

NOTE 5 – TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT REQUIREMENTS

Section 6633
Pursuant to Section 6633.2 of the California Administrative Code, YARTS is required to meet a passenger fare revenue
recovery ratio of 10% for rural fixed services. The ratio for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was 24%.
YARTS’ passenger fare recovery ratio for the rural services with fixed routes is as follows at June 30, 2020:

Fixed Routes
Rural
Passenger fares
Other supplemental funds
Applicable fare revenues

$

Operating costs
Less expenses not related to fare generated activities:
Depreciation
Applicable operating costs
Revenue recovery ratio

$

416,192
336,875
753,067

$

3,692,230

$
$

(549,900)
3,142,330
24.0%
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 6 – STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM ALLOCATIONS
YARTS receives State Transit Assistance Program allocations from Merced County Association of Governments. State
Transit Assistance funds are to be used for transit operations. Funds shall not be allocated for operating purposes
pursuant to Sections 99313 and 99314 to an operator unless the operator meets efficient standards as described in
Section 99314.6. The Authority’s current operating cost per service hour is greater than the prior year’s average cost
per hour taking into account the Consumer Price Index (CPI), thus YARTS is not in compliance with Section 99314.6.

2019-20

2018-19

Total operating cost
Total vehicle service hours

$ 2,963,307
16,659

$ 2,841,163
18,809

Operating Cost per
Vehicle Service Hour

$

$

177.88

2018-19
ADJ

CPI
1.56%

151.05

$ 153.41
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YARTS current operating cost per service hour is greater than the average total operating cost per vehicle service
hour in the three years preceding the current 2020 fiscal year multiplied by the CPI for the same period and therefore
not in compliance, as shown below.
3 Year

Prior 3 Year

Average

Average

$ 3,067,874

$ 3,039,436

$ 3,074,292

22,957

19,326

21,426

2019-20

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

$ 2,963,307

$ 2,841,163

$ 3,313,838

16,659

18,809

22,511

CPI

1.96%

Total operating cost

Total vehicle service hours

Operating Costs per

Vehicle Service Hour

$

177.88

$

151.05

$

147.21

$

133.64

$

157.27

$

143.49

NOTE 7 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

YARTS has received federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies.
Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any
required reimbursement will not be material. The current economic climate may impact future funding levels from
governmental sources. However, we are not aware of any current funding decreases that would be subject to
disclosure.
Coronavirus Pandemic
Management has determined the events regarding the novel coronavirus require disclosure in accordance with
accounting standards. On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued an emergency proclamation declaring a state of
emergency in California due to the novel coronavirus (COVID-19). The COVID-19 outbreak is ongoing, and the
ultimate geographic spread of the virus, the duration and severity of the outbreak and the economic and other
actions that may be taken by government authorities to contain the outbreak or treat its impact are uncertain. The
ultimate impact of COVID-19 on the operations and finances of YARTS remain unknown.

18

122

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT

To the Board of Commissioners of
Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Merced, California

DR
AF
T

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Yosemite Area Regional
Transportation System (YARTS), as of and for the year ended , and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the YARTS’ financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 24,
2021.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the YARTS’ internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the YARTS’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the YARTS’ internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the YARTS’ financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, including the applicable statutes, rules and regulations of the Transportation Development Act,
including Public Utilities Code Section 99245 as enacted and amended by statute through , noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion.
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As a result of our tests, as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements, since the current operating cost per service
hour is greater than the prior year’s average cost per hour taking into account the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and
the current operating cost per service hour is greater than the average total operating cost per vehicle service hour
in the three years preceding the 2020 fiscal year multiplied by the CPI for the same period, YARTS is not in compliance
under PUC Section 99314.6. Our tests disclosed no other instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards or the Transportation Development Act.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the YARTS’ internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and the Transportation Development Act in considering the YARTS’ internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
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HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC.

Fresno, California
March 24, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Commissioners of
Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Merced, California
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System’s (YARTS) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of YARTS’ major federal programs for the year ended . YARTS’ major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of YARTS’ major federal programs based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the YARTS’
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of YARTS’ compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion the YARTS complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended .
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of YARTS is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered YARTS’ internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of YARTS’ internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

HUDSON HENDERSON & COMPANY, INC.

Fresno, California
March 24, 2021
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Programs Title

Federal
CFDA
Number

Contract or
Program
Number

20.205

CML 6305(014)

20.224

6982AF1840101

Pass-Through
to
Sub-Recipients

Federal
Expenditures

$

$

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through California Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality
Total Congestion Mitigation Air Quality
Federal Land Access Program
Total Highway Planning and Contruction Cluster
5311 F Planning

20.509

64CP17-00474

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

-

90,109
90,109

-

33,000

-

123,109

-

300,000

-

423,109

-

244,375
1,247,163

-

1,491,538

-

$ 1,914,647

U.S Department of Interior
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Direct Program:

Natural Resources Stewardship
Natural Resources Stewardship

15.944
15.944

CO-OP#PA15AC01314
CO-OP#PA15AC01314

Total U.S. Department of Interior

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
NOTE 1 – GENERAL
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents all the activity of all the federal award
programs of the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) for the year ended . The YARTS reporting
entity is defined in Note 1 to the YARTS’ financial statements. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies
as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies are included on the schedule.

NOTE 2 – BASIS OF ACCOUNTING & PRESENTATION
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Consistent with YARTS’ method of filing federal financial reports, the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is prepared using the accrual basis method of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S., Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Therefore, some of the amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of the basic financial statements. The amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards agree, in all material respects, to amounts reported within YARTS’ financial statements.

NOTE 3 – RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related periodic federal
financial reports.

NOTE 4 – CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA)

The CFDA numbers included in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards were determined
based on the program name, review of the grant or contract information and the Office of Management and Budget’s
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance.

NOTE 5 – PASS-THROUGH ENTITY IDENTIFYING NUMBERS

When Federal awards were received from a pass-through entity, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
show, if available, the identifying number assigned by the pass-through entity. When no identifying number is
shown, YARTS has either determined that no identifying number is assigned for the program or YARTS was unable
to obtain an identifying number from the pass-through entity.

NOTE 6 – INDIRECT COST RATE LIMITATION
YARTS does not use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified?

Yes

X

No

Significant deficiency(ies) that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Yes

X

None reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

X

Yes

No
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Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness identified?

Yes

X

No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Yes

X

None reported

Noncompliance material to federal awards?

Yes

X

No

Yes

X

No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2CFR section
200.516(a)?
Identification of Major Programs
CFDA Number

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

15.944

Natural Resources Stewardship

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

$ 750,000

Auditee qualified as a low risk auditee?

X

Yes

No
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
There are no financial statement findings to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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There are no federal award findings to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.
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YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
There were no financial statement findings to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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There were no federal award findings to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.
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ITEM 5d
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Malee Vang-Unruh, Grant Analyst I

RE:

Action: Authorize the allocation request for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program
for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and adopt Resolution No. 2021/04-12-01

SUMMARY
The Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) has received its fourth year of the LCTOP
(Fiscal Year 2020-21). Total apportionment to YARTS is $6,890. Mariposa County has agreed to commit
their FY 2020-21 LCTOP funding of $19,112 to YARTS. Project applications are due to Caltrans by April
9, 2021. Staff is seeking board approval to utilize these funds to acquire replacement vehicles.
A Governing Board resolution is required to authorize:
•

The filing of the FY 2020-21 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) Allocation
Request Application to Caltrans – DMT (Division of Mass Transit); and

•

The Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) Executive Director or designee to
sign and execute the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program documents, including the
Certifications and Assurances; and

•

Approve the appointment of Stacie Guzman, Executive Director, as the Authorized Agent.

REQUESTED ACTION
a. Adopt Resolution No. 2021/04-12-01 authorizing the allocation request submittal for the
purchase and replacement of six (6) 45’ over-the-road motorcoach buses; and
b. Authorize the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System Executive Director as an
Authorized Agent to sign and execute related grant documents, including the Certifications and
Assurances.
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BACKGROUND
LCTOP was created to provide operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities.
Approved projects in LCTOP will support new or expanded bus or rail services and for agencies whose
service area includes disadvantaged communities, at least 50 percent of the total allocation received
shall be expended on projects that will benefit disadvantaged communities.
LCTOP is administered by the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) in coordination with
the Air Resource Board (ARB) and the State Controller’s Office (SCO). Caltrans is responsible for
ensuring that the program's statutory requirements are met in terms of project eligibility, greenhouse
reduction, disadvantaged community benefit, and other requirements of the law.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
In the previous three (3) years, the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System Board approved the
use of the Low Carbon Transit Operation Program (LCTOP) funds for the following projects:
LCTOP
Year

LCTOP
Allocation

YARTS Budget
Year*

2017-18

$33,038

2018-19

2018-19

$43,481

2019-20

2019-20

$56,907

2020-21

Project
Reduced Fare Program for Merced County
Free-fare Program for Mariposa County
Provided free & reduced passes to the general public
for the fixed-route system
Reduced Fare Program for Merced County
Free-fare Program for Mariposa County
Provided free & reduced passes to the general public
for the fixed-route system
Free-fare Program for Merced and Mariposa County
Provided free & reduced passes to the general public
for the fixed-route system

DISCUSSION
Staff proposes utilizing the fourth cycle of LCTOP funds towards acquiring six (6) diesel over-the-road
(OTR) motorcoach buses. YARTS service requires twenty-two (22) vehicles to operate the service during
the peak months. Currently, YARTS owns ten (10) MCI D4500 over-the-road motorcoach buses. The
additional twelve (12) vehicles are provided by the current contractor, VIA, to meet the required
number of buses to perform service. The six (6) vehicles to be acquired will eliminate the need to use
six (6) of the twelve (12) vehicles owned by VIA.
The total project cost for the six (6) diesel OTR motorcoach buses is estimated at $4,500,000. Staff
proposes utilizing the $26,002 in LCTOP FY 2020-21 towards local match fund for the discretionary
federal grant section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities Program, which YARTS was awarded in November of
2019.
If you have any questions regarding this staff report, please contact Christine Chavez at:
Christine.chavez@yarts.com or 209.723.3153 x509.

134

FISCAL IMPACT
Utilizing FY 2020-21 LCTOP funds toward purchasing six (6) diesel over-the-road motorcoach buses will
reduce the Capital Fund's use by $26,002 and reduce the operating cost overhead for six (6) VIA
vehicles.
REQUESTED ACTION
a. Adopt Resolution No. 2021/04-12-01 authorizing the allocation request submittal for the
purchase and replacement of six (6) 45’ over-the-road motorcoach buses; and
b. Authorize the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System Executive Director as an
Authorized Agent to sign and execute related grant documents, including the Certifications and
Assurances.
ATTACHMENTS
LCTOP Authorized Agent Form
LCTOP Certifications and Assurances for Project
Resolution No. 2021/04-12-01
Mariposa County Letter of Authorization
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Authorized Agent
AS THE

Executive Director
(Chief Executive Officer/Director/President/Secretary)

OF THE

Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
(Name of County/City/Transit Organization)

I hereby authorize the following individual(s) to execute for and on behalf of the
named Regional Entity/Transit Operator, any actions necessary for the purpose of
obtaining Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) funds provided by
the California Department of Transportation, Division of Rail and Mass
Transportation. I understand that if there is a change in the authorized agent, the
project sponsor must submit a new form. This form is required even when the
authorized agent is the executive authority himself. I understand the Board must
provide a resolution approving the Authorized Agent. The Board Resolution
appointing the Authorized Agent is attached.
Stacie Guzman, Executive Director

OR

(Name and Title of Authorized Agent)

Nav Bagri, Finance Director

OR

(Name and Title of Authorized Agent)

Christine Chavez, Transit Manager

OR

(Name and Title of Authorized Agent)

Click here to enter text.

OR

(Name and Title of Authorized Agent)

Stacie Guzman

Executive Director

(Print Name)

(Title)

(Signature)

Approved this

12

day of

April

,

2021
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Certifications and Assurances
Lead Agency:

Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System

Project Title:

Fleet Replacement Vehicles

Prepared by:

Malee Unruh

The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) has adopted the following
Certifications and Assurances for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP).
As a condition of the receipt of LCTOP funds, Lead Agency must comply with these
terms and conditions.
A.

General
1. The Lead Agency agrees to abide by the current LCTOP Guidelines and applicable legal
requirements.
2.

B.

The Lead Agency must submit to Caltrans a signed Authorized Agent form designating
the representative who can submit documents on behalf of the project sponsor and a
copy of the board resolution appointing the Authorized Agent.

Project Administration
1. The Lead Agency certifies that required environmental documentation is complete before
requesting an allocation of LCTOP funds. The Lead Agency assures that projects
approved for LCTOP funding comply with Public Resources Code § 21100 and § 21150.
2. The Lead Agency certifies that a dedicated bank account for LCTOP funds only will be
established within 30 days of receipt of LCTOP funds.
3. The Lead Agency certifies that when LCTOP funds are used for a transit capital project,
that the project will be completed and remain in operation for its useful life.
4. The Lead Agency certifies that it has the legal, financial, and technical capacity to carry
out the project, including the safety and security aspects of that project.
5. The Lead Agency certifies that they will notify Caltrans of pending litigation, dispute, or
negative audit findings related to the project, before receiving an allocation of funds.
6. The Lead Agency must maintain satisfactory continuing control over the use of project
equipment and facilities and will adequately maintain project equipment and facilities for
the useful life of the project.
7. Any interest the Lead Agency earns on LCTOP funds must be used only on approved
LCTOP projects.
8. The Lead Agency must notify Caltrans of any changes to the approved project with a
Corrective Action Plan (CAP).
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9. Under extraordinary circumstances, a Lead Agency may terminate a project prior to
completion. In the event the Lead Agency terminates a project prior to completion, the
Lead Agency must (1) contact Caltrans in writing and follow-up with a phone call
verifying receipt of such notice; (2) pursuant to verification, submit a final report
indicating the reason for the termination and demonstrating the expended funds were
used on the intended purpose; (3) submit a request to reassign the funds to a new project
within 180 days of termination.
C. Reporting
1. The Lead Agency must submit the following LCTOP reports:
a. Semi-Annual Progress Reports by May 15th and November 15th each year.
b. A Close Out Report within six months of project completion.
c. The annual audit required under the Transportation Development Act (TDA), to
verify receipt and appropriate expenditure of LCTOP funds. A copy of the audit
report must be submitted to Caltrans within six months of the close of the year
(December 31) each year in which LCTOP funds have been received or
expended.
d. Project Outcome Reporting as defined by CARB Funding Guidelines.
e. Jobs Reporting as defined by CARB Funding Guidelines.
2. Other Reporting Requirements: CARB develops and revises Funding Guidelines that
will include reporting requirements for all State agencies that receive appropriations from
the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund. Caltrans and project sponsors will need to submit
reporting information in accordance with CARB’s Funding Guidelines, including
reporting on greenhouse gas reductions and benefits to disadvantaged communities.
D. Cost Principles
1. The Lead Agency agrees to comply with Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations 225
(2 CFR 225), Cost Principles for State and Local Government, and 2 CFR, Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State
and Local Governments.
2. The Lead Agency agrees, and will assure that its contractors and subcontractors will be
obligated to agree, that:
a. Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition
Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31, et seq., shall be used to determine the
allow ability of individual project cost items and
b. Those parties shall comply with Federal administrative procedures in accordance
with 2 CFR, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and
Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments. Every sub-recipient
receiving LCTOP funds as a contractor or sub-contractor shall comply with
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Federal administrative procedures in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State
and Local Governments.
3. Any project cost for which the Lead Agency has received funds that are determined by
subsequent audit to be unallowable under 2 CFR 225, 48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31 or 2
CFR, Part 200, are subject to repayment by the Lead Agency to the State of California
(State). All projects must reduce greenhouse gas emissions, as required under Public
Resources Code section 75230, and any project that fails to reduce greenhouse gases shall
also have its project costs submit to repayment by the Lead Agency to the State. Should
the Lead Agency fail to reimburse moneys due to the State within thirty (30) days of
demand, or within such other period as may be agreed in writing between the Parties
hereto, the State is authorized to intercept and withhold future payments due the Lead
Agency from the State or any third-party source, including but not limited to, the State
Treasurer and the State Controller.
E. Record Retention
1. The Lead Agency agrees and will assure that its contractors and subcontractors shall
establish and maintain an accounting system and records that properly accumulate and
segregate incurred project costs and matching funds by line item for the project. The
accounting system of the Lead Agency, its contractors and all subcontractors shall
conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and enable the
determination of incurred costs at interim points of completion. All accounting records
and other supporting papers of the Lead Agency, its contractors and subcontractors
connected with LCTOP funding shall be maintained for a minimum of three (3) years
after the “Project Closeout” report or final Phase 2 report is submitted (per ARB Funding
Guidelines, Vol. 3, page 3.A-16), and shall be held open to inspection, copying, and audit
by representatives of the State and the California State Auditor. Copies thereof will be
furnished by the Lead Agency, its contractors, and subcontractors upon receipt of any
request made by the State or its agents. In conducting an audit of the costs claimed, the
State will rely to the maximum extent possible on any prior audit of the Lead Agency
pursuant to the provisions of federal and State law. In the absence of such an audit, any
acceptable audit work performed by the Lead Agency’s external and internal auditors
may be relied upon and used by the State when planning and conducting additional
audits.
2. For the purpose of determining compliance with Title 21, California Code of Regulations,
Section 2500 et seq., when applicable, and other matters connected with the performance
of the Lead Agency’s contracts with third parties pursuant to Government Code § 8546.7,
the project sponsor, its contractors and subcontractors and the State shall each maintain
and make available for inspection all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and
other evidence pertaining to the performance of such contracts, including, but not limited
to, the costs of administering those various contracts. All of the above referenced parties
shall make such materials available at their respective offices at all reasonable times
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during the entire project period and for three (3) years from the date of final payment.
The State, the California State Auditor, or any duly authorized representative of the State,
shall each have access to any books, records, and documents that are pertinent to a
project for audits, examinations, excerpts, and transactions, and the Lead Agency shall
furnish copies thereof if requested.
3. The Lead Agency, its contractors and subcontractors will permit access to all records of
employment, employment advertisements, employment application forms, and other
pertinent data and records by the State Fair Employment Practices and Housing
Commission, or any other agency of the State of California designated by the State, for
the purpose of any investigation to ascertain compliance with this document.
F. Special Situations
Caltrans may perform an audit and/or request detailed project information of the project
sponsor’s LCTOP funded projects at Caltrans’ discretion at any time prior to the
completion of the LCTOP.
I certify all of these conditions will be met.
Stacie Guzman

Executive Director

(Print Authorized Agent)

(Title)

(Signature)

(Date)
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021/04-12-01
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE
CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED AGENT FORMS
FOR THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP)
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT(S):
FLEET REPLACEMENT VEHICLES
WHEREAS, the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) is an eligible project
sponsor and may receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program
(LCTOP) for transit projects; and
WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or regional
implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and
WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation (Department) as
the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and
WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering and
distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and
WHEREAS, the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System wishes to delegate
authorization to execute these documents and any amendments thereto to Stacie Guzman,
Executive Director and/or her designee.
WHEREAS, the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) wishes to
implement the following LCTOP project(s) listed above,
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Yosemite Area
Regional Transportation System that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions and
requirements set forth in the Certification and Assurances and the Authorized Agent documents
and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all LCTOP funded transit projects.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Stacie Guzman, Executive
Director be authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP program and any
Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Yosemite Area
Regional Transportation System that it hereby authorizes the submittal of the following project
nomination(s) and allocation request(s) to the Department in FY 2020-21 LCTOP funds:

(Continued to next page)
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List project(s), including the following information:
Project Name: Fleet Replacement Vehicles
Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $26,002
Short description of project: This project will purchase six (6) OTR motorcoach diesel
buses.
Benefit to a Priority Populations:
Amount to benefit Priority Populations:
Contributing Sponsors (if applicable): Mariposa County Local Transportation
Commission & Merced County Association of Governments

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at the regular meeting of the Board of the Yosemite
Area Regional Transportation System, held on the 12th day of April, 2021 by
_____________________________, who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded
by _______________________________, and which was adopted by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

AGENCY BOARD DESIGNEE:

________________________________
Stacie Guzman, Executive Director
Yosemite Area Regional Transportation
System

______________________________
Scott Silveira, Chairperson
Yosemite Area Regional
Transportation System

DATE: _______________________
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ITEM 6a
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Malee Vang-Unruh, Grant Analyst I

RE:

Action: Authorize the Caltrans 5311(f) Program funding, adopt Resolution No. 2021/0412-02 and hold a public hearing

SUMMARY
On March 22, 2021, The California Department of Transportation – Division of Rail and Mass
Transportation - Rural and Intercity Bus Branch released the Call of Projects Announcement for the
Fiscal Year 2020-21 for Section 5311(f) Intercity Bus Program.
REQUESTED ACTION
a. Hold a public hearing to allow for public comments on the application for funds from the
Caltrans 5311(f) grant program for fiscal year 2020-21; and
b. Adopt Resolution No. 2021/04-12-02 authorizing funding under FTA Section 5311 (49 U.S.C.
Section 5311) with the California Department of Transportation for operating assistance.
BACKGROUND
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311(f) Intercity Bus Program in California is designed
to address the intercity bus transportation needs of the entire state by supporting projects that
provides transportation between non-urbanized areas and urbanized areas that result in connections
of greater regional, statewide, and national significance. The 5311(f) Intercity Bus Program has been a
longstanding source of funding for YARTS.
This program will require a local match of 44.67%, which is available from non-federal funding sources
in the budget. Matching funds cannot come from other federal transportation funds.
Receipt of the funding requires a public hearing to receive comments and have discussion on the
intended funding according to the YARTS Title VI Plan, and also requires the execution of a resolution
authorizing funding under the FTA Section 5311 (49 U.S.C. Section 5311) with the California
Department of Transportation.
Section 5311F funding is the source of funding source by which CARES Act was distributed to YARTS.
FTA 5311F CARES Act Round 1 provided $326,779 and CARES Act Round 2 provided $664,933. The
allocation of this funding allowed YARTS to continue operations and not have a revenue deficit at the
end of the 2019-20 and 2020-21 fiscal year.
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PAST ACTION TAKEN
In previous years, YARTS has been annually awarded the Caltrans 5311(f) Intercity Bus Program funds
for operating assistance.
If you have any questions regarding this staff report, please contact Christine Chavez at:
Christine.chavez@yarts.com or 209.723.3153 x509.
FISCAL IMPACT
The authorization of these funds to be used for operations assistance are budgeted within the 2020-21
fiscal year in the amount of $300,000.
REQUESTED ACTION
a. Hold a public hearing to allow for public comments on the application for funds from the
Caltrans 5311(f) grant program for fiscal year 2020-21; and
b. Adopt Resolution No. 2021/04-12-02 authorizing funding under FTA Section 5311 (49 U.S.C.
Section 5311) with the California Department of Transportation for operating assistance.
ATTACHMENTS
Notice of Public Hearing 5311(f)
Resolution No. 2021/04-12-02
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS

Notice is hereby given that the YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (YARTS)
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY intends to file an application for grant funding under the 5311(f)
Intercity Bus Program/Operating for Fiscal Year 2020-21.
AND
Notice is hereby given that the YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (YARTS)
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY intends to adopt an annual budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.
A public hearing for both items will be held on Monday, April 12, 2021, at 1:00 p.m. Interested persons
may be present at the public hearing(s) via teleconference/webinar to hear comments and discussion on
the intended filing of the application.
A copy of the staff report will be available at the Merced County Association of Governments Office, 369
W. 18th Street, Merced, CA. You can also view the staff report on the website: www.YARTS.com or contact
YARTS Customer Service at (209) 723-3111.
Monday, April 12, 2021
Teleconference/Webinar Location:
https://zoom.us/join
Phone Audio:
(669) 900-6833
Webinar ID: 828 2401 7502
Passcode: 36918
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021/04-12-02
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FEDERAL FUNDING UNDER FTA SECTION 5311 (49 U.S.C. SECTION 5311) WITH
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Transportation is authorized to make grants to states through the Federal
Transit Administration to support operating assistance projects for non-urbanized public transportation systems under
Section 5311 of the Federal Transit Act (FTA C 9040.1F); and
WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation (Department) has been designated by the Governor of
the State of California to administer Section 5311 grants for transportation projects for the general public for the rural
transit and intercity bus; and
WHEREAS, Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System, hereafter known as YARTS, desires to apply for said
financial assistance to permit operation of service in Merced, Mariposa and Mono Counties; and
WHEREAS, YARTS has to the maximum extent feasible, coordinated with other transportation providers and users
in the region (including social service agencies).
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that YARTS does hereby authorize Stacie Guzman, Executive
Director, to file and execute applications on behalf of the agency, with the California Department of Transportation to aid
in the financing of operating assistance projects pursuant to Section 5311 of the Federal Transit Act (FTA C 9040.1F), as
amended.
That Stacie Guzman, Executive Director is authorized to execute and file all certification of assurances, contracts or
agreements or any other document required by the Department.
That Stacie Guzman, Executive Director is authorized to provide additional information as the Department may require in
connection with the application for the Section 5311 projects.
That Stacie Guzman, Executive Director is authorized to submit and approve request for reimbursement of funds from the
Department for the Section 5311 project(s).
PASSED AND ADOPTED by YARTS Joint Powers Authority of Merced, Mariposa and Mono Counties, State of
California, at a regular meeting of said Board of Directors held on the 12th day of April, 2021, by the following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Stacie Guzman, Executive Director
YARTS
Date: April 12, 2021

DRAFT

Scott Silveira, Chair 20-21
YARTS Joint Powers Authority
Date: April 12, 2021
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ITEM 6b
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Nav Bagri, Finance Director

RE:

Action: Approve the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget Amendment No. 1

SUMMARY
Staff is requesting a budget amendment to incorporate $644,993 of the CARES Act funding in the
current fiscal year and offset the use of local revenues. The offset local revenues will be shifted into the
capital reserve funds. Staff is also requesting an amendment to YARTS capital budget by moving
operational funds to capital funds in the amount of $38,781. Lastly, the requested action will also
approve a one-time transfer of $9,219 from the reserve fund to the capital revenue budget.
REQUESTED ACTION
a. Amend the FY 2020-21 budget to incorporate $664,993 of CARES Act funding and offset local
funding by moving to the YARTS capital reserve fund; and
b. Amend the FY 2020-21 capital budget to increase the capital revenues by $9,219 using the
capital reserve fund. The amendment would shift funds from the operations budget to the
capital expenditure budget in the amount of $38,781.
BACKGROUND
In late March 2020, the President of the United States signed a $2 trillion COVID-19 supplemental
funding bill (The CARES Act, H.R. 748) that includes $25 billion for urban and rural transit systems
across the nation with more than $3.75 billion to California transit systems. Of that share to California,
$2.3 billion was distributed by formula to urbanized transit systems under the 5307 program, and $87
million was apportioned to rural transit agencies and tribal transit providers under the Section 5311
program. There were two rounds of CARES Act funding allocations. YARTS received $326,779 in the
first round and has received $664,933 in the second round.
Staff is requesting a budget amendment to incorporate $644,993 of the CARES Act funding in the
current fiscal year and offset the use of local revenues. The offset local revenues will be shifted into the
capital reserve funds. The CARES Act funds are a 100% federal allocation, and do not require a local
match. The shifting of these local funds into the capital reserve fund does not exceed the local match
requirement for other federal or state grants YARTS receives. This will reduce the use of National Park
Service and membership contributions by member agencies and will move those funds to the YARTS
reserves. Transferring the funds into the YARTS reserve fund will help with future shortfalls in
operational revenues and will support upcoming capital purchases planned by YARTS.

150

Staff is also requesting a budget amendment to the capital budget by moving operational funds to
capital funds in the amount of $38,781. The reason to shift the funds from operating funds to capital is
due to the replacement of an engine for a YARTS owned vehicle. The cost for the replacement of the
engine and ancillary parts was $61,267. Staff is also requesting a one-time transfer of $9,219 from the
YARTS reserve to our capital revenue to help pay for the engine replacement.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
July 20, 2020: YARTS Board approved COVID budget.
FISCAL IMPACT
This amendment will increase YARTS revenues by $664,993, shifting the same amount to the YARTS
reserve. Secondarily, this amendment will increase the capital revenue in FY 20/21 by $9,219, and
reduce the same amount from the reserve fund. Lastly, this amendment will result in a reduction of the
operating expense budget by $38,781 and an increase of capital expense budget by $38,781.
REQUESTED ACTION
a. Amend the FY 2020-21 budget to incorporate $664,993 of CARES Act funding and offset local
funding by moving to the YARTS capital reserve fund; and
b. Amend the FY 2020-21 capital budget to increase the capital revenues by $9,219 using the
capital reserve fund. The amendment would shift funds from the operations budget to the
capital expenditure budget in the amount of $38,781.
ATTACHMENT
FY 2020-21 Budget amendement
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Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Draft Budget - Fiscal Year 2020/2021

Revenue

COVID-19
Impact

2020-2021

COVID-19
BUDGET
20/21

Amendement #1

Amended
Budget 20/21

Federal Funding
5311(f) Operating
CARES ACT Funds
CMAQ-Merced
Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP)
National Park Service
CARES Act Funding 5311f
State Funding
Local Transportation Funds (LTF) - Merced
Mariposa County (LTF)
Mono County (LTF)
State Transit Assistance (STA)
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)
Local Funding
Farebox Revenue
Greyhound - Merced
Other Revenue -General Ops
Interest Income -General Ops
Amtrak

$

250,000

$
200,000
$
16,500
$ 1,203,788
$
$
$
$
$

300,000
190,000
40,000
48,968
41,107

$
$
$
$
$

532,601
5,500
1,000
10,000
363,000

Fresno Staffing Service $

25,000

Total Operating Revenue

50,000
326,779

$ 3,227,464

2020-2021
State of Good Repair
Capital from Reserve
Capital from Fresno
Farebox-LCTOP
Farebox-for Capital Improvement

$

Bus and Bus facilities 5539B

$ 4,353,000

Total Capital Projects Revenue/Expense

$ 4,440,962

(14,690)
(12,332)
(266,301)
(5,500)
(100,000)

300,000
326,779
200,000
16,500
1,203,788

(134,933)
664,933

300,000
190,000
40,000
34,278
28,775
266,301
1,000
10,000
263,000

(300,000)
(190,000)
(40,000)

25,000
$

(22,044) $ 3,205,420

COVID-19
Impact

17,421

COVID-19
BUDGET
20/21

25,000
$

-

Amendement #1

17,421

26,341
15,800
28,400

(14,200)
(14,200)

$

3,205,420

Amended
Budget 20/21

26,341
15,800
14,200

17,421
9,219
26,341
15,800
14,200

4,353,000

4,353,000

9,219
$
$
$

300,000
326,779
200,000
16,500
1,068,855
664,933
34,278
28,775
266,301
1,000
10,000
263,000

4,426,762

9,219

4,435,981
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Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Draft Budget - Fiscal Year 2020/2021

Expense
COVID-19
BUDGET
20/21

COVID-19
Impact

2020-2021

Amendement #1

Amended
Budget 20/21

Professional Services
Professional Service-Contracts
Professional Service-Fuel
Prof Service-MCAG Administration
Professional Services-reservation
Professional Services-Facilitator
Audit fees
Legal Services
CMAQ
Utilities
Communication
Insurance - General Liability
Membership
Vehicle use
Training
Office Expense / Admin/Event
Rent & Lease-Equipment
Rent & Lease-Structure/Transpo Rent & Maint
YARTS-Maint. Mariposa Park & Ride
Working Reserve
CA FLAP Program

$ 2,015,657
$
430,000
$
465,506
$
18,000
$
4,000
$
8,000
$
15,000
$
200,000
$
8,505
$
6,000
$
16,500
$
2,500
$
4,725
$
11,000
$
17,000
$
10,000
$
6,558
$
15,000
$
775

Total Operating Expense

$ 3,271,226

$

2,015,657
430,000
465,506
18,000
8,000
15,000
200,000
8,505
6,000
13,500
2,500
4,725
7,975
10,000
6,558
15,000
775

(4,000)

(3,000)

(11,000)
(9,025)

16,500

2,015,657
391,219
465,506
18,000
8,000
15,000
200,000
8,505
6,000
13,500
2,500
4,725
7,975
10,000
6,558
15,000
775

(38,781)

16,500
$

(27,025) $ 3,244,201

16,500
$

(38,781) $

3,205,420

Capital-Expense

2020-2021
Capital Improvement
Farebox Purchase

$
$

Bus Purchase

$ 4,353,000

Total Capital Projects Revenue/Expense

$ 4,397,200

COVID-19
BUDGET
20/21

COVID-19
Impact

28,400
15,800

$
$

28,400
15,800

Amendement #1
$

38,781

$

38,781

$ 4,353,000
$

-

$ 4,397,200

Amended
Budget 20/21
$
$

67,181
15,800

$

4,353,000

$

4,435,981
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ITEM 6c
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Kate Molthen, Assistant Transit Manager

RE:

Action: Authorize the Agreement for Services between the Yosemite Area Regional
Transportation System and the Merced County Association of Governments for Fiscal Year
2021-22

SUMMARY
Attached is the proposed Annual Agreement for Services between the Yosemite Area Regional
Transportation System (YARTS) and the Merced County Association of Governments (MCAG) for Fiscal Year
2021-22. The only change from the previous year is an increase to the contracted monetary amount for
services provided by $95,132. This is a 20% increase from the previous year and is due to staffing hours
associated with the Operations and Maintenance contract procurement process, and the need to apply for
an manage additional grants in attempt to address the agency’s capital needs.
REQUESTED ACTION
Authorize the Chair to sign the Agreement for Services between the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation
System and the Merced County Association of Governments for a period of one year commencing on July
1, 2021 and terminating on June 30, 2022.
BACKGROUND
Since 1999, MCAG has provided transit service management and marketing, financial and grant
administration, and transportation planning services to the YARTS Joint Powers Authority (JPA) through
service agreements.
Since each year offers a window to evaluate the work being performed, this also creates a contracting
opportunity for YARTS. The decision would be to go out to bid for a provider of the services specified in the
contract rather than do a new contract with MCAG. If the Board were to choose to go out to bid and
wanted to have MCAG as one of the bidders, the Board would have to find a third party to conduct the
Request for Proposal (RFP) process. If the Board did not want MCAG to bid, then MCAG could conduct the
RFP process for YARTS.
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If YARTS did decide to go out to bid, two options would exist:
•
•

The contract with MCAG could be extended on a month-to-month basis, until such time as a
contractor was identified; or
The first year of the contract could be authorized with staff directed to facilitate the RFP process.

Nothing above should be construed to indicate that MCAG is not interested in performing the work that it
has been doing since 1999. It is simply a reminder to the Board of the options that exist for the YARTS JPA.
Consideration should be given to extend the length of the contract with MCAG in the future. As part of the
YARTS Strategic Plan, the length of the agreements between member agencies and YARTS should be
considered in conjunction with the length of the operations and maintenance contractor agreement. Staff
recommends the agreement for staffing services with MCAG should be staggered in years to prevent the
potential of the agency bidding out a staffing services agreement at the same time as bidding out the
operations and maintenance contract.
At this time, staff recommends one more annual agreement to allow for the completion of the strategic
plan and requests the board consider longer agreements as part of the plan implementation process next
year.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
May 21,2020: The YARTS Joint Powers Authority and MCAG Governing Board approved the annual
contract.
NEXT STEPS
The annual contract will be sent to the MCAG Governing Board for approval and execution.
FISCAL IMPACT
This agreement represents a 20% cost increase over the previous year with a not-to-exceed amount of
$560,629 for administrative services. This amount has been budgeted in the proposed FY2021-22 budget.
Per the terms of the agreement, MCAG is reimbursed for actual hours worked.
REQUESTED ACTION
Authorize the Chair to sign the Agreement for Services between the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation
System and the Merced County Association of Governments for a period of one year commencing on July
1, 2021 and terminating on June 30, 2022.
ATTACHMENTS
Draft YARTS/MCAG Draft Agreement for Services Fiscal Year 2021-22 (unsigned)
Exhibit A - YARTS Work Plan 2021-22
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AGREEMENT: 20210701CC
AGREEMENT BETWEEN
YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
AND
MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
FOR
MANAGEMENT, ADMINISTRATION, AND PLANNING SERVICES
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1st day of July 2021 by and between Yosemite Area
Regional Transportation System, hereinafter referred to as "YARTS", and the Merced County Association
of Governments, located at 369 W. 18th Street, Merced, CA 95340, hereinafter referred to as "MCAG".
WITNESSETH
WHEREAS, YARTS requires transit service management and marketing, financial and grant administration,
and transportation planning services;
WHEREAS, MCAG is qualified and experienced in such management, administrative, and planning
services;
NOW, THEREFORE, YARTS and MCAG, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and
agreements herein contained, mutually agree as follows:
Section One – Work to be Performed
The Fiscal Year 2021-2022 YARTS Work Plan, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part of this
Agreement (the “Scope of Work”), delineates the work to be performed by MCAG on behalf of YARTS.
Section Two – Time of Performance
MCAG shall commence work upon receipt of a written authorization to proceed from YARTS and shall
complete the performance of its obligations under this Agreement by June 30, 2022.
Section Three – Payment for Services
A. For the services outlined in the Scope of Work, MCAG shall be compensated on a cost
reimbursement basis in accordance with the fees specified in the YARTS Fiscal Year Budget
2021 - 2022. Invoices shall be submitted by MCAG at monthly intervals, and payment to
MCAG shall be made within thirty (30) days of YARTS's receipt and approval of said invoices.
B. MCAG shall maintain accounting records and any other documentation pertaining to the cost
incurred in performing the Scope of Work and shall make the records available to YARTS or its
YARTS Agreement 20210701CC Page 1 of 5
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duly authorized representatives during the Agreement period and for a period of four (4)
years from the date of final payment.
Section Four – Conferences, Inspection of Work
Duly authorized representatives of YARTS, the California Department of Transportation, or the United
States Department of Transportation shall have right of access to MCAG’s plans, files, and records relating
to the project included in this Agreement and may review the work at appropriate stages during
performance of the work.
Section Five – Ownership of Documents
All field notes, tracings, plans, specifications, maps, correspondence and other documentation
prepared or obtained by MCAG under the terms of this Agreement shall be the sole property of
YARTS, without restriction or limitation on the use thereof.
Section Six – Changes in Work
No change in the character or extent of the work to be performed by MCAG shall be made except by
supplemental agreement, in writing between YARTS and MCAG. The supplemental agreement shall
set forth the proposed changes of work, adjustment of time and adjustment of the cost to be paid
by YARTS to MCAG, if any.
Section Seven – Termination or Abandonment
A. YARTS reserves the right, by giving notice to MCAG as set forth in this Agreement, to
terminate this Agreement or to suspend or abandon all or a portion of the project and all
work connected therewith.
B. If all or a portion of the work covered by this Agreement is suspended or abandoned by
YARTS, YARTS shall pay MCAG only for services rendered or expenses incurred under this
Agreement up to the effective date of such termination, suspension or abandonment.
The payment shall be based, insofar as possible, on the amounts established in this Agreement,
or, where the Agreement cannot be applied, the payment shall be based upon a reasonable
estimate, as mutually agreed, of the percentage of work actually completed.
Section Eight – Notices
A. Any and all notices or other communications required or permitted by this Agreement or by
law to be served on or given to either party hereto, YARTS or MCAG, by the other party hereto
shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served and given when personally delivered to
the party to whom it is directed, or in lieu of such personal service when deposited in the
United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, addressed to YARTS or MCAG, at 369 West
18th Street, Merced, CA 95340.
B. Either party may change its address for the purpose of this section by giving written notice of
YARTS Agreement 20210701CC Page 2 of 5

158

such change to the other party in the manner provided in this paragraph.
Section Nine – Arbitration
Any dispute not resolved by informal discussion between the parties shall be subject to binding
arbitration before the American Arbitration Association and based on its rules for commercial
arbitration with one arbitrator. All costs associated with the arbitration shall be borne equally by the
parties. However, in any such arbitration the arbitrator has authority to allocate costs, and the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney fees and costs.
Section 10 – Indemnification
MCAG shall hold YARTS, and its representatives, harmless of and free from any and all liability which
might arise out of the performance by MCAG of this Agreement. Should YARTS or any of its
representatives be named in any litigation, or should any claim be made against them, arising out of
or relating to this Agreement, MCAG shall defend YARTS and its representatives and shall indemnify
them for any acts or omissions committed by MCAG or its employees in the performance of this
Agreement.
Section 11 – Independent Contractor
YARTS and MCAG agree that MCAG is an independent contractor. MCAG shall be solely responsible
for the conduct and control of the work performed under this Agreement. MCAG shall be free to
tender consulting services to others during the term of this Agreement, so long as such activities do
not interfere with or diminish MCAG's ability to fulfill the obligations established herein to YARTS.
Section 12 – General Compliance with Laws and Attorney’s Fees
MCAG shall be required to comply with all federal state and local laws and ordinances applicable to
the performance of the work covered by this Agreement including, but not limited to, complying with
laws regulating worker's compensation insurance coverage and all applicable federal laws and
regulations as required by the Federal Transit Administration and related agencies. If any action at
law is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to collect reasonable attorney's fees and costs.
Section 13 – Assignment
MCAG acknowledges and agrees that the assignment or transfer of any portion of the work covered
by this Agreement, except as otherwise provided herein or with the written authorization of YARTS,
is prohibited.
Section 14 – Nondiscrimination Civil Rights Act of 1964
During the performance of the work covered by this Agreement, MCAG shall comply with regulations
relative to non-discrimination in federally assisted programs (49 CFR 21 through Appendix Hand 23
CFR 7I0.405(b)), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement.
YARTS Agreement 20210701CC Page 3 of 5
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Section 15 – Government Code Section 7550
MCAG and YARTS acknowledge the requirements set forth in Government Code Section 7550 relating to
written documents or reports.
Section 16 – Successors and Assigns
This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the
respective parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto executed this Agreement the day and year first
above written.

Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System:

Merced County Association of Governments:

_______________________________________
Chair

____________________________________
Chair

Approved as to Form:

Attest:

______________________________________
Haden Law Office, YARTS Counsel

____________________________________
Stacie Guzman, Executive Director

YARTS Agreement 20210701CC Page 4 of 5
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WORK PLAN
YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (YARTS) MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES
Purpose:
The Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) contracts with Merced County
Association of Governments (MCAG) to provide management, planning, and administrative services
to the transit system, including oversight of the day-to-day operations of the transit system.
Discussion:
Entering its 21st year of operation in May of 2021,YARTS provides an alternative to driving in the
Yosemite region for travelers and locals. It operates year-round on the Hwy 140 corridor between
Merced and Yosemite National Park, through Mariposa County and during the summer, June through
September, on the Hwy 120/395 corridors between Yosemite Valley and Mono County destinations
and between Tuolumne County destinations and Yosemite Valley.
As of May 2015, through contract with the Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG), YARTS now also
operates on Hwy 41 between Fresno and Yosemite National Park during the summer (May – Sept.).
Tasks:
610 – Management, Administration and Planning
Provide administration functions to the YARTS Joint Powers Authority (JPA) Board and the YARTS Authority
Advisory Committee (AAC), at the direction of the YARTS Board.
• Prepare the YARTS Work Plan
• Prepare agendas for the YARTS Board and the AAC
• Confer with Board Chair to create the Board agenda
• File notices of Public Hearings as needed
• Staff Board and AAC meetings and facilitate video conferencing as needed
• Record and prepare the minutes from Board and AAC meetings
• Implement and coordinate Board directives
• Maintain the YARTS accounting records
• Prepare financial updates for the Board and the AAC for each regular meeting or at least quarterly
• Contract for and complete an annual audit
• Prepare and administer the approved YARTS budget
• Identify, apply for, and administer grants to fund operating and capital projects
• Administer YARTS contracts and agreements and do billing for same, I.E. Amtrak, NPS, VIA,
Greyhound, Fresno COG
• Monitor service contractor performance
• File required state and federal reports
• Implement on-board rider satisfaction survey annually, typically during the busier visitor season
• Annually review the operating schedules and demand by run. Recommend changes as needed
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•
•
•

•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•

Contract for liability and property insurance coverage
Participate in Social Services Transportations Advisory Committee (SSTAC) meetings in the three
member-county service areas
Maintain working relationships with elected and appointed state and federal officials, Yosemite
National Park management, Park Concessionaire management, Amtrak, environmental
organizations and member-county staff
Maintain contractual agreements with Greyhound Bus Lines and Amtrak to share customers and
jointly promote public transit to Yosemite and the region
Continue to work with the County of Tuolumne, TCTC, on the service on Hwy 120 between
Tuolumne County destinations and Yosemite NP.
Maintain YARTS-owned property, i.e. replacing broken glass at shelters as needed, clean and
remove graffiti and stickers from shelters, review maintenance on YARTS-owned buses with
contractor
Under written agreement with the National Park Service, work with Yosemite NP to establish
temporary “summer peak demand” service in Tuolumne, Mono and Mariposa/Merced Counties.
This project includes working with locals in each project county to determine their priorities and
preferences, writing schedules, preparing and distributing marketing materials, and attending
regular bi-weekly (phone) meetings with park staff to evaluate and direct the effort.
Participate in CalACT legislative meetings (phone) to stay current on legislation that effects rural
public transit and attend CalACT semi-annual meetings for professional growth and improvement
Work with the Board to establish the appropriate number of vehicles in the YARTS-owned fleet
Start the process to establish an Acquisition/Replacement fund within the YARTS budget
Seek funding from the most advantageous source for the purchase of buses to grow the YARTSowned fleet to the level directed by the Board
Create a Capital Acquisition/Replacement fund within the YARTS Budget.

621 – Fresno COG Contract
• Administer the requirements of the agreement between YARTS and the Fresno Council of
Governments (FCOG) for the provision of public transit on Hwy 41 between Fresno and Yosemite
National Park as specified in a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between YARTS and FCOG.
• Coordinate regularly with the FCOG project manager.
• Provide timely billing, as specified in the agreement, to FCOG seeking reimbursement for work
performed on their behalf.
• Prepare a quarterly financial report to FCOG
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625 – Outreach and Marketing
Provide outreach and marketing efforts to promote ridership.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Schedules - Create, distribute and install seasonal schedules and brochures, and other
promotional materials, as needed
Administer all aspects of the YARTS marketing budget from identifying funding sources through
approving the payment of invoices
Ticket vendors – Administer ticket sales through contracted vendors; includes distribution of
tickets, review of sales reports, and collection of revenue
Public Information – Prepare and distribute news releases to media contacts as appropriate
Create and place advertising in appropriate venues
Public Appearances – seek opportunities for and make public speaking and other appearances
where possible to market the transit service
Maintain the YARTS web site and continue the ongoing remodel/update of the site
Refine and market the ticket reservation program
Sustain the social media marketing efforts
Maintain YARTS’ presence on Google Transit
Respond to rider comments and complaints
Maintain a good working relationship with the Gateway Partners organization
Conduct “Fam Tours” for media and local stakeholders annually
Maintain contact with tour operators who use YARTS in their business plans;
Build and/or retain strong relationships with connecting transit providers who serve the Yosemite
region including, but not limited to, Greyhound, Amtrak, Boutique Air, United Airlines, Fresno
Airport, ESTA, Merced Co. “The Bus”, Fresno Area Express, Madera County Transit, and Tuolumne
County Transit.
Under written agreement with the Park Service, conduct marketing efforts toward public use of
the “peak period” expanded transit service during the summer months.

Cost:
$560,629
Funding: YARTS
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ITEM 6d
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Nav Bagri, Finance Director

RE:

Action: Review and adopt the YARTS Operating and Capital Budget for
Year 2021-22 and hold a public hearing

Fiscal

SUMMARY
Staff is presenting the Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System (YARTS) operating and capital
budgets for the fiscal year (FY) 2021-22 for review and adoption.
REQUESTED ACTION
a. Hold a public hearing to allow for public comment on the proposed budget for FY 2021-22; and
b. Approve the proposed YARTS budget for FY 2021-22.
BACKGROUND
With more than 20 years of history, YARTS is the product of a partnership among the member counties
of its Joint Powers Authority, the U.S. Forest Service, and the National Park Service. YARTS was the
solution to the congestion and pollution created by millions of people visiting the Yosemite National
Park every year in personal vehicles. Today, YARTS provides coach transit service into the Park from
each of the four highways into Yosemite during the summer months and year-round on Highway 140.
Each year, more than 100,000 visitors enter Yosemite on a YARTS bus.
YARTS has historically used a combination of federal, state and local funding for operations and capital
revenues for the public transit service. Federal funding accounts for 40 to 64 percent of total operating
revenues over the past 4 fiscal years, in increasing proportions. Recent events such as wildfires and the
Coronavirus pandemic, have emphazied the need for YARTS to be responsive to outside impacts, and to
provide services within a sustainable funding framework. As such, YARTS staff is working with LSC
Consulting to complete a Strategic Plan to help identify short and long term strategies to create a more
sustainable system by addressing the urgent capital equipment needs and the need to identify a
sustainable level of operating funds.
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YARTS has two separate budget documents – one for operations and one for capital. Together, these
documents make up the annual budget for YARTS. (Please note that the current Hwy 41 service is
managed with a separate budget by the Fresno Council of Governments.)
Tuolumne County joined the YARTS JPA in March of 2021, which increased YARTS local revenues by
$67,000 for the year and moving forward. In FY 20/21, YARTS received two CARES Act allocations
totaling $991,712 as one time, short-term revenues.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
July 20, 2020: YARTS Joint Powers Authority Board approved the YARTS modified budget with COVID
Impact for Operation and Capital Budget for FY 2020-21.
April 6, 2020: YARTS Joint Powers Authority Board approved the YARTS Operation and Capital Budget
for FY 2020-21.
DISCUSSION
Operating Revenues
In preparing the FY21/22 draft budget, staff recognized that YARTS was facing a revenue shortfall of
$284,626 for the coming year due to a 34% reduction in projected farebox and a 28% reduction in
revenue from the thruway service agreement with Amtrak. However, after calculating changes in
expenditures as summarized below, YARTS had a deficit of $175,325 to address in order to preserve
operations at the current level. In response to the deficit, staff included a one-time transfer of reserve
funds in the amount of $175,325 to balance out the FY21/22 budget.
Operating Expenditures
YARTS expenditures overall decreased by 4% as part of the strategy to produce a balanced budget.
A portion of the reduction is related to contracted service for operation and maintenance and
associated reduction in fuel. The reduction to the contracted service is a result of the contractor's
revised service agreement threshold which reduced service hours by 13% over previous years which
equates to an overall 1% reduction in contract services and a 13% reduction in fuel consumption.
However, YARTS staff time increased 20% because of the anticipated costs associated with preparing to
bid for new contract services for operations and maintenance, and to pursue additional grants for
urgent capital needs.
Capital Budget
YARTS capital budget consists of Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) funding to serve as
the grant match for future capital. Staff has also included the $4,379,200 in FTA 5339 funding from the
battery-electric grant award for 3-6 buses. Staff is still working with Caltrans to determine the potential
of converting the electric bus award to diesel buses.
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Federal relief funding considerations
At this time, there are many unknowns related to potential allocations of additional funds that may be
realized by YARTS. In consideration of creating a balanced budget for the 2021-22 fiscal year, YARTS
staff recommends utilizing the reserve fund to fund the shortfall, but recommends if YARTS receives
additional funds from either the Coronavirus Response and Relief Suppemental Appropriations Act of
2021 (CRRSAA) or the American Rescue Plan Act, or other relief funding that those be expended before
local funds, and any savings be directly reallocated to the reserve fund to be used for capital needs and
operational shortfalls in funding. If additional funds are received, YARTS staff will bring back to the
Board an amendment to modify the budget accordingly.
FISCAL IMPACT
Overall YARTS budget will decrease by 4% compared to the previous year.
REQUESTED ACTION
a. Hold a public hearing to allow for public comments on the proposed budget for FY 2021-22; and
b. Approve the proposed YARTS budget for the FY 2021-22.
ATTACHMENTS
Notice of Public Hearing
YARTS FY 2021-22 budget
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS

Notice is hereby given that the YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (YARTS)
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY intends to file an application for grant funding under the 5311(f)
Intercity Bus Program/Operating for Fiscal Year 2020-21.
AND
Notice is hereby given that the YOSEMITE AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (YARTS)
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY intends to adopt an annual budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.
A public hearing for both items will be held on Monday, April 12, 2021, at 1:00 p.m. Interested persons
may be present at the public hearing(s) via teleconference/webinar to hear comments and discussion on
the intended filing of the application.
A copy of the staff report will be available at the Merced County Association of Governments Office, 369
W. 18th Street, Merced, CA. You can also view the staff report on the website: www.YARTS.com or contact
YARTS Customer Service at (209) 723-3111.
Monday, April 12, 2021
Teleconference/Webinar Location:
https://zoom.us/join
Phone Audio:
(669) 900-6833
Webinar ID: 828 2401 7502
Passcode: 36918
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Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Draft Budget - Fiscal Year 2021/2022

Revenue
COVID-19 BUDGET
20/21

COVID-19 Impact

2020-2021

Budget Amendment 2021/2022 Projections

Change %

Federal Funding
5311(f) Operating
CARES ACT Funds
CMAQ-Merced
Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP)
National Park Service
State Funding
Local Transportation Funds (LTF) - Merced
Mariposa County (LTF)
Mono County (LTF)
Tuolumne County (LTF)
State Transit Assistance (STA)
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)
Local Funding
Funds from the Reserve
Farebox Revenue
Greyhound - Merced
Other Revenue -General Ops
Interest Income -General Ops
Amtrak

$

250,000

$
$
$

200,000
16,500
1,203,788

$
$
$

300,000
190,000
40,000

$
$

48,968
41,107

(14,690)
(12,332)
-

34,278
28,775
-

$
$
$
$
$

532,601
5,500
1,000
10,000
363,000

(266,301)
(5,500)
100,000

266,301
1,000
10,000
263,000

-

Fresno Staffing Service $

25,000

$

3,227,464

Total Operating Revenue

300,000
326,779
200,000
16,500
1,203,788
300,000
190,000
40,000

326,779

664,933

(300,000)
(190,000)
(40,000)

(134,933)

25,000
$

127,956

$

3,205,420

$

-

$

300,000
100,000
1,203,788

0%
-100%
-50%
-100%
0%

300,000
191,000
40,000
67,000
46,236
6,890

0%
1%
0%
100%
35%
-76%

175,325
350,000
500
1,000
10,000
260,975

31%
100%
0%
0%
-1%

25,000

0%

3,077,714

-4%

Capital-Revenue

COVID-19 BUDGET
20/21

COVID-19 Impact
State of Good Repair
Capital from Fresno
Capital Reserve
Farebox-LCTOP
Farebox-for Capital Improvement

$
$

2020-2021
17,421
26,341

$
$

15,800
28,400

Bus and Bus facilities 5539B

$

4,353,000

Total Capital Projects Revenue/Expense

$

4,440,962

Budget Amendment 2021/2022 Projections

17,421
26,341
9,219

Change %

9,889
28,263
15,800
17,500

-43%
7%
-100%
0%
23%
0%

(14,200)

15,800
14,200
4,353,000

4,353,000

(14,200)

4,426,762

4,424,452
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Yosemite Area Regional Transportation System
Draft Budget - Fiscal Year 2021/2022

Expense
2020-2021

COVID-19 BUDGET
20/21

COVID-19 Impact

Budget Amendment

2021/2022 Projections

Change %

Professional Services
Professional Service-Contracts
Professional Service-Fuel
Prof Service-MCAG Administration
Prof Service-MCAG Administration-CMAQ
Prof Service-MCAG Administration-Fresno COG
Professional Services-reservation
Professional Services-Facilitator
Audit fees
Legal Services
CMAQ
Utilities
Communication
Insurance - General Liability
Membership
Vehicle use
Training
Office Expense / Admin/Event
Rent & Lease-Equipment
Rent & Lease-Structure/Transpo Rent & Maint
YARTS-Maint. Mariposa Park & Ride
Working Reserve
CA FLAP Program

$
$
$

2,015,657
430,000
465,506

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

18,000
4,000
8,000
15,000
200,000
8,505
6,000
16,500
2,500
4,725
11,000
17,000
10,000
6,558
15,000
775

$

16,500

Total Operating Expense

$

3,271,226

2,015,657
430,000
421,656
43,850

(38,912)

18,000
8,000
8,423
156,150
8,505
6,000
13,500
4,725
7,975
10,000
6,558
15,000
775

(4,000)
(6,577)

(3,000)
(2,500)
(11,000)
(9,025)

16,500
$

(36,102) $

3,191,274

$

1,989,300
375,000
486,891
48,738
25,000
18,000

-1%
-13%
15%
11%
100%
0%

6,900
8,423
51,262
8,200
6,200
13,200
2,500
2,600
6,900
8,800
6,800
13,000
-

-14%
0%
-67%
-4%
3%
-2%
100%
-45%
-13%
-12%
4%
-13%
-100%

-

-100%

3,077,714

-4%

Capital-Expense

Capital Improvement
Farebox Purchase

$
$

Bus Purchase

$

4,353,000

Total Capital Projects Revenue/Expense

$

4,397,200

COVID-19 BUDGET
20/21

COVID-19 Impact

2020-2021
28,400
15,800

$
$
$

-

28,400
15,800

Budget Amendment 2021/2022 Projections
$

38,912

$
$

55,652
15,800

96%
0%

$

4,353,000

$

4,353,000

0%

$

4,397,200

$

4,424,452

1%
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ITEM 6e
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Christine Chavez, Transit Manager

RE:

Action: Nominate and elect a Chair and Vice Chair of the YARTS Joint Powers Authority for
Fiscal Year 2021-22

SUMMARY
Article V, Section 4 of the YARTS Bylaws provides for the election of officers at the last regular meeting
preceding July 1 of each year.
REQUESTED ACTION
Nominate and elect a Chair and Vice Chair of the YARTS Joint Powers Authority for Fiscal Year 2021-22.
BACKGROUND
As this is the last scheduled meeting of this fiscal year, a new Chair and Vice Chair need to be elected. The
new officers will assume office effective July 1, 2021 and serve a term of one year through June 30, 2022.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
April 6, 2020: The YARTS Joint Powers Authority elected Director Scott Silveira to serve as Chair and Director
Bob Gardner to serve as Vice Chair for Fiscal Year 2020-21.
April 8, 2019: The YARTS Joint Powers Authority elected Director Miles Menetrey to serve as Chair and
Director Scott Silveira to serve as Vice Chair for Fiscal Year 2019-20.
April 9, 2018: The YARTS Joint Powers Authority elected Director Daron McDaniel to serve as Chair and
Director Miles Menetrey to serve as Vice Chair for Fiscal Year 2018-19.
NEXT STEPS
None.
FISCAL IMPACT
None.
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REQUESTED ACTION
Nominate and elect a Chair and Vice Chair of the YARTS Joint Powers Authority for Fiscal Year 2021-22.
ATTACHMENT
YARTS Joint Powers Authority Member List
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YARTS Joint Powers Authority Members
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Director Scott Silveira, Merced County, Supervisor, Chair 2020-21
Director Bob Gardner, Mono County Supervisor, Vice Chair 2020-21
Director Ryan Campbell, Tuolumne County Supervisor
Director Stacy Corless, Mono County Supervisor
Director Kathleen Haff, Tuolumne County Supervisor
Director Daron McDaniel, Merced County Supervisor
Director Miles Menetrey, Mariposa County Supervisor
Director Rosemarie Smallcombe, Mariposa County Supervisor
Director Rey Leon, Mayor, City of Huron (non-voting)
Director Michelle Roman, Mayor, City of Kingsburg (non-voting)
Director Tom Wheeler, Madera County Supervisor (non-voting)
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ITEM 6f

DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Christine Chavez, Transit Manager

RE:

Action: Approve the Meeting Schedules for Fiscal Year 2021-22

SUMMARY
The YARTS Joint Powers Authority (JPA) approves meeting schedules for both the JPA and YARTS Authority
Advisory Committee (AAC) each April.
REQUESTED ACTION
Approve the staff recommended meeting dates and times for the YARTS Joint Powers Authority and YARTS
Authority Advisory Committee for Fiscal Year 2021-22.
BACKGROUND
The YARTS Joint Powers Agreement and the JPA Bylaws establish that the YARTS Board of Directors shall
adopt a schedule of meetings for the upcoming fiscal year by the last regularly scheduled meeting of the
current fiscal year. In setting the meeting dates, there are two important requirements to consider:
•
•

The election of officers must take place on or before the last regularly scheduled meeting of the
fiscal year. The Chair and Vice Chair are selected for a one-year term.
The budget for the upcoming fiscal year must be adopted no later than April 15 of the current fiscal
year, following a public hearing.

PAST ACTION TAKEN
April 6, 2020: The YARTS JPA approved the meeting schedules for the JPA and YARTS AAC for Fiscal Year
2020-21.
DISCUSSION
Staff proposes the following meeting schedule, locations and times listed below for the Joint Powers
Authority for Fiscal Year 2021-22. Please note, staff is recommending one change to the regular board
meeting schedule which is to move the January meeting to early February. The following schedules reflect
that proposed change.
The meeting locations are noted per the regular rotation cycle. In-person board meetings will resume at
the direction of the Governing Board. Until that time, all board and AAC meetings will be held via Zoom.
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DATE
Monday, July 12, 2021
Monday, October 18, 2021
Monday, February 7, 2022
Monday, April 11, 2022

HOST LOCATION
Mammoth Lakes
Mariposa County
Tuolumne County
Merced County Association of Governments

TIME
1:00 p.m.
1:00 p.m.
1:00 p.m.
1:00 p.m.

The Authority Advisory Committee (AAC) meetings are usually scheduled the Wednesday prior to the JPA
meeting. The AAC meetings are always held at 1:30 p.m. and hosted by the Merced County Association of
Governments, with videoconferencing available at satellite locations. Recommended meeting dates and
times for the AAC are listed below for Fiscal Year 2021-22.
DATE
Wednesday, July 7, 2021
Wednesday, October 6, 2021
Wednesday, February 2, 2022
Wednesday, April 6, 2022

TIME
1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.
1:30 p.m.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.
REQUESTED ACTION
Approve the staff recommended meeting dates and times for the YARTS Joint Powers Authority and YARTS
Authority Advisory Committee for Fiscal Year 2021-22.
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ITEM 7a
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Kate Molthen, Assistant Transit Manager

RE:

Discussion: YARTS/Amtrak Thruway Bus Agreement Contract Extension No. 2 – Fiscal Year
2021-22

SUMMARY
Amtrak contracts with YARTS to provide thruway bus service to Yosemite National Park for the San Joaquin
line.
REQUESTED ACTION
For discussion only.
BACKGROUND
Annually, Amtrak contracts with YARTS to provide thruway services into Yosemite National Park. The
partnership reduces the potential overlap in mass transit services. The contract between YARTS and
Amtrak currently in place expires June 30, 2021. Staff is in coordination with Amtrak for a one-year
extension of the contract to evaluate ridership and thruway bus service needs for the Amtrak San Joaquin’s
line.
In October of 2020, staff worked with Amtrak to revise the funding agreement for the 2020-21 fiscal year.
In the 2020 calendar year, Amtrak suspended thruway service on YARTS between March and September.
With significant decreases in Amtrak and YARTS Ridership, Amtrak revenues were unable to sustain the
agreement amounts in the funding agreement for throughway bus service provided by YARTS. YARTS and
Amtrak agreed to reduce the funding commitment by 28%, taking annual Amtrak fare revenues from
$363,000 to $260,975.
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Staff is working on details to be included in the Extension of Services Contract No. 2 between YARTS and
Amtrak. The agreement is for a period of one year, beginning July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. The
agreement maintains the current revised daily rate of $715.00 for the Highway 140 service. Amtrak
passengers can ride all corridors through Amtrak and are paid at an actual cost per ticket. The extension
will be executed by the Executive Director, per Resolution 2018/01-22-02.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
April 2020: YARTS/Amtrak Thruway Bus Services Contract Extension No. 1 was approved by the Joint
Powers Authority.
July 2017: YARTS/Amtrak Thruway Bus Services Contract was approved by the Joint Powers Authority.
NEXT STEPS
The Executive Director will execute this agreement extension No. 2 with Amtrak for the 2021-22 fiscal year.
FISCAL IMPACT
•
•

Highway 140 – This would provide $260,975 in revenue as budgeted for Fiscal Year 2021-22.
All Corridors – Paid as an actual cost per e-ticket and counted towards farebox revenue.

REQUESTED ACTION
For discussion only.
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ITEM 7b
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Christine Chavez, Transit Manager

RE:

Discussion: YARTS/VIA Adventures, Inc. Contract Extension No. 2

SUMMARY
YARTS contracts with VIA Adventures, Inc. to provide operations, maintenance, and fuel pass-throughs for
YARTS Services. In 2018 YARTS entered into a two-year agreement with two one-year extension options.
YARTS is interested in exercising the second one-year extension option.
REQUESTED ACTION
For discussion only.
BACKGROUND
VIA Adventures is the YARTS Operations and Maintenance services provider. In 2017 YARTS Entered into an
agreement with VIA Adventures as the Operations and Maintenance contractor for three years, with two
optional one-year contract extensions. The first contract extension between YARTS and VIA Adventures,
Inc. expires October 31, 2021. YARTS is seeking to exercise the second extension option with VIA
Adventures, Inc. for services to be provided November 1, 2021 through October 31, 2022. The action to
approve the second extension option with VIA Adventures through October 31, 2022 will come to the
AAC/Governing Board in July of 2021. The second extension amendment will be the final extension
available between the currently procured YARTS/VIA Adventures agreement.
PAST ACTION TAKEN
September 2020: YARTS/VIA Adventures, Inc. Amendment No. 2 (modified payment structure) was
approved by the Joint Powers Authority.
July 2020: YARTS/VIA Adventures, Inc. one-time payment agreement in an amount not to exceed $313,313
for the 2019-20 service year was approved by the Joint Powers Authority.
July 2020: YARTS/VIA Adventures, Inc. Amendment No. 1 (contract extension No. 1) was approved by the
Joint Powers Authority.
November 2018: YARTS/VIA Adventures, Inc. Contract was approved by the Joint Powers Authority.
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NEXT STEPS
Provide staff direction on the extension of the YARTS/VIA Adventures contract for YARTS Operations and
Maintenance. Staff will be working over the next few months to scope and bid out the services for YARTS
effective November 2022.
FISCAL IMPACT
The agreement amount is $1,989,300 and has been budgeted for operations of the 2021-22 fiscal year.
REQUESTED ACTION
For discussion only.
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ITEM 7c
DATE:

April 7, 2021

TO:

Joint Powers Authority

FROM:

Christine Chavez, Transit Manager

RE:

Discussion: YARTS Strategic Plan – Preliminary Recommendations of White Paper

SUMMARY
LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc. (LSC) will provide a presentation of the draft recommendations
included in the YARTS Strategic Plan White Paper. These draft recommendations build upon the
evaluation of existing conditions and issues presented in the Working Paper dated January 5, 2021.
Overall, the strategic plan is designed to address key near-term issues facing YARTS including funds
needed to replace aging buses and to expand the agency-owned fleet. As such, LSC will present,
among other important items, recommended service modifications to all routes to allow for the
reduction in the cost of operations and the shifting of those cost savings to capital needs.
REQUESTED ACTION
For discussion only.
BACKGROUND
As staff has presented over the last year, and as the YARTS JPA Board has navigated the challenges of
the ongoing COVID-19 crisis, it has become apparent that YARTS is facing several years of significant
budget challenges. In addition to the uncertainty of how COVID-19 will continue to impact revenue
sources, the agency has inadequate capital reserves to purchase buses to add to the agency’s fleet or
to replace aging vehicles that are becoming costlier to maintain. A top priority for agency staff is to
pursue a long-term financial sustainability plan to help the agency not only recover from the impacts of
COVID-19 but to better balance and plan for the agency’s operating and capital needs for years to
come.
In October 2020, YARTS contracted with LSC Transportation Consultants to complete a YARTS Strategic
Plan to define a sustainable operating, capital improvement and funding plan for YARTS given the
recent impacts of COVID-19, changes in funding availability, the pressing need for capital
improvements and other realities. The schedule for the completion of the Strategic Plan is below.
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October 2020
Oct-Dec 2020
January 2021
Jan-April 2021
April 2021
May/June 2021
July 2021
August 2021
November 2021
Nov 21/Mar 22
April 2022
April-June 2022
July 2022
Aug-Oct 2022
November 1, 2022

LSC and Staff will form a technical advisory group to assist with the Strategy
Study planning efforts; JPA Board and AAC will be engaged to identify key
issues to be addressed by LSC in the Strategy Study.
MCAG staff will begin developing new RFP document
LSC and staff will present a Current Conditions and Projections memo to the
AAC and the JPA Board
Virtual workshops with the AAC/JPA Board may be needed to discuss budget
scenarios and service options needed to inform the development of the RFP
LSC and staff will present the recommendations for the Strategic Plan White
paper
An additional virtual JPA board/AAC meeting may be needed to present and
adopt the final Strategic Plan and direct staff on the development of the O&M
RFP
Finalize the O&M RFP
Release the O&M RFP
Deadline to submit proposals
Evaluate, Interview, Select and Negotiate
JPA Board approves new O&M contract
Caltrans review of O&M contract
Contract execution
Transition of new contractor, if applicable
Start of service under new contract

DISCUSSION
LSC has completed the attached Strategic Plan White Paper which includes draft plan
recommendations for review and discussion. Staff has reviewed these recommendations with LSC and
are in agreement with the strategies enclosed. As several of the recommendations are related to
ongoing discussions related to Madera County board membership, the future of the Hwy 41 service,
and other efforts, several updates are provided below.
Madera County
Discussion with Madera County on the continuation of services in Madera County starting in summer
of 2023 (FY 23/24) and beyond:
Staff met with Supervisor Wheeler and Madera County staff last month and discussed the interest in
the County maintaining the Hwy 41 service via contribution or membership to the YARTS Governing
Board. This service would start the summer of 2023 following the conclusion of the Fresno COG
supported service in the summer of 2022. Madera County expressed a strong interest to make a
favorable arrangement work. Staff provided ridership statistics, and historical grant/budget
information that would help facilitate internal discussions, as well as a rough estimate of a local
contribution amount. YARTS staff will follow up with Madera County in April to see what conclusions
were drawn or support will be needed to have the opportunity come to fruition and get some direction
as it relates to the operations and maintenance contract procurement.
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Caltrans Request to convert ZEB grant award to diesel buses
Staff continues to work with Caltrans and the Federal Transit Administration to evaluate the ability for
YARTS to modify the FTA 5339b grant award received to include diesel buses, rather than zeroemission electric as a direct result of the electrification infrastructure challenges YARTS faces.
Earmark
Merced County Association of Governments/YARTS submitted an earmark request to Congressman Jim
Costa for federal funding to cover the full cost of fleet replacement and expansion to make YARTS be
able to operate full service in the Spring of 2024. The request also included funding to conduct an
electric vehicle infrastructure analysis of the six-county region. Total request: $14,550,000.
Property and Fleet review – VIA
Staff met with VIA to discuss and review the opportunity to acquire used vehicles owned by VIA
Adventures to operate YARTS summer services. Consideration should be given to the acquisition of
used vehicles if necessary. Local funds may be better utilized as a grant match for a new bus, if funds
become available to reduce maintenance costs down the road. Staff also toured the property offered
to YARTS for acquisition. It is functional but may need some modifications to fit the needs of YARTS.
The price is currently unknown and would need further evaluation.
FISCAL IMPACT
MCAG provided the funding needed to complete this study. There is no direct impact to the YARTS
budget at this time.
REQUESTED ACTION
For discussion only.
ATTACHMENT
YARTS Strategic Plan White Paper Draft Plan Recommendations

188

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
2690 Lake Forest Road, Suite C
P.O. Box 5875
Tahoe City, CA 96145
530‐583‐4053 • FAX: 530‐583‐5966
info@lsctahoe.com • www.lsctrans.com

YARTS Strategic Plan White Paper
Draft Plan Recommendations
DATE:

4/1/2021

TO:

Stacie Guzman, YARTS Executive Director

FROM:

Gordon Shaw, Principal, LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.

Introduction
This White Paper presents LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.’s initial draft recommendations for the
YARTS Strategy Study. It is intended as the basis for further discussion and refinement by the YARTS Board
and Authority Advisory Committee. It builds upon the evaluation of existing conditions and issues
presented in the Working Paper date January 5, 2021. As detailed in the previous document, the key
near‐term issues facing YARTS are:


The very important issue of replacing the aging existing YARTS‐owned fleet.



The beneficial need to expand the YARTS‐owned fleet to avoid the need for contractor‐provided
vehicles.



Issues with shifting to a battery electric bus fleet in the immediate future.



Changes in ridership patterns and connecting Amtrak San Joaquins service that impact the
optimal service plan.



Assuring sustainable funding not only for operations, but for ongoing administration and capital
needs.

An overall goal of this study is to define a scope of work for the Request For Proposals (RFP) that will
guide the selection of a contractor at the end of the current service contract in November of 2022, as well
as maximize the potential for a competitive bid process. A draft RFP should be developed by the Summer
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of 2021 in order to provide potential bidders with an opportunity to observe YARTS service in full
operation.
In short, this plan would reduce services in order to generate the local funds (within existing available
local resources) to replace the aging YARTS‐owned fleet and expand it to reduce long‐term operating
costs. This document first presents service recommendations, with a focus on reductions in service to
generate local match funding. Next, capital recommendations are presented, followed by financial and
institutional strategies. This plan also reflects the recent decision to end funding provided through Fresno
Council of Governments after the summer 2022 operating season, which affects the 41 Route.

SERVICE RECOMMENDATIONS
The following presents recommended service modifications to all routes. Table 1 presents a summary of
the recommended service modifications, while Table 2 presents details of the analysis.
Table 1: Draft Recommended Service Reduction Plan to Generate Local Capital Match Funding
Also Reflecting Elimination of Fresno Participation and Recommended Oakhurst‐Valley Service

Service

Plan Element
Drop Run 2, Year‐Round

140
Drop Runs 1 and 8, Year‐Round
Route
Total
120
Route
395
Route
TOTAL

41
Route

Plan Element Annual Impact
Change in
Peak
Operating
Vehicle‐ Buses in
Subsidy
Ridership Hours Operation
‐$65,300

‐1,700

‐387

0

‐$243,800

‐4,500

‐1,419

‐1

2019 Total

Percent Change
From 2019

Ridership

Vehicle‐
Hours

Ridership

Vehicle‐
Hours

‐$309,100

‐6,200

‐1,806

‐1

60,305

13,060

‐10%

‐14%

Reduce 3 Runs per Day to Groveland ‐‐
Valley

‐$133,400

‐1,100

‐760

0

16,135

2,197

‐7%

‐35%

Eliminate Service After September 15

‐$30,700

‐830

‐190

0

6,279

1,318

‐13%

‐14%

3 Routes ‐ Excludes Consideration of
41 Route

‐$473,200

‐8,130

‐2,756

‐1

82,719

16,574

‐10%

‐17%

Eliminate All Service

‐$272,500

‐8,636

‐3,097

‐3

‐‐

‐‐

‐‐

‐‐

Initiate Oakhurst‐Valley Service

$132,600

5,900

831

2

‐‐

‐‐

‐‐

‐‐

Net Change

‐73%

‐$139,900

‐2,736

‐2,267

‐1

8,636

3,097

‐32%

TOTAL 4 Routes ‐‐ If 41 Route Eliminated

‐$745,700

‐16,766

‐5,854

‐4

91,355

19,671

‐18%

‐30%

TOTAL 4 Routes ‐‐ With Oakhurst‐Valley Service

‐$613,100

‐10,866

‐5,023

‐2

91,355

19,671

‐12%

‐26%

140 Route Modifications
The existing utilization of buses over the course of a summer day is important in defining which service
options can reduce the number of buses needed to operate YARTS service. This is a straightforward
process for the 120 Route (as all three routes are in operation at once) and the 395/120 Route (with both
buses in operation at once). Table 3 shows the vehicle utilization over the course of a day for the 140
Route. As shown, six buses are in operation (including layover time in the Valley and deadhead time) over
much of the day, with a peak of seven buses in the 10 AM hour.
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Table 2: YARTS Alternative Service Reductions Analysis

Route

1‐Way Run
Parameters
Hours
Miles

Daily Service
Runs
Days/Yr

Annual
Hours
Miles

Annual
Operating
Cost

Change in
Peak Buses

Ridership

Farebox
Revenue

Operating
Subsidy

Psgr‐Trip /
VSH

Operating
Subsidy /
Psgr

ROUTE 140
Drop Run 2

Summer

2

1.5

51

‐1

63

‐95

‐3,213

‐$18,000

0

‐400

‐$2,000

‐$16,000

4.2

$40.00

Non‐Summer
Total

2

1.5

51

‐1

195

‐293
‐387

‐9,945
‐13,158

‐$56,000
‐$74,000

0
0

‐1,300
‐1,700

‐$6,700
‐$8,700

‐$49,300
‐$65,300

4.4
4.4

$37.92
$38.41

1
10

2.5
3

87
87

‐1
‐1

63
63

‐158
‐189

‐5,481
‐5,481

‐$30,000
‐$35,000

‐300
‐400

‐$1,500
‐$2,100

‐$28,500
‐$32,900

1.9
2.1

$95.00
$82.25

Total
1

2.5

87

‐1

195

‐347
‐488

‐10,962
‐16,965

‐$65,000
‐$93,000

‐700
‐1,300

‐$3,600
‐$6,700

‐$61,400
‐$86,300

2.0
2.7

$87.71
$66.38

10
Total
Total

3

87

‐1

195

‐585
‐1,073
‐1,419

‐16,965
‐33,930
‐44,892

‐$109,000
‐$202,000
‐$267,000

‐2,500
‐3,800
‐4,500

‐$12,900
‐$19,600
‐$23,200

‐$96,100
‐$182,400
‐$243,800

4.3
3.5
3.2

$38.44
$48.00
$54.18

Summer
Drop Runs 1 and 8
Winter
Year Round

‐1

0
‐1

7

3.2

87

‐1

88

‐282

‐7,656

‐$52,000

‐1,200

‐$6,200

‐$45,800

4.3

$38.17

14
Total

2.5

87

‐1

88

‐220
‐502

‐7,656
‐15,312

‐$42,000
‐$94,000

‐700
‐1,900

‐$3,600
‐$9,800

‐$38,400
‐$84,200

3.2
3.8

$54.86
$44.32

Winter

7
14

3.2
2.5

87
87

‐1
‐1

273
273

‐874
‐683

‐23,751
‐23,751

‐$161,000
‐$130,000

‐4,700
‐4,700

‐$24,100
‐$24,100

‐$136,900
‐$105,900

5.4
6.9

$29.13
$22.53

Year Round

Total
Total

‐1,556
‐2,058

‐47,502
‐62,814

‐$291,000
‐$385,000

0
‐1

‐9,400
‐11,300

‐$48,200
‐$58,000

‐$242,800
‐$327,000

6.0
5.5

$25.83
$28.94

Summer
Drop Runs 7 and 14

‐1

Route 120
Reduce 2 Runs per Day to Groveland ‐‐ Valley

‐1.44

‐37

4

88.00

‐507

‐13,024

‐$93,000

0

‐700

‐$3,600

‐$89,400

1.4

$127.71

Reduce 3 Runs per Day to Groveland ‐‐ Valley

‐1.44

‐37

6

88.00

‐760

‐19,536

‐$139,000

0

‐1,100

‐$5,600

‐$133,400

1.4

$121.27

Eliminate Service After Labor Day

3.25

84

6

‐9

‐176

‐4,536

‐$32,000

0

‐430

‐$2,200

‐$29,800

2.5

$69.30

Eliminate October Service

7.3

220

1

‐11

‐80

‐2,420

‐$15,000

0

‐250

‐$1,300

‐$13,700

3.1

$54.80

Eliminate Sept 15‐30 svc

7.3

220

1

‐15

‐110

‐3,300

‐$20,000

0

‐531

‐$2,700

‐$17,300

4.8

$32.58

Eliminate Service After September 15

7.3

220

1

‐26

‐190

‐5,720

‐$35,000

0

‐830

‐$4,300

‐$30,700

4.4

$36.99

2.1
1.9

48
48

2
2

103
103

433
398

9,888
9,888

831

19,776

$171,000

2

5,900

$38,400

$132,600

7.1

$22.47

Route 395/120 East

Oakhurst ‐ Valley Service
Summer ‐ June
1 to Mid‐Sept.

Inbound
Outbound
Total
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Table 3: Existing Buses Required In Service by Time of Day -- 140 Summer Schedule
Run Pairs
Period Start Time
4:45 AM
5:00 AM
5:15 AM
5:30 AM
5:45 AM
6:00 AM
6:15 AM
6:30 AM
6:45 AM
7:00 AM
7:15 AM
7:30 AM
7:45 AM
8:00 AM
8:15 AM
8:30 AM
8:45 AM
9:00 AM
9:15 AM
9:30 AM
9:45 AM
10:00 AM
10:15 AM
10:30 AM
10:45 AM
11:00 AM
11:15 AM
11:30 AM
11:45 AM
12:00 PM
12:15 PM
12:30 PM
12:45 PM
1:00 PM
1:15 PM
1:30 PM
1:45 PM
2:00 PM
2:15 PM
2:30 PM
2:45 PM
3:00 PM
3:15 PM
3:30 PM
3:45 PM
4:00 PM
4:15 PM
4:30 PM
4:45 PM
5:00 PM
5:15 PM
5:30 PM
5:45 PM
6:00 PM
6:15 PM
6:30 PM
6:45 PM
7:00 PM
7:15 PM
7:30 PM
7:45 PM
8:00 PM
8:15 PM
8:30 PM
8:45 PM
9:00 PM
9:15 PM
9:30 PM
9:45 PM
10:00 PM
10:15 PM
10:30 PM
10:45 PM
11:00 PM
11:15 PM

2 Solo

1&4

Deadhead
From Merced

Merced

3&6

5&8

7 & 10

9 & 14

11 & 12

13 & 16

15 & 18

Merced
Midpines
Merced

Merced
Merced

YNP

YNP
Deadhead
From Merced
Mariposa

YNP
YNP

Merced

YNP

YNP

Merced

Merced

YNP

YNP

YNP

YNP

YNP
YNP

YNP
Merced
Merced

Merced
YNP

Merced

Mariposa
Deadhead To
Merced

Merced

Merced

YNP
YNP

Midpines
Deadhead To
Merced

# of Buses
in
Operation
1
2
2
3
3
4
4
4
5
5
5
4
4
5
5
5
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
7
7
7
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
5
5
5
5
4
4
4
2
2
2
2
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

Note 1: Including layover in YNP and deadhead time.
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The focus of reductions on the 140 Route is a reduction in the number of daily runs. In assessing the best
way to accomplish this, the individual runs were reviewed. Some runs are needed to meet key train
connection times in Merced, specifically eastbound departures from Merced at 10:30 AM and 5:45 PM
and westbound departures from YNP at 8:15 AM and 4:35 PM. Other runs also need to be operated to
position buses for these Amtrak connection runs. Note that this analysis is based on the pre‐COVID
schedule and ridership levels, though the current run numbering system is used.

140 Route: Eliminate Run 2
Run 2 currently starts in Midpines at 5:54 AM on weekdays (year‐round). The bus is deadheaded up from
Merced to start the run. Even before COVID in 2019, ridership on this route was low at 5.1 passengers per
day in July, 5.2 in September and 3.4 in January. In 2020, ridership dropped to 0.9 riders per day in July
and only 0.4 in September.
Eliminating this run would reduce annual operating costs by a total of $63,000 per year ‐‐ $15,000 in the
summer operating season and $48,000 in the remainder of the year. Assuming that ridership would
return to pre‐pandemic levels and that half of the reduction in riders on this run would also result in a lost
rider on the return trip, a total of 1,700 passenger‐trips per year would be lost (400 in the summer season
and 1,300 in the remainder of the year). Considering the loss in revenue, this would generate a subsidy
savings of $69,200 per year. The cut in service would reduce ridership by 4.4 passengers for every hour of
reduced service and save roughly $41 for every passenger‐trip lost. Note that the service cut does not
reduce the peak number of buses needed to operate YARTS 140 Route service, as this peak occurs later in
the summer operating day.

140 Route: Eliminate Runs 1 and 8 and Shift Run 10 to a 3:15 PM Departure
Of the other runs not needed for Amtrak connections, the lowest ridership (pre‐COVID) is on the 5:00 AM
eastbound run (Run 1) and the 4:15 westbound run (Run 10). However, as Runs 1 and 8 operate on
weekdays only, this option would eliminate the existing Runs 1 and 8, and shift Route 10 to a 3:15 PM
departure. Ridership on Run 8 (departing the valley at 3:15 PM) is higher than on Run 10 (4:15 PM
departure), indicating that passengers would be better served if the Run 10 schedule is shifted to 3:15
PM. (The outbound Run 4, which provides an important Amtrak connection, would be paired with
remaining Run 3.) The impacts would be as follows:


In the summer only, eliminating these runs would reduce operating costs by $65,000 per year.
Ridership would drop by 1,100 per year, resulting in a loss of $5,700 in farebox revenues and a
net reduction in operating subsidy needs of $59,300 per year. This would reduce the number of
buses needed to operate YARTS by one.



In the non‐summer operating seasons, operating costs would be reduced by $202,000 per year.
Ridership would drop by 5,800 per year, resulting in a loss of $29,800 in farebox revenues and a
net reduction in operating subsidy needs of $172,200 per year. As peak bus fleet needs occur in
the summer, this option would not change the peak fleet needs.



Over the whole year, operating costs would be reduced by $267,000, ridership by 6,900, fare
revenue by $35,500 and required operating subsidy by $231,500.
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Cutting these runs in the summer would be a better option than in the non‐summer seasons. In the
summer season, ridership would be reduced by 3.2 passengers per vehicle‐hour of service, and $53.91 in
operating subsidy would be saved for every passenger eliminated. In comparison, these figures would be
4.9 and $33.55 in the non‐summer seasons.

140 Route: Other Changes Considered But Not Recommended
In addition to the recommended reductions above, the following changes were considered but are not
recommended at present:


If additional subsidy savings are needed, the next paired set of runs that should be considered are
the 6:45 AM eastbound departure (Run 7) and the 5:15 PM westbound departure (Run 14).
However, this would have a substantially greater impact on ridership (a loss of approximately
11,300 passengers per year) and is therefore not recommended.



Another alternative would be to shorten some of the 140 Route runs to provide Mariposa‐
Yosemite Valley service only. In concept, this would allow a single bus and driver to make multiple
round‐trips per day. It would not currently be effective to operate additional trips between El
Portal and the Valley, given the limited lodging and intercept parking opportunities in El Portal1.
A round‐trip between Mariposa and the Valley requires roughly 4 hours of running time. This
means that a bus making an early morning eastbound run into the Valley would not be able to
start a second eastbound run until roughly 10:30 AM. This would provide additional capacity for
travel into the Park in the mid‐day, such as for Mariposa visitors that want to have a leisurely half‐
day trip to the Park, or day visitors driving to Mariposa in the morning and park‐and‐riding to the
Park. However, there already is available YARTS capacity for these trips, such as existing Run 140‐
11 (10:15 AM eastbound service from the Mariposa Park‐and‐Ride and Run 140‐13 (a noon
eastbound departure). Ridership on these existing runs is relatively low, with roughly 35 percent
existing passenger load factor. Given the low potential to generate new ridership and an
estimated annual marginal operating cost of $43,000, this option is not considered further as part
of this Strategy Study. However, it may be a valid element of a longer‐term plan if additional
intercept parking (particularly in the El Portal area) is developed.

395 Route Modifications
395 Route: Reduce Fall Days of Service
Options to reduce 395 Route operating subsidy requirements are limited. The 395 Route currently
provides only two round‐trips per day, which is a reasonable minimum level of service that provides at
least a few options for passengers. The ridership pattern (reflecting the relative lodging capacity)
indicates that a shortened service only as far east as Lee Vining would not be effective. In addition,
previous service providing a shorter run between Mammoth Lakes and Tuolumne Meadows was not
effective and generated only low ridership. Given this, the only realistic means of reducing service on this

1

Note that a longer term strategy of expanding intercept parking in El Portal served by short YARTS runs may well
be feasible but would have an implementation period longer than the focus of this Strategy Study.
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route is to consider reduction in the days of service. As the start of service is defined by when Tioga Pass
opens, this in actuality is limited to possibly moving up the season end date.
In 2019, the 395 Route was operated until October 11th with a single‐round trip after August 31st. Two
options were considered, as discussed below:


Eliminate Service After September 30: Ridership figures indicate that approximately 250 passenger‐
trips (or 125 round‐trips if all make a round‐trip) are served after September 30. Eliminating this
service would reduce operating costs by $15,000 and reduce operating subsidy by $13,700 per year.
$54.80 would be saved per passenger‐trip eliminated, or 3.1 per vehicle‐hour.



Eliminate Service After September 15: If service were ended after the second weekend after Labor
Day (roughly September 15th) the subsidy savings would be increased to $30,700, while the reduction
in ridership would total 830. Overall, YARTS operating subsidy would be reduced by $36.99 for every
passenger‐trip lost, or 4.4 per vehicle‐hour.

While the first option (eliminating service after September 30) offers a better cost savings per passenger
trip, it does not significantly decrease the operating cost for the 395 Service. To provide additional capital
local match funding and since the cost‐effectiveness and productivity of the service in late September is
relatively low, it is recommended that service be eliminated after the second weekend in September
(approximately September 15th).

120 Route Modifications
Route 120 is operated in summer only, over a relatively short season (mid‐June to mid‐September). The
three round‐trips operated per day are some of the most effective overall runs in the YARTS system. As
such, options to reduce the number of runs or the days of service were not considered. However, a
detailed evaluation of the ridership by route segment indicates that the portion of the route west of
Groveland is very ineffective, which indicates the potential to reduce costs by shortening the route.

120 Route: Reduce Route to Groveland – Yosemite Valley
It is recommended that the 120 Route be reduced to service between Groveland (Mary Laveroni Park)
and Yosemite Valley. Table 4 presents a summary of ridership by stop for the busy summer month of July
in 2019 and 2020. As indicated, in July 2019 of all boardings outside the National Park, 92 percent were
between Groveland and the park boundary, while only 8 percent were west of Groveland. This ratio was
even more skewed in 2020, with 94 percent between Groveland and the park boundary and 6 percent to
the west. As a result of this low ridership and the fact that roughly 55 percent of the operating cost is
generated by the one hour and 45 minute schedule time per one‐way trip west of Groveland, the current
service results in a subsidy of $121 per one‐way trip served west of Groveland – or $242 in public funding
for every passenger provided with a round‐trip.
An example schedule is shown in Table 5 (which is modified somewhat from the current schedule to
provide more convenient service times for the remaining stops). This modification will reduce ridership by
1,100 per year or an average of 12 per day (assuming that none of the ridership generated by the
Jamestown – Black Oak Casino stops choose to drive to Groveland to catch the bus). However, it will
reduce annual operating subsidy needs by $133,400 per year.
LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
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Table 4: Route 120 Average Daily Ridership in July
Average Daily Boardings
2019
Stop

#

2020

% Outside YNP

#

% Outside YNP

Black Oak Hotel

0.8

1.2%

0.5

1.0%

Sonora Best Western

1.7

2.5%

1.0

2.2%

Cal Inns Washington
Jamestown
West of Groveland

1.1
2.1
5.7

1.6%
3.1%
8.3%

0.9
0.3
2.7

2.0%
0.7%
5.9%

Mary Laveroni Park

7.6

11.1%

3.9

8.5%

Yosemite Pines RV Park

29.8

43.6%

18.9

41.0%

Buck Meadows Resort
Yosemite Lakes Campground
Outside the Park

4.7

6.8%

6.0

13.0%

20.5
68.3

30.1%
100%

14.6
46.2

31.7%
100%

Big Oak Flat

2.0

2.0

Crane Flat Gas Station

0.5

0.2

Yosemite Visitors Center

73.6

48.5

Total

148.2

107.1

Source: VIA Monthly Reports

Table 5: 120 Route Groveland - Valley Schedule
June 22 to September 11

Yosemite → Groveland
YN
P

Location
Yosemite Valley Visitor Center
Crane Flat
Crane Flat
Big Oak Flat/Park Entrance Gate
Big Oak Flat, Rush
Rush Creek Lodge
Creek, Yosemite Lakes
Yosemite Lakes Campground
Buck Meadows Restaurant
Bucks Meadows,
Yosemite Pines RV Park
Groveland
Groveland ‐ Laveroni Park
Jamestown ‐ Rocca Park
Downtown Sonora ‐ Heritage Inn
Sonora, Jamestown
Sonora Best Western
Black Oak Hotel and Resort

Run 120‐2*

Run 120‐4

Run 120‐6*

3:30 PM
4:05 PM
4:19 PM
4:24 PM
4:29 PM
4:56 PM
5:01 PM
5:18 PM
REQ
REQ
REQ
7:15 PM

4:30 PM
5:05 PM
5:19 PM
5:24 PM
5:29 PM
5:56 PM
6:01 PM
6:18 PM
REQ
REQ
REQ
7:45 PM

5:30 PM
6:05 PM
6:19 PM
6:24 PM
6:29 PM
6:56 PM
7:01 PM
7:18 PM
REQ
REQ
REQ
8:50 PM

Run 120‐3
7:40 AM
8:00 AM
8:15 AM
8:25 AM
9:00 AM
9:10 AM
9:24 AM
9:41 AM
9:46 AM
9:59 AM
10:09 AM
10:44 AM

Run 120‐5*
8:40 AM
9:00 AM
9:15 AM
9:25 AM
10:00 AM
10:10 AM
10:24 AM
10:41 AM
10:46 AM
10:59 AM
11:09 AM
11:44 AM

Groveland → Yosemite
Location

YN
P

Black Oak Hotel and Resort
Sonora Best Western
Sonora, Jamestown
Downtown Sonora ‐ Heritage Inn
Jamestown ‐ Rocca Park
Groveland ‐ Laveroni Park
Bucks Meadows,
Yosemite Pines RV Park
Groveland
Buck Meadows Restaurant
Yosemite Lakes Campground
Big Oak Flat, Rush
Rush Creek Lodge
Creek, Yosemite Lakes
Big Oak Flat/Park Entrance Gate
Crane Flat
Crane Flat
Yosemite Visitor Center
* Note ‐‐ Only Operated Through August 31.

Run 120‐1*
6:40 AM
7:00 AM
7:15 AM
7:25 AM
8:00 AM
8:10 AM
8:24 AM
8:41 AM
8:46 AM
8:59 AM
9:09 AM
9:44 AM
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120 Route: Other Changes Considered But Not Recommended
Keeping one of the existing three daily round‐trips on the existing full route to Sonora and Black Oak
Casino would still generate $89,400 in annual operating subsidy savings. It would, however, still yield very
inefficient service west of Groveland, would generate less savings for local capital match purposes, and
would constrain riders to only a single service time in the morning and in the afternoon, and is therefore
not recommended.
Another option would be to eliminate the 9 days of service (using a single bus only) currently operated
after the Labor Day weekend until the 3rd weekend in September. This would generate a modest
($29,800) additional operating subsidy savings but would eliminate service in a period of the year when
ridership is growing and is therefore not recommended.

Route 41 Service
The Fresno Council of Governments has recently confirmed that funding for the Route 41 service will end
once the existing Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) funds are fully expended at the end of the
2022 summer operating season. This will result in the cessation of service to/from Fresno after the 2022
operating season. However, the ridership generated in the Oakhurst area has been relatively strong and
has the potential to grow with the expansion of lodging in the community. A review of the Route 41
ridership data during August of 2019 and 2020 is presented in Table 6. As shown, for 2020 (which actually
generated higher daily ridership than 2019), a large majority (74 percent) of boardings outside of the
National Park was generated at the Oakhurst and Tenaya Lodge stops, compared with only 4 percent at
the Coarsegold stop, 5 percent at the Chukchansi stop and a total of 17 percent at the Fresno stops. This
is consistent with the strong pattern of ridership from the other immediate “gateway” communities (such
as Groveland and Mariposa) on YARTS. A reasonable strategy is therefore to consider a service for the
southern gateway community of Oakhurst in Madera County.

Table 6: Route 41 Average Daily Ridership in August
Average Daily Boardings
#

2019
% Outside YNP

#

Fresno Airport (FAT)

7.8

21%

3.3

7.8%

Amtrak/Greyhound

5.9

15%

1.7

3.9%

North Fresno

4.3

11%

2.3

5.4%

Chukchansi

2.4

6%

2.1

4.8%

Coarsegold Historic Village

4.0

10%

1.7

4.1%

Oakhurst Best Western

11.0

29%

19.4

45.5%

Stop

2020
% Outside YNP

Tenaya Lodge

2.7

7%

12.1

28.4%

Outside the Park

38.2

100%

42.6

100.0%

The Mariposa Grove

4.1

2.0

Wawona Store

3.9

0.8

Yosemite Visitor Center

33.5

35.6

Total

79.6

81.0

Source: VIA Monthly Reports

LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc.
YARTS Strategic Plan Recommendations White Paper

Page 9

197

Based on a review of the existing Route 41 ridership and service plan, a reasonable operating plan for this
service would be as follows:


The service would start from the Oakhurst Community Park on Civic Circle, near the Library. This has
the ability to provide overnight parking for buses (if the contractor chooses to do so) and to provide
some informal park‐and‐ride parking for persons staying or living in the Oakhurst area.



In addition to the existing stops served by Route 41, a new stop could be served at the recently‐
constructed Fairfield Inn on the northern side of Oakhurst, which is also adjacent to the Holiday Inn
Express on one side and the Hampton Inn on the other.



A conceptual schedule is provided as Table 7,showing two AM northbound runs (departing at 7:30
AM and 9:00 AM) and two PM southbound runs (departing the Yosemite Valley Visitors Center at
3:30 PM and 5:00 PM). There is sufficient existing ridership generated in this corridor to warrant two
buses and providing two schedule options expands the variety of potential trip choices for travelers. If
demand warrants and funding is expanded, additional daily runs could be considered.



A reasonable operating season would be from June 1 through the second weekend of September (or
roughly 103 days per year). This also could be expanded as warranted and as funds allow. This service
would operate 8.06 vehicle‐hours and 192 vehicle‐miles of service per day, or 831 vehicle‐hours and
19,776 vehicle‐miles over the full season.

Table 7: Example Oakhurst-YNP Schedule
June 1 ‐ Sept 12

Oakhurst → Yosemite

Oakhurst

Location
Oakhurst Community Park
Oakhurst Best Western
Oakhurst Holiday Inn / Hampton
Inn / Fairfield
Tenaya Lodge

YN
P

Wawona, Mariposa
The Mariposa Grove
Grove, Fish Camp
Wawona Store
Yosemite Visitor Center

Run 41‐1
7:30 AM
7:34 AM

Run 41‐3
9:00 AM
9:04 AM

7:38 AM

9:08 AM

7:56 AM

9:26 AM

8:06 AM
8:26 AM
9:36 AM

9:36 AM
9:56 AM
11:06 AM

Run 41‐2
3:30 PM

Run 41‐4
5:00 PM

4:30 PM
4:50 PM

6:00 PM
6:20 PM

5:00 PM

6:30 PM

5:18 PM

6:48 PM

5:22 PM

6:52 PM

5:26 PM

6:56 PM

Yosemite → Oakhurst
YNP

Location
Yosemite Valley Visitor Center

Wawona Store
Wawona, Mariposa
The Mariposa Grove
Grove, Fish Camp
Tenaya Lodge
Oakhurst Holiday Inn / Hampton
Inn / Fairfield
Oakhurst
Oakhurst Best Western
Oakhurst Community Park
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At the YARTS contractor’s current rate of $162.85 per vehicle service hour (for a contractor‐provided bus)
and assuming $0.80 per vehicle‐mile for fuel, the annual operating cost of this service would be $151,000.
Ridership on this service can be estimated based on existing ridership generated by run and by stop and
factored to reflect the change in the calendar of service. Annual ridership is estimated to total 5,900
boardings per year. Note that this does not reflect any growth in ridership demand due to new lodging in
the Oakhurst area, which could well increase ridership. Based on existing fare revenues, adjusted to
reflect the change in service, an estimated average fare per passenger‐trip of $6.50 is assumed. Over the
course of the operating season, this totals $38,400 per year. Subtracting the fare revenue, a total of
$154,600 in subsidy funding would be required, including operations, capital funding and
management/marketing. Additional discussion of the financial and institutional aspects of this service is
provided below.
The Oakhurst‐YNP service would perform relatively well: it would carry 7.1 passenger‐trip per vehicle
service hour, compared with the systemwide average of 4.6 in 2019 (pre‐COVID). The service would
nearly match the best performing route in the YARTS system by this measure of 7.3 generated by the 120
West service. Comparing the operating subsidy (operating costs minus passenger fares) to the number of
passenger‐trips, this service would require roughly $19.00 in operating subsidy per passenger‐trip,
compared with a systemwide average in 2019 of $21.70.
As an aside, another option was considered that would extend this route south the additional 12 miles to
start and end at the Chukchansi Gold Resort and Casino. Over the course of the season, this would add
approximately 400 vehicle‐hours and 2,300 vehicle‐miles to the service, increasing operating costs by
$67,000. Ridership (per existing boarding data) would only increase by 700 per year. Considering fare
revenue, operating subsidy would increase $62,500 per year. This additional service would be relatively
inefficient, generating only 1.7 passenger‐trips per vehicle‐hour and requiring $89 in subsidy per
additional passenger‐trip. It therefore should only be operated if additional funding is made available to
extend the route.

Total Service Modifications
The change in overall YARTS services and ridership was evaluated both for the core service operated for
the existing JPA members (the 140, 120 and 395 Routes), as well as for all existing routes including the 41
Route. For the three core services combined, the recommended service modifications would:


Reduce ridership by a total of 2,756 annual vehicle‐hours, or 17 percent of current service for the
three core routes. Note that the proportion of reduction is equal at 14 percent on the 140 Route and
395 Route, and higher (35 percent) on the 120 Route.



Reduce ridership by 8,130 annual one‐way passenger‐boardings, or 10 percent of 2019 ridership on
the three core routes. This ridership loss is relatively modest (7 percent) on the 120 Route, reflecting
the low existing ridership on service west of Groveland. As the drop in ridership is less than the drop
in service levels, this strategy would overall improve the performance measures for the YARTS
program.



Reduce the number of buses in peak operation by 1 (from the reduction in runs on the 140 Route).
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Reduce the annual operating subsidy by $473,200, which should be used to develop a local capital
reserve fund.

If the current 41 Route service is replaced with a smaller Oakhurst‐Valley service, this would reduce
service on this corridor by 73 percent while reducing ridership by 32 percent and the number of buses in
operation by one additional bus. The overall YARTS system would operate 5,023 less vehicle‐hours per
year (a 26 percent reduction) and would serve 12 percent fewer passenger‐trips than in 2019. Reducing
or eliminating the Route 41 service could potentially also free up additional NPS funding for capital
purchases.
It should be noted that under the current operator contract, a 15% reduction in service hours triggers a
contract renegotiation. As presented in Table 1, above, under this strategy plan the overall services would
be cut by 26 percent. However, this full cut would not occur until 2023, after the existing Route 41 full
service to Fresno is stopped. Prior to that, service would be cut by 17 percent, still triggering the need for
renegotiation. This could change the cost implications of this overall plan.

CAPITAL RECOMMENDATIONS
Bus Fleet Improvements
The appropriate fleet improvement strategy for YARTS is impacted by several factors, as discussed below:
fuel type, vehicle size, and operating plan requirements.

Recommended Fuel Strategy
The California Air Resources Board (CARB) Fleet Rule for Transit Agencies requires that public transit
programs start purchasing alternative fuel vehicles (Battery Electric Buses (BEBs) or hydrogen) as 25
percent of bus purchases starting in 2026, with full conversion expected by 2035. It is recommended that
YARTS delay implementation of conversion to an alternative fuels fleet for at least five years. There are
several reason why Zero Emissions Buses (ZEBs) are not currently viable, and would reduce the overall
ridership and environmental benefits of the transit program:


Of the two ZEB options (Battery Electric Buses (BEBs) or hydrogen), the region does not have the
fueling infrastructure needed for hydrogen fueled buses. Providing sufficient hydrogen fueling
facilities at the various operating termini of the YARTS routes (at a per‐site cost on the order of
$2,000,000) would be excessively expensive.



The distances that BEB buses would need to travel without a mid‐day charge in Yosemite National
Park exceeds the range that currently available models can reliably operate, particularly given the
additional power needed to climb mountain grades, operate air conditioning (such as in the Central
Valley in summer) and operate heating systems (such as in the Park in winter). The roughly 4,000 feet
of elevation gain between Merced and Yosemite Valley and the 6,000 feet of gain from the Valley to
Tioga Pass are examples of the challenging conditions.



The region also lacks existing electric vehicle charging capacity. Where there are small charging
locations in the region (such as in Yosemite Valley, Sonora, Mammoth Lakes, Mariposa and Merced),
these are sized for private autos and lack the electrical capacity for charging a bus fleet. Establishing
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charging facilities for buses often includes expansion of local electrical substations and potentially
upgrading transmission lines. Defining the necessary level of upgrade to the limited electrical grid
(particularly within the Park) has yet to be conducted. This should be conducted in consideration of
overall electrical vehicle charging requirements (such as for Valley Shuttle buses, charter buses,
commercial vehicles and private autos). Making the necessary modifications could potentially require
extensive environmental review, delaying when actual operation of BEBs can be initiated.


BEBs are much more expensive than diesel buses … on the order of $1,300,000 per bus compared
with $750,000 per bus (with necessary chain and communications equipment), or 75 percent more.
YARTS lacks a dedicated source of funds available for the local match – and the financial capacity of
the largely‐rural local member jurisdictions is very constrained. As a result, local matching funds for
bus purchase grants will need to be generated by reductions in operating subsidy costs resulting from
cuts in service. Doubling these local match costs thus would double the necessary cuts in service and
increase the loss of YARTS ridership. The resulting increase in auto use would expand the
environmental impacts of overall access to Yosemite, such as greenhouse gas emissions.



Over‐the‐road coaches – which have proven to be the appropriate vehicle type for the majority of
YARTS routes – have only recently started to be available from manufacturers in BEB models. Like any
new technology, there is a substantial “learning curve” with regards to a new BEB model type during
which manufacturing processes are refined, dependability increases, and costs tend to decrease.
Given the very limited local resources available to YARTS, it is prudent to allow this learning curve to
occur prior to investment in the new technology.

Given these factors, it is recommended that YARTS work with Caltrans to modify the existing BEB grant
award to instead purchase six diesel buses.

Bus Size Recommendations
YARTS has historically used over‐the‐road coaches with a 50‐passenger capacity to serve all routes. These
buses are relatively comfortable for the long distance trips required for YARTS, are designed to provide a
smooth ride over mountain roads and provide plenty of space for luggage. Given the critical need and
high cost to replace buses, it is appropriate to review the type and size of buses required. The next
smaller standard bus size are 35‐foot‐long models. Considering the space needed for a restroom and for
luggage, these vehicles have seating for a maximum of 30 passengers.
VIA records daily passenger loads by route and run. Using this data from July 2019 for each trip pair
(meaning the same bus serving both the inbound and outbound trip), the average load was analyzed,
along with the 90th percentile load, 95th percentile load, and maximum load. Given YARTS is a discretionary
service for most passengers, their comfort is an important aspect of the service. In order to minimize the
number of potential riders that would be denied service, we assumed a 95th percentile passenger load to
estimate what size bus is required for each run (with the potential to deny additional reservations on 5
percent of the runs).
As shown in Table 8, the 95th percentile loads ranged from lows of 8 passengers on the 5:54 AM run from
Midpines to Merced and 20 passengers on the 4:05 PM Yosemite to Mammoth run, to highs of 47
passengers on the 5:00 PM Yosemite to Mammoth run and 50 passengers on both the 6:40 AM
Tuolumne County to Yosemite and 4:00 PM Yosemite to Tuolumne County runs.
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Table 8: YARTS Bus Size Requirements
Based on Summer 2019 Passenger Loads
Estimated Passenger Load 2
Existing Route/Run
Pairs 1

Average

90th
95th
Percentile Percentile Maximum

140 Route
M to Y 5:00 AM
Y to M 9:05 AM
M to Y 5:30 AM
Y to M 3:40 PM
M to Y 6:00 AM
Y to M 3:15 PM
M to Y 6:45 AM
Y to M 4:15 PM
MPS to Y 9:00 AM
Y to M 4:35 PM
M to Y 8:45 AM
Y to M 5:15 PM
M to Y 10:30 AM
Y to M 6:00 PM
M to Y 5:45 PM
Y to M 8:17 PM
Mid to M 5:54 AM

9
19
16
13
21
29
24
20
15
13
22
13
25
24
16
12
5

11
21
18
15
23
33
27
23
17
14
25
15
28
28
19
13
6

14
29
24
21
32
44
37
31
23
19
35
20
38
38
25
18
8

16
32
27
23
35
48
40
34
25
21
38
22
42
41
28
20
9

395 Route
MM to Y 8:00 AM
Y to MM 5:00 PM
MM to Y 6:45 AM
Y to MM 4:05 PM

15
28
13
12

23
43
20
18

26
47
22
20

30
50
25
23

120 Route
TC to Y 7:40 AM
Y to TC 4:30 PM
TC to Y 6:40 AM
Y to TC 4:00 PM
TC to Y 8:40 AM
Y to TC 5:35 PM

24
22
33
35
15
19

37
33
50
50
24
30

39
35
50
50
25
31

44
39
50
50
28
34

41 Route
F to Y 5:37 AM
Y to F 11:15 AM
F to Y 7:50 AM
Y to F 4:06 PM
F to Y 11:15 AM
Y to F 5:46 PM

17
8
15
20
9
13

24
12
21
28
13
18

26
13
23
31
14
19

32
16
28
38
17
24

Paired 95th

Bus Size

Percentile 3

Required 4

29

Small

24

Small

44

Large

37

Large

23

Small

35

Large

38

Large

25

Small

8

Small

47

Large

20

Large 5

39

Large

50

Large

31

Large

26

Large6

31

Large

19

Small

Recommended For
Elimination?
Yes
No
No
No
No
No
No
Yes
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
Yes
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
Yes
Yes

Potential Remaining Route Pairs by Necessary Bus Size
M = Merced

MM = Mammoth Mountain

Route

Y = Yosemite

TC = Tuolumne County

Mid = Midpines

F = Fresno

Note 1: Paired runs per driver run cuts July 2019.

Small

Large

140 Route

3

4

395 Route

0

2

120 Route 5

0

3

41 Route
0
2
Note 2: Calculated based on reported passenger
loads by route and run for July 2019.
Total
3
11
Note 3: Shows the higher passenger load required for the paired runs to determine bus size.
Note 4: Assumes buses with 95th percentile loads 29 and under can use small buses, and 30 or more require large buses.
Note 5: Buses should be interchangable for services due to overnighting in remote locations.
Note 6: Shift of existing demand to fewer runs would increase ridership over capacity of a smaller bus.
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We made several assumptions to arrive at the required bus size. First, every run with a 95th percentile
load of 30 passengers or less could potentially be operated with a smaller bus, and every run with 31 or
more passengers would require a larger bus. However, in the case of Highway 395 service between
Mammoth Lakes and Yosemite, only two buses are used in service and they are parked 175 miles from
the YARTS operation base in Merced. The buses should be interchangeable as potential back‐ups, and
therefore both should be large buses. The analysis was also adjusted to reflect the recommended
reductions in service, specifically (1) two of the round‐trips that could be operated using a smaller bus are
proposed to be eliminated and (2) the replacement of the existing three daily Route 41 runs with two
daily shorter runs is expected to increase ridership on the remaining runs, thereby requiring large buses
on both remaining runs. Based on these factors, at 2019 ridership levels, three round‐trips could be
operated using smaller buses (all on the 140 Route) while the remaining 11 round‐trips (including two on
the 41 Route) would require full‐sized buses.
Beyond accommodating existing (2019) ridership loads there are other factors that need to be considered
in identifying the appropriate bus size:


The purchase price of smaller buses is less than the larger over‐the‐road coaches. A 30‐passenger
medium‐duty bus costs approximately $350,000 from the manufacturer, or on the order of $400,000
with necessary equipment, compared with a total cost of approximately $750,000 for a diesel over‐
the‐road coach. However, larger buses have a longer useful life benchmark (ULB) of
12 years or 450,000 miles, compared to just 7 years of 200,000 miles on 30‐passenger medium‐duty
small buses, which cost approximately $350,000. On an annual basis, smaller vehicles require $57,000
in capital compared with $62,000 for a full‐sized bus, or $5,000 less per year. On a local basis, the fact
that federal or state grant programs will typically fund 80 percent of the capital costs means that the
cost savings to the YARTS JPA is only on the order of $1,000 per bus per year (or $3,000 for the three
smaller buses). Therefore, due to the lesser useful life, smaller buses do not offer a significant cost
savings.



The operating cost savings of smaller buses is not as significant as might be first thought. The largest
element of the operating costs associated with any transit service is driver wages and benefits and
these do not change between a 30‐passenger bus and a 50‐passenger bus (as both require the same
level of driver licensing). There can be some modest reduction in fuel costs (depending on the
variation in costs), but overall savings in operating costs are typically in the range of 5 percent to 10
percent.



Smaller buses are less comfortable than over‐the‐road buses, which is a significant issue for tourists
and recreationists traveling long distances for leisure.



Luggage space would be required to be provided in the passenger compartment on smaller buses,
further reducing the seating capacity and increasing the constraints on the riders YARTS is able to
serve in peak periods.

A disadvantage of having a mixed fleet (both large and small buses) is that they cannot be used
interchangeably. Larger buses are therefore required for back‐up. A mixed fleet also increases the cost of
maintaining adequate inventory of spare parts as well as mechanic training.
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The final key consideration is that purchasing smaller buses for a portion of the fleet would reduce the
YARTS program’s ability to accommodate any future increase in ridership. Given these various
considerations, it is recommended that YARTS continue to pursue a fleet of fully over‐the‐road coaches.

Overall Fleet Improvement Strategy
The long‐term sustainability of the YARTS program would best be achieved through acquisition of a fleet
of diesel powered over‐the‐road coaches to operate the service plan (including spares) without the need
for contractor‐supplied buses. As shown in Table 9, with the service modifications recommended above,
YARTS service (excluding any service on the 41 Route) requires a maximum of 11 buses in peak operation.
At a standard 20 percent spare ratio and a minimum of one spare per route, 3 spare vehicles are needed
to provide reliable service, for a total of 14 vehicles in the fleet.

Table 9: YARTS Fleet Improvement Cost Analysis
Assuming Diesel Bus Purchases

Existing
In Service Spares

With Plan
Total

In Service Spares

Total

Number of Buses Required
140 Route
7
120 Route
3
395 Route
2
Total: JPA Routes
12

1
1
1
3

8
4
3
15

6
3
2
11

1
1
1
3

7
4
3
14

41 Route
Total: With 41 Route

1
4

4
19

2
13

1
4

3
17

3
15

Capital Cost of a 100% YARTS Owned Fleet @ $750,000 per bus
JPA Routes: Total Cost
$11,250,000
JPA Routes: Local Match
$2,250,000
# Years of Operating Cost Savings Needed to Generate Local Match

$10,500,000
$2,100,000
4.4

Capital Cost of 41 Route Oakhurst ‐ YNP Service
Total Cost
Local Match
Annual Local Match over 12‐year Vehicle Life

$2,250,000
$450,000
$37,500

At a cost of $750,000 per vehicle (including equipment), the new fleet will require $10,500,000 in total
funding. At a 20 percent local match requirement, total local funding is $2,100,000.
Depending on future discussions with Madera County, three additional buses may be needed in the
YARTS fleet (two in peak service plus one spare), bringing the total fleet requirements up to 17 buses.
These three additional buses would require $2,250,000, including a $450,000 local match. Over the
course of the 12‐year life of the vehicles, the annual local match for these three vehicles would total
$37,500.
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Optimally, this new fleet would be obtained over the next 18 months in order to be available for the new
service contract in November 2022. It would also be beneficial to complete the bus purchases at least
prior to the requirements for ZEB purchases starting in 2026
As an aside, one potential option may be to purchase up to 9 buses currently owned by VIA Adventures
and used in the YARTS service. These buses are 2014 year models, with the exception of on 2013 year
model and thus are through slightly more than half of their useful life by age. The purchase price of these
vehicles is not known. In addition, the mechanical condition of these vehicles is also not currently known,
but typically maintenance costs associated with older buses tends to climb significantly as they near the
end of their life. If grant funding can be obtained to offset 80 percent of the cost of a full new fleet, the
YARTS program would have lower operating (maintenance) costs for a significantly longer number of
years and would also put off the need for expensive investment in ZEB technologies for a longer period.
Pursuing a 100 percent new fleet is therefore recommended, though purchase of the used vehicles may
be a fallback strategy if funding limitations require it.
YARTS administrative staff should therefore work with Caltrans to shift the existing grant allocation from
battery electric buses to six over‐the‐road diesel coach buses. Depending on the Madera County
participation, other grant opportunities should be pursued to obtain 11 to 13 additional buses for YARTS
over the next five years.

Establish YARTS Facilities
At present, YARTS relies on contractor‐owned facilities for bus storage and maintenance in Merced and
Fresno, bus parking on private (lodging property) land in Tuolumne County and bus parking along the side
of a state highway (a chain‐up area) in Mammoth Lakes. The lack of publicly owned facilities is a
detriment in several ways:


The contractor costs associated with providing facilities is reflected in higher ongoing operating
costs. As the proportion of local funds for operating is higher than for capital, over time this
results in higher costs to YARTS JPA members.



The requirement that a contractor must provide facilities reduces the potential pool of possible
contractors, decreasing competition and potentially resulting in higher costs.



Public investment in electric bus charging equipment requires publicly owned (or long‐term
leased) locations. The lack of these locations is currently an impediment to implementing a BEB
fleet.



The lack of a secure (fenced) location at the park‐out locations increases the possibility of
vandalism to the buses.

YARTS should pursue the purchase of a facility in Merced sufficient to store the 140 Route fleet (and
potentially buses used in Oakhurst‐Yosemite Valley service). Depending on the ability to maintain the
fleet at the existing TJPA facility in Merced, this site may also need to accommodate vehicle maintenance
functions. Secured parking facilities should also be identified (preferably at existing publicly owned
corporate yards) in Groveland, Mammoth Lakes and potentially Oakhurst.
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The total cost of facilities is currently uncertain and will depend on the various factors discussed above. It
will certainly increase the need for local capital funding.

Institutional Plan
Consider Madera County as a YARTS JPA Member
If current discussions regarding long‐term service between Madera County and Yosemite Valley are
successful, it would be optimal for Madera County to become a full member of the YARTS Joint Powers
Authority (as Tuolumne County recently did), rather than this service be operated on a short‐term
agreement. The current agreement for the Route 41 service has shown the difficulties associated with a
short‐term approach, as it adds uncertainty to capital planning (bus fleet size, alternative fuels, facilities)
and the year‐to‐year allocation of administrative/marketing resources.
The “fee” for JPA membership defined for Tuolumne County was identified based on the average local
subsidy per vehicle‐hour of service. Factoring the fee defined several years ago for inflation and
multiplying by the annual vehicle‐hours of service identified in Table 2, above, yields a value on the order
of $30,000. Over the last few years, however, the need for local capital funding for bus purchases has
become clear. As discussed above, the annual local match requirements for three buses needed for
Madera County service (two in operation plus one spare) would be approximately $37,000. A total cost
for JPA membership that would support the Madera County service (and capital) would therefore be on
the order of $67,000. Optimally, the overall decisions to continue Route 41 service beyond the end of
Fresno COG funding and Madera County joining the JPA would be determined in time to be reflected in
the draft Request For Proposals published in the summer of 2021.

Bid the 395 Route Service as a Separate RFP Option
At present, the YARTS operations contract scope of work includes all four individual routes. The inclusion
of the 395 Route service in particular has the potential to reduce the number of capable transit
contractor firms interested in the YARTS contract due to the challenges of managing operations so far
removed from the other services. As it is important to maximize the potential for competitive bidding, it is
recommended that the RFP be developed that allows an individual contractor to optionally bid on the 395
Route service, the remaining (west side) service, or both. Note that the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority
could potentially bid on the 395 Route service.
LSC recognizes that MCAG management of two separate operations could potentially increase
management staff time requirements. However, allowing for separate bidding of the two scopes of work
could yield a better outcome for YARTS as a whole.

Change the MCAG Management/Marketing Contract and the County Agreements from
Annual to Multiyear
The year‐by‐year nature of the current MCAG contract for YARTS management and marketing adds to the
administrative burden to the organization, and limits MCAG’s ability to plan for staffing levels and
ongoing marketing efforts. Given the long‐term success of this arrangement, this contract should be
modified to at least a three‐year term, and preferably a five‐year term. It would be prudent to stagger
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the end date of this agreement from that of the service contract, in order to avoid a situation where
management staff is not available to address the service procurement process.
It would also be beneficial to shift from annual agreements with the individual County JPA members to a
multiyear agreement, in order to reduce administrative burden and provide more assurance for planning
over a multiyear period.

Improve Coordination With Other Public Transit Services
YARTS provides the opportunity for connections with other transit services in the Yosemite Region,
including ESTA and internal park shuttles. While detailed service planning is not the focus of this Strategy
Study, YARTS/MCAG staff should continually consider means of coordinating with these other services to
maximize the usefulness of the YARTS services to the Yosemite Region as a whole. In particular, the
upcoming ESTA Short Range Transit Plan process will provide the opportunity to consider improved
connections between ESTA and YARTS services along the US 395 corridor.
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